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NEHE
Company Overview

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED, together with its
subsidiaries, is the world’s leading producer of a number of
fine chemicals such as dye, pigment and agricultural chemical
intermediates etc, representing an important share in the word’s
market. According to Frost & Sullivan, our production scale of
DSD Acid, a dye intermediate, was ranked first in the world and
accounted for approximately 53.0% of the world’s market in 2016.
Our another major product was also ranked first in the world for
the production of DMSS, a pigment intermediate, and accounted
for approximately 42.7% of the world’s market in 2016. We were
also ranked second in the world for the production of DMAS,
which accounted for approximately 19.8% of the world’s market by
production volume in 2016. In 2015, we officially entered market
of new product i.e., mononitrotoluene, and we have completed
the expansion of production capacity in 2016. According to the
production volume in 2016, our market share accounted for
approximately 18.8% and we were ranked third in the world for
production of mononitrotoluene.

The Group principally engages in the manufacturing of production
of fine chemical products which has great potential market,
such as dye, pigment and agricultural chemical intermediates.
Among which, DSD Acid, a dye intermediate, after processing,
can produce dyes and optical brightening agents (“OBA”), a
chemical that is commonly used to brighten or whiten paper and
textile. OBA is also the core ingredient, without any comparable
substitutes, for the production of dyes for paper and textile, and
fluorescent whitening agents for plastics and consumer goods.
OBA is most likely to be found in daily used paper, textile,
detergents and cosmetics. The global production volume of DSD
Acid has increased from approximately 41.8 kilo tons in 2011 to
approximately 57.7 kilo tons in 2016, with an annual compound
growth rate of 6.6%. It is expected that the global production
volume will reach approximately 65.8 kilo tons by 2020.

Another major product of the Group, is pigment intermediate,
such as DMSS and DMAS, are important raw materials for the
production of pigments, which are materials that change the color
of reflected or transmitted light as a result of wavelength-selective
absorption. DMSS, DMAS and other pigment intermediates
we produced are basic materials for producing high-end paint
pigments which are used for building and automobile applications,
photosensitive polymer, light color stabilizers, pesticides,
bactericide, plastics, pharmaceuticals and food additives.
The global production volume of DMSS has increased from
approximately 4.6 kilo tons in 2011 to approximately 6.6 kilo tons
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in 2016, with an annual compound growth rate of approximately
7.4%. It is expected that, volume of global production will reach
approximately 10.3 kilo tons by 2020. The global production
volume of DMAS has also grown stability from approximately
3.9 kilo tons in 2011 to approximately 4.8 kilo tons in 2016,
with an annual compound growth rate of approximately 4.0%.
It is expected that the volume of global production will reach
approximately 5.6 kilo tons by 2020.

In order to further enrich product portfolio and expand income
stream, the Group achieved its upstream and downstream
product integration strategy in 2015, by producing new product
i.e., mononitrotoluene, and entering the agricultural chemical
intermediate field. Mononitrotoluene can generate PNT, ONT
and MNT through chemical process at the same time. PNT is the
major raw material for DSD Acid production, while for ONT, its
primary application is for the production of OT. A majority of ONT
and OT are used to produce agricultural chemicals, particularly for
herbicides. We successfully secured the upstream raw material
supplies of DSD Acid, and stabilized its price through production
of mononitrotoluene, and further expanded product portfolio to
agricultural chemical intermediates ONT and OT, so as to expand
market share. Since an increasing number of individual farms
are expected to be replaced by large-scale modern farms, the
usage of agricultural chemicals is expected to have a substantial
increase. MNT can also be applied in other industries such
as the dye and pigment industry and pharmaceutical industry.
The global production volume of mononitrotoluene increased
from approximately 265.0 kilo tons in 2011 to approximately
357.4 kilo tons in 2016, with an annual compound growth rate
of approximately 6.2%. It is expected that the global production
volume will reach approximately 445.2 kilo tons by 2020.

In order to enhance the Group’s business strength and expand
product structure, the Group entered into the OBA Assets Leasing
Agreement with Xiajin Zhenhua Chemical & Technology Company
Limited in December 2016, pursuant to which, the Group leased
the assets and facilities in relation to the production of OBA for
textile printing and dyeing and OBA for detergent, starting from
January 2017. Production facilities owned by the Group are mainly
located at Dongguang, Hebei Province and Dongying, Shandong
Province of the PRC. We are now building a new production plant
in Dongying, Shandong Province of the PRC.
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Since completion of acquisition of Tsaker Dongao by the Group
in July 2016, the Group’s comparative figures for the year ended
31 December 2015 are to be restated, in accordance with the
requirements under Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations”, to include the operating
results of Tsaker Dongao as if the current group structure had been
in existence through out the years since the date when Tsaker
Dongao became under common control with the Group.
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2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(Audited) (Audited)
(=) (= =x)
(Restated)
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLLFE (&%)
REVENUE Wz 1,041,142 880,270
GROSS PROFIT EX 293,605 267,331
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 120,921 97,470
Profit attributable to: FEAd = F
Owners of the parent BRABEEB A 120,921 97,470
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBRERESA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: BihERER
AR%RVB) IPONELIGUE)
— Basic and diluted - EAXREE 0.247T 0.227T

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,041.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB160.9 million or 18.3% comparing
with that in the same period of 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB293.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB26.3 million or 9.8% comparing
with that in the same period of 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB120.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB23.5 million or 24.1% comparing
with that in the same period of 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, basic and diluted earnings
per share of the Group amounted to approximately RMBO0.24,
representing an increase of approximately RMBO0.02 or 9.1%
comparing with that in the same period of 2015.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.073 per share, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.

The Board recommended to issue bonus shares on the basis of
one new share credited as fully paid for every one share held by
the Shareholders, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.
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Operating results - Summary

Turnover

Gross profit

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Balance sheet - Summary

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Financial ratio

Gross profit margin

Net profit margin

Return on equity")

Current ratio®

Net debt to equity ratio®
Inventory turnover days®

Trade receivables turnover days®
Trade payables turnover days®
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Five-Year Financial Summary

2016
=
RMB'000
ARBF T

1,041,142
293,605
120,921

120,921

1,013,486
926,247
1,939,733

716,947
261,801
960,985

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements have been
restated due to business combination under common control of

Tsaker Dongao.

HEt-A=t-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2015 2014 2013 2012
“F-BF  E-MF SF-=F SF-C
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR%TR
(Restated) ~ (Restated)
(E50)* (E50)*
880,270 920,817 863,969 830,161
267,331 341,659 257,033 235,958
97,470 169,736 132,988 128,689
97,470 144,089 109,440 103,459
849,555 592,984 267,029 255,077
891,027 348,870 483,577 586,214
1,740,582 941,854 750,606 841,291
869,674 571,920 396,187 416,035
8,356 37,836 28,931 37,252
862,552 332,098 325,488 388,004
30.4% 37.1% 29.8% 28.4%
11.1% 18.4% 15.4% 15.5%
16.3% 51.6% 37.3% 35.6%
1.02 0.61 1.22 1.41
36.8% 33.6% 40.9% 65.3%
46 52 51 49
59 44 47 46
139 109 58 38
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Notes:

(1)

Return on equity is derived by dividing net profit by total equity,
where total equity is the average beginning and ending balances
of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated at interest-bearing loans
and other financial liabilities at the end of the period divided by
the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by dividing
the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the opening and
closing balance of inventory of a given period) by cost of sales
and multiplied by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade receivables turnover days for a certain period is derived
by dividing the average trade receivables (the arithmetic mean of
the opening and closing balance of trade receivables of a given
period) by revenue and multiplied by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade payables turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average trade payables (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of trade payables of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days in the
relevant period.
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report the results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Reviewing 2016, China’s urbanization continued, which has
promoted consumption drive economic development. In 2016,
the actual growth of the disposable income per capita amounted
to approximately RMB23,821M V) representing an increase
of approximately 6.3% year on year, and the CPI rose by
approximately 2.0%®° 2 year on year. Along with the increase
in spending power of the people, the demand for energy, food,
clothing, vehicles and daily necessities increased, which promoted
demand for fine chemical products, including dye intermediates,
pigment intermediates and agricultural chemical intermediates.

With the great market momentum of the fine chemical,
Tsaker Chemical further deepened the implementation of
the development plan of upstream and downstream product
integration during the year. By virtue of our scale production
advantage, besides consolidating market shares of major
products such as DSD Acid, DMSS and DMAS, we also quickly
seized agricultural chemical intermediates market, ONT and OT
which further enhanced the leading position of the Group in fine
chemicals industry. According to Frost & Sullivan, since Tsaker
Chemical has become the world’s third mononitrotoluene producer
within one year since the 2015, which accounted for approximately
18.8% of the world’s market share. Production volume of DSD
Acid and DMSS continued ranking the first in the world, and
accounted for approximately 53.0% and 42.7% respectively of the
world’s market. We were also ranked second in the world for the
production of DMAS, which accounted for approximately 19.8% of
the world’s market share.
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However, the price of raw materials for major products has
increased, which was affected by the continuously increased
petrotroleum price. As the Group adopted a pricing model of cost
plus and sales contracts were signed on a quarterly basis, it was
unable to raise the unit price in time to compensate the rise in the
production cost. But benefited from the expansion of upstream
and downstream products strategy, we successfully expanded
the product and our market share, and the orders grew steadily
during the Review Year, Sales volume in general increased by
approximately 18.3% as compared with last year, to approximately
RMB1,041.1 million (2015 (restated): RMB880.3 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 4 May 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
of Tsaker Dongao from Huage Holdings, at a consideration of
RMB17,361,000. During the Review Year, all the necessary
approval for registration procedures of equity transfer of Tsaker
Dongao were completed.

Tsaker Chemical, as the leading enterprise for production of
fine chemicals of dye intermediates and pigment intermediates,
has covered upstream and downstream product chain of fine
chemicals industry. The Group strived to enrich income source
through establishment of sound industrial network, convergence
of fine chemical products, which have high growth potential
and high correlation, to enlarge revenue sources and bring in
synergies. In 2016, major product, namely DSD Acid, was still the
largest contributor in revenue. After commencing production of
new product of mononitrotoluene, the revenue derived from the
sales of DSD Acid decreased from approximately 62.7% in 2015
(restated) to approximately 46.3% in 2016, which has contributed
revenue of approximately RMB482.2 million. During the Review
Year, affected by the increase in the raw material price, such as
benzene, coal and iron powder, the production costs of DSD Acid
increased. But the sales price did not grow along with the raw
material price to compensate such gap, which caused gross profit
margin of such sector decreased by approximately 9.4 percentage
points to approximately 25.9%.
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Since the Group has successfully developed agricultural chemical
intermediates market, this sector has became the second largest
revenue contributor, and partially offset the revenue decrease in
DSD Acid. Revenue derived from the sales of mononitrotoluene
accounted for approximately 34.7%, contributed approximately
RMB361.5 million. Together with demands for agricultural
chemicals (including herbicides) steadily increased, sales volume
from agricultural chemical intermediates sector increased by
approximately 116.3% significantly to approximately 37,851
tons, gross profit margin increased by approximately 17.5
percentage points to approximately 26.1%. Mononitrotoluene,
which commenced production in 2015, with a production capacity
of 40,000 tons and was nearly fully utilised. In view of this, the
Group has successfully expanded the production capacity of
mononitrotoluene to 80,000 tons in 2016, to enhance its market
expansion.

The third largest revenue contributor of the Group was the pigment
intermediates, The revenue in general accounted for 19.0%, which
contributed revenue of approximately RMB197.4 million, while
sales volume remained stable during the Review Year, amounting
to 6,482 tons. Gross profit margin increased by 3.9 percentage
points to approximately 40.4%. In order to continue enhancing
the bargaining power in pigment intermediates market, the Group
carried out plans to expand production capacity, by increasing
production capacity of DMAS from 1,500 tons to 4,500 tons, and
increasing production capacity of DATA from 1,000 tons to 1,400
tons, which has completed by the end of 2016 and the beginning
of 2017, respectively.

The Group has diversified its product mix, which is beneficial for
the Group to maintain stable revenue and margin in the long run.
During the Review Year, the depreciation of the Renminbi was
accelerated and the exchange loss was estimated to be around
RMB15.4 million. During the Review Year, profit attributable
to owners of the parent for the period increased by 24.1% to
approximately RMB120.9 million (2015 (restated): approximately
RMB97.5 million), as compared with 2015, whereas basic and
diluted earnings per share were RMB0.24 (2015 (restated):
RMBO0.22).
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CONTINUOUS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AND PRODUCT OPTIMIZATION

Furthermore, we are in a better position than our competitors
in producing quality and competitive products to meet industry
requirement as our production as well as research and
development technologies have been in a leading position in the
industry. At our production base in Hebei and Shandong, PRC, we
carry out internal research and development to constantly upgrade
the production process. Since our establishment, we have insisted
on doing research and development by ourselves and upgrading
production process to keep our production costs at a lower level.
At present, our production bases’ technologies are at the highest
levels worldwide.

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
MULTICHANNEL COMMUNICATION

We have endeavoured to maximize our Shareholders’ value. Since
our Listing, we implemented our corporate governance policies
and sought to comply with the relevant provisions of the corporate
governance code and corporate governance report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules strictly to ensure all decisions
were made on the principles of trust and fairness and in an open
and transparent manner, so as to protect the interests of all
Shareholders. We value the importance of corporate governance
and will continue reviewing and monitoring our corporate
governance practices to ensure the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.

We have proactive policies to receive the valuable opinions and
suggestions from Shareholders and investors. Through our capital
market department, we maintain our investor relations by regular
and irregular interactions with investment institutions to ensure
prompt communication and understanding. We also published our
significant business progress and events through press releases
and announcements in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations on our website to ensure our latest information,
messages and reports are available for inspection and perusal for
the Shareholders and investors in time.
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TO ASSUME CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

We put emphasis on corporate social responsibilities and have
been, and intended to, remain committed to environmental, health
and safety protection in all of our business activities and gratefully
embraced our social responsibilities. We have all relevant permits,
licenses and approvals relating to environmental and safety
production in all material respects. In addition, we have obtained
and maintained Quality Management System 1ISO9001:2008,
Environmental Management System ISO14001:2004 and
Occupational Health Safety Management System GB/T28001-
2011 for our management systems.

We have consistently concerned with staffs growth and
development. We secure talents to satisfy the middle to long-
term strategic development of our personnel structure and
hierarchy through continuous nurturing mechanisms. In addition,
we are also concerned with staffs’ families. By establishing good
corporate culture and a system designated for the well-being of
staff members which are conducive to their sense of belonging, we
make continuous optimisation and innovations to offer a variety of
benefits to every staff.

We will continue to adhere to our business principles of providing
chemicals of high quality and specifications to global customers
and promoting social responsibility. We believe that our relentless
pursuit of these goals will lead to sustainable growth, solidify
our leadership and create long-term value for our Shareholders,
employees and communities.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Looking into 2017, China’s policy focus on promoting the
development of petrochemical industry, the government released
“Outline of the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan for the National
Economic and Social Development of the People’s Republic of
China” in 2016, Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
also released the “Petrochemical and chemical industry
development plan” (2016 to 2020), both strongly support the
development of important pilliar of petrochemical industry, to
promote industry integration and development. Coupled with the
Chinese government’s support of the new towns construction,
it is expected that China’s urbanization rate will exceed 60% in
2020 and the overall spending power of society will grow more
than 120% Mt 3) Therefore, we believe the market demand for
dye intermediates and pigment intermediates will continue to rise.
At the same time, the State Council will continue to promote the
modern agriculture development. The target grain output in 2020
will increase from 500 million tons in 2016 to 550 million tons in
2020 ™ot 3 The Group will fully grasp the market opportunities,
vigorously cultivate agricultural chemical intermediates market,
and strive to become the market leader.

Facing such huge market opportunity, Tsaker Chemical will
continue establishing our industrial network among the three
sectors of high correlation: dye intermediates, agricultural
intermediates, pigment intermediates, to explore the potential
upstream and downstream products projects deeply, in order to
capture both upstream and downstream customers of the three
sectors, so as to strengthen market position of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

RE R R

REZZ—+tF  PEBRREHEDH AL
EXBR FREBFR-ZT-AFHX
[BREBENHEBRRET=ELFRE
ME] TXENMERABTMH BN
LBIXRERERE] (ZZ2-—REZZT-F
F) MARIXBREALERE—EZE
XA EEBITERERERE - MEPEK
RXEHBEHERZR B2 2FF
RSB RiGHBIB60%  HEEERHE
BENAE R 120% LA £ &9 o B FIEE
mEHRANPEREREANTEENTERS
SE LT o EILER - BB AEEREER
RIEBEERE  BER-Z-ZFHIRY
EE BH-FT-AFHNEMEE_FT_
TEWNE5EM =Y - AEBGT D ILEL
MISHE  KOEMERETHEDS
FMRBTIGHEHE o

HEEANTSEE  EELBBETES
BEANEXEN EEBMESHN=AR
B RMPEE  REDEE > BENTE
EREZABINETHERER  #E=
RBRNETHEF  ZEAEENTS
Hofis o



The Group developed the upstream products, mononitrotoluene, in
order to secure the supply of raw materials of major product DSD
Acid. Since agricultural chemical intermediates ONT and OT are
also generated from mononitrotoluene, therefore the Group can be
benefited from synergy effect, and entered agricultural chemical
intermediates market. Based on this successful expansion of
industrial chain, we will continue developing fine chemical products
with high-growth potential, and in-depth extending to upstream and
downstream products and expanding penetration to the relevant
market. At the end of 2016, the Group leased the OBA Assets,
and entered the OBA market which is downstream product of DSD
Acid, and commenced production of OBA for textile printing and
dyeing and OBA for detergent. In 2017, the Group announced
the acquisition of 75% equity interest in Ynnovate Sanzheng
(Yingkou) Fine Chemicals Co, Ltd., a leading company in the field
of cyanuric chloride, to develop the business of cyanuric chloride,
which is the major raw material of OBA. Since cyanuric chloride
and DSD Acid, are major raw materials of OBA, by strategically
introducing cyanuric chloride production, we will further control
the raw material of OBA and the competitiveness of the Group’s
products will be enhanced. Also, downstream of cyanuric chloride
also applies to agricultural chemical intermediates, so this project
will result in synergies with our existing agricultural chemical
intermediates ONT/OT, which will expand the Group’s market
share and influence the agricultural chemical intermediates
market. Fine chemical products are closely related, when we are
searching for mergers and acquisitions projects, we will consider
its correlated advantages, in order to bring long-term benefits for
the development of the Group.

Despite all the opportunities in China’s fine chemical market, we
also concern about the industry changes and challenges. China’s
Ministry of Industry and Information described Chinese chemical
industry is transforming and upgrading, The market demand
for green, safety, cost-effective fine chemical productions are
increasing®™°4. With continued environmental pollution, chemistry
companies are facing more stringent monitoring measures. With
excellent environmental protection technology, Tsaker Chemical
has been able to stand out in the industry and will continue
improving production technology in 2017, to make it more
environmental friendly.
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We insist to improve the efficiency of production technology and
environmental protection standards to be more competitive and
compete for greater market share. In the fine chemical industry,
where challenges and opportunities coexist, we expect the market
consolidation will continue in 2017. Enterprises with stronger
strength in general will be further strengthened and the quality
of market competitors will be improved. The management team
of Tsaker Chemical will actively look for any potential merge and
acquisition opportunities in the market, build an industrial network,
enrich the product portfolio, develop overseas markets including
India, Russia and North and South America, further consolidate
the Group’s position as the world’s leader of fine chemicals.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude
to our business partners, customers and the Shareholder for their
support, and to thank the contributions from our management team
and all staff members during the past years for contribution to the
development of the Group. We believe that, with our dedication
and efforts, the Group will achieve further success in the future.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi
29 March 2017
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(Note 1)

(Note 2)

(Note 3)

(Note 4)

The National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of
China released “2016 stable increase in national residents’
income and further improvement of resident consumption” on
20 January 2017, which mentioned that in 2016, the disposable
income per capita amounted to RMB23,821, representing
nominal growth of 8.4% increase over the previous year, after
deducting price factors, the actual growth of 6.3%.

The National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of
China released the “Explanation of CPI, PPI data of December
2016 by Sheng Guoging, Senior Statistician of National Bureau
of Statistics City Division” on 10 January 2017, which mentioned
that in 2016, the CPI rose by 2.0% year on year, representing an
increase of 0.6 percentage points as compared with 2015.

The State Council released “National Agricultural Modernization
Plan (2016-2020)” on 17 October 2016, which mentioned that
the combined production capacity of food (grain) will increase
from 500 million tons in 2015 to 550 million tons in 2020.

The Ministry of Industry and Information of the People’s Republic
of China released “Petrochemical and chemical industry
development plan (2016-2010)” on 18 October 2016, which
mentioned that China’s urbanization rate is about 56% in 2015,
and it is expected that it will be more than 60% by 2020. At the
same time, by 2020, China will fully build into a well-off society,
the per capita income of residents will be doubled as compared
with 2010, the overall social spending power will grow by more
than 120%, residents’ consumption habits will be changed from
the “ Food-type” to “Development-type”, demands for green,
safety, cost-effective high-end petrochemical chemical products
will be more than the traditional industries.

(&£1)

(5%2)

(5%3)

(5%4)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group produces a number of fine chemicals, such as dye,
pigment and agricultural chemical intermediates. During the
Review Year, the Group leased assets for the production of
optical brightening agents (“OBA”) from Xiajin Zhenhua Chemical
& Technology Company Limited (2B IRELEREERA
A]) (“Xiajin Zhenhua”). Such assets have already been put into
operation in January 2017, which marked the Group’s official entry
into the market of OBA for textile printing and dyeing and OBA for
detergent.

To enlarge market share and enhance the Group’s market
position, the Group has doubled the production capacity for
mononitrotoluene, from 40,000 tons to 80,000 tons and became
the world’s third mononitrotoluene producer, accounting for
about 18.8% of the market share. The Group also completed the
production capacity expansion for DMAS in the year, a yellow
pigment intermediates, to satisfy the market demand and bring
greater revenue growth for the Company.

As the nature and quality of the dye and pigment intermediates
directly affect the colour of end products, such products cannot
be easily replaced in the supply chain of international chemicals
producers. By virtue of the consistently high quality of its products,
the Group has maintained good business relationship with its
customers which is over ten years on average.

The key customers of the Group were international chemical
producers and the top five largest customers of the Group
accounted for a total of approximately 28.9% of the revenue of
the Group for the Review Year (2015 (Restated): approximately
32.5%). The Group has a well-established sales network, which
covers Asia, Europe, North and South Americas. For the Review
Year, revenue derived from the Group’s sales in China accounted
for approximately 67.9%; India accounted for approximately
10.3%; Germany accounted for approximately 4.9%; the United
States of America , Indonesia and other regions accounted for
approximately 4.7%, 2.8% and 9.4% respectively, by regional
distribution.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, revenue of the Group increased by 18.3%
to approximately RMB1,041.1 million (2015 (Restated): RMB880.3
million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in
sales volume and unit price of agricultural chemical intermediates.
Tsaker Chemical increased its investment in agricultural chemical
intermediates sector during the Review Year, with sectoral
production capacity increasing to 80,000 tons, so as to satisfy the
market demands. The additional production capacity was almost
fully utilised, which led to a significant increase in the sales volume
and revenue of agricultural chemical intermediates. Meanwhile, as
the fourth quarter was traditionally a sales peak season, coupled
with the early arrival of the Lunar New Year in 2017 as compared
with previous years, customers increased their product purchase
much earlier than before, leading to a significant increase in the
sales of agricultural chemical intermediates in December 2016.

As for gross profit, since the revenue percentage of mononitrotoluene
has increased, and its gross profit is lower than that of dye and
pigment intermediates, it led to the decrease of the average gross
profit. Together with the rising prices of the raw materials in the
second half of 2016, the production cost increased. However,
since our sales contracts were signed quarterly, the unit price
increase of the raw materials was not reflected in the performance
for the Review Year. So the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately 9.8%, amounting to RMB293.6 million (2015
(Restated): approximately RMB267.3 million), while gross
profit margin decreased to approximately 28.2% compared to
approximately 30.4% for the same period of last year.

On the other hand, due to the more rapid depreciation of the
Renminbi during the Reporting Period, leading to an exchange
loss of approximately RMB15.4 million, which had a negative
impact on net profit. Net profit of the Group for the whole year
increased by approximately 24.1% to approximately RMB120.9
million (2015 (Restated): approximately RMB97.5 million); net
profit margin remained stable at approximately 11.6% (2015
(Restated): approximately 11.1%); basic earnings per share was
approximately RMBO0.24 (2015 (Restated): RMB0.22).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DSD Acid and other dye intermediates — accounting for
approximately 46.3% of total revenue (2015 (Restated):
approximately 62.7%)

According to the data compiled by Frost & Sullivan, the Group
is the largest manufacturer of DSD acid in the world in terms of
production capacity in 2016 with a market share of approximately
53.0% by production volume in 2016.

During the Review Year, the price of raw material of DSD acid
has increased along with the oil price. As the Group adopted a
pricing model of cost markup and sales contracts were signed
on a quarterly basis, it was unable to raise the unit price in time
to compensate the increase in production costs. With the sales
contract renewed, the Group will increase the price of DSD acid
gradually.

Besides, there was an oversupply of PNT in the market, which is
the raw material of DSD acid. As the largest purchaser of PNT in
the world, since the Group started to produce mononitrotoluene,
demand for PNT has declined in the market, which led to
overstocking of PNT and some producers had to sell their PNT
at much lower prices. Since PNT is an upstream product of DSD
acid, a drop in PNT price would lead to lower DSD acid cost. In
order to maintain its product competitiveness, the selling price
of DSD acid was adjusted downward by the Group accordingly.
Meanwhile, although the PNT price maintained relatively low, the
Group has gained more revenue and profit from higher priced
ONT. It proves that the Group’s strategy can bring more benefit for
the Shareholders.

In light of the above factors, revenue derived from the sale of
DSD acid and other intermediates decreased by approximately
12.7% to approximately RMB482.2 million as compared to the
restated figure in 2015, accounting for approximately 46.3% of
total revenue. Due to the pressure on product price, gross profit
margin of the sector also dropped to approximately 25.9% (2015
(Restated): 35.3%). During the Review Year, sales volume in
the sector remained stable, amounting to 33,018 tons (2015
(Restated): 33,304 tons).
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The purchase prices of the major raw materials of DSD acid were
affected by the movement in the price of petroleum. The fluctuation
in the price of petroleum will also affect the sale prices of DSD
acid. Benefitted from the agreement reached among members of
the Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries (‘OPEC”) to cut
oil production in November 2016, WTI oil price was maintained at
around US$53 per barrel at the end of 2016. As the oil price has
stablised gradually, the Group has increased the sales price for
DSD acid and other dye intermediates at the beginning of 2017 to
reflect the price growth in raw materials.

DMSS and other pigment intermediates — accounting for
19.0% of total revenue (2015 (Restated): 21.1%)

According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group is the world’s largest
DMSS manufacturer in terms of production capacity in 2016,
accounting for approximately 42.7% of the market share by
production volume in 2016. The Group is also the major producer
of pigment intermediate, namely Dimethyl acetylsuccinate
(“DMAS”), with production capacity ranking second in the world.

During the Review Year, as the purchase cost decreased steadily,
the average price of DMSS and other pigment intermediate
decreased by approximately 6.6% from approximately RMB32,606
(Restated) per ton in 2015 to approximately RMB30,460 per
ton. The increased market share of the Group resulting in an
increase in the sales volume to approximately 6,482 tons (2015
(Restated): 5,690 tons) during the Review Year, which offset
the impact of the decline in selling price. Revenue of the sector
in 2016 was approximately RMB197.4 million, representing an
increase of approximately 6.4% as compared with last year. Also,
the reduction in cost was more than that of the increase in selling
price, which led to an increase of the average gross profit margin
by approximately 3.9 percentage points to approximately 40.4%
(2015 (Restated): 36.5%).

The Group has completed the production capacity expansion of
DMAS to 4,500 tons in the Review Year. It enhanced the product’s
profitability and well prepared for the Group’s market expansion.
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Mononitrotoluene, OT and others — accounting for
approximately 34.7% of total revenue (2015 (Restated):
16.2%)

In order to achieve the upstream and downstream product
integration, the Group began to produce mononitrotoluene in
2015, and quickly secured an important position in the agricultural
chemical intermediates market. The Group increased the
production capacity of mononitrotoluene to 80,000 tons in March
2016. With smooth production and operation, the profitability of
the product met the expectation of the Group. Sales volume of
mononitrotoluene during the Review Year increased significantly
by approximately 116.3% to approximately 37,851 tons.

After the Group began to produce mononitrotoluene on its
own, external purchase of PNT by the Group decreased by
approximately 85%, which led to an oversupply of PNT in the
market since the Group was the largest purchaser in the world.
Thus, some enterprises have to reduce or cease their production
or withdraw from business, which speeded up the process of
integration of the industry, and at the same time expanded
the Group’s market share, enhanced its status in the industry
as well as increased its bargaining power. Benefitting from
industry integration, the Group raised the selling price of ONT,
OT and others during the Review Year by approximately 17.1%
from approximately RMB8,153 per ton (Restated) in 2015 to
approximately RMB9,550 per ton, which increased the sector’s
profitability.

With the increase in sales volume and selling price, the agricultural
chemical intermediates sector had an excellent performance
with revenue surging increased approximately 153.4% to
approximately RMB361.5 million compared with that of the same
period in 2015 (Restated). The segment revenue as a proportion
to the total revenue increased significantly by approximately
18.5 percentage points to approximately 34.7%. On the other
hand, gross profit margin of the sector was low at the early stage
of production, and with further optimisation of the production
process, gross profit margin has resumed back to normal in 2016
at approximately 26.1% (2015 (Restated): 8.6%).
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EXPORT

In 2016, the export revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB334.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB49.0 million or 12.8% as compared to the
export revenue of approximately RMB383.5 million in 2015
(Restated). The decrease in export revenue of the Group was
mainly due to the decrease in average sales price of DSD acid and
other dye intermediates.

In 2016, the export revenue attributed approximately 32.1% to the
total revenue of the Group, representing a decline as compared
to approximately 43.6% (Restated) in 2015, mainly due to the fact
that the revenue of mononitrotoluene, OT and other new products
amounting to approximately RMB361.5 million were all derived
from domestic sales in 2016.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has been adhered to the philosophy of production
empowered by research and development and to this end,
it actively input resources and maintained a leading position
in technological aspects in the industry. In 2016, the Group
completed (i) the subsequent process development of small-scale
pilot test and mid-scale pilot test for DSD acid’s by-product; (ii)
optimisation and upgrade of the three existing waste treatment
process to reduce the processing costs; and (iii) a number of
safety and environmental protection projects to improve the level
of safety and environmental protection, and fulfill the regulatory
requirements of upgrading of emission standards.

As for new product development, the Group continued to carry
out research and development on downstream products in the
industrial chain to strengthen the technological capability for future
development. At the same time, in accordance with the established
development strategy, the Group actively invested in new energy
industry which has a great prospect, by introducing new talent and
technology, and completing research and development on lithium
cathode materials, which provided strong technical support to the
Company to enter the emerging industry and expand its product
mix.
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The Group believes that the continuous effort in research and
development and implementation of environmental friendly
production processes will effectively sustain the competitiveness
of the Group in the market and become the driving force for future
growth and development.

OUTLOOK

During the Review Year, the Group continued to seek different
development opportunities and actively enriched product type
and to expand both upstream and downstream. Looking forward
into 2017, due to the volatility of raw material prices and the
advancement of environment protection measures, it is anticipated
that the business environment would be unstable. The Group
believes that by virtue of its high quality products, advanced
technology, together with the experienced management, the
Group will continue to grow steadily. In the future, the Group will
continue to broaden its sales network, optimise the production
process, increase production capacity and enrich product
categories to seek longer and sustainable development.

Firstly, the Group will focus on expanding the sales network of
mononitrotoluene. At present, mononitrotoluene that is produced
by the Group is mainly sold in Mainland China. In order to solicit
more orders, it is expected that the sales network could be
expanded to higher growth regions, such as India, Russia and
North and South Americas. During the Review Year, the Group has
sent product samples to overseas customers to perform various
tests, and the feedback from customers were satisfactory. This
enables us to broaden our customer base, and at the same time
expands our revenue sources of the sector.

On the other hand, the Group puts much emphasis on
environmental protection and will continue to develop more
environmental friendly production processes. Investment in
environmental technology not only can reduce production costs,
but also make contribution to environmental protection. As a
leading fine chemical enterprise, we hope that we can strike
balance between business development and environmental
protection, while setting an example for other companies to reduce
pollution to the environment in order to maintain the sustainable
development of the fine chemical industry.
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Besides the strategies above, the Group is keen to extend
the production chain vertically and horizontal. The Group has
announced in December 2016 that it has leased relevant assets
from Xiajin Zhenhua for OBA production which is used for dyeing
and detergent. It has enabled the Group to extend one of its core
products DSD acid production chain to the downstream industry,
the OBA industry. In February 2017, the Group announced its
intention to acquire 75% equity interest in Ynnovate Sanzheng
(Yingkou) Fine Chemicals Co. Ltd (“Ynnovate Sanzheng”) for
RMB567.0 million to produce cyanuric chloride. Cyanuric chloride
has great connection with the Group’s current products. It is mainly
used for herbicide which belongs to the same kind of product
with our product ONT/OT. Along with DSD acid, they are both the
key raw materials for OBA production. These two cooperations
and acquisitions are not only intended to explore new products
strategically, but also to further implement our long-term objective
of integration of upstream and downstream products, and enhance
the Group’s position as a leading fine chemicals producer in the
world. The Group expects that the two new products would be able
to make positive financial contribution in 2017.

With the steady development of the existing business sectors,
the Group will actively explore new sectors with the help of
the research and development advantage and accumulated
production experiences in the fine chemical industry. With the
arising environmental protection awareness in and outside
China, the demand for materials in the new energy area has
been increased rapidly. The Group planned to extend business
to manufacture materials in the new energy industry to further
broaden the Company’s business, maintain fast growth of the
Group and create more value for the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

In 2016, the revenue and gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB1,041.1 million and approximately RMB293.6 million,
respectively, representing an increase of approximately
RMB160.9 million and approximately RMB26.3 million or 18.3%
and 9.8% from approximately RMB880.3 million (Restated) and
approximately RMB267.3 million (Restated), respectively, in 2015.
In 2016, the gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
28.2%, as compared to approximately 30.4% in 2015. The
decrease in the Group’s gross profit margin was mainly due to the
price of raw materials of DSD acid and other dye intermediates
rose in the second half of 2016 but the sales price did not reflect
the price increase of raw materials, and the revenue proportion
of mononitrotoluene, OT and others (the gross profit margins
of which were relatively lower) in the Group’s overall revenue
enlarged.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

In 2016, the net profit of the Group was approximately RMB120.9
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB23.5
million or 24.1%, as compared to approximately RMB97.5 million
(Restated) for 2015. In 2016, the net profit margin of the Group
was approximately 11.6%, as opposed to approximately 11.1%
(Restated) for 2015.

Selling and distribution expenses

In 2016, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB38.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB4.8 million, as compared to approximately
RMB34.1 million (Restated) in 2015. The increase in selling and
distribution expenses was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in the sales volume of mononitrotoluene, OT and others,
leading to higher transportation fees, packaging fees and handling
fees.

In 2016, selling expenses represented approximately 3.7% of the
Group’s revenue (2015 (Restated): approximately 3.9%).
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2016, administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB90.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB7.3 million, as compared to approximately RMB97.9 million
(Restated) in 2015. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the listing expenses recognised in 2015.

In 2016, administrative expenses represented approximately 8.7%
of the Group’s revenue (2015 (Restated): approximately 11.1%).

FINANCE COSTS

In 2016, finance costs amounted to approximately RMB10.3
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB3.0 million,
as compared to approximately RMB7.3 million (Restated) in 2015,
mainly attributable to the increase of bank loans.

EXCHANGE LOSS

In 2016, exchange loss of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB15.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB11.2 million, as compared to approximately RMB4.2 million
(Restated) for 2015, mainly due to the depreciation of Renminbi
(“RMB”) against United States Dollars (“‘USD”) which led to an
exchange loss in offshore RMB time deposits.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are generally subject to the
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%.

In 2016, income tax expenses amounted to approximately
RMB33.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB10.4 million, as compared to approximately RMB43.9 million
(Restated) in 2015. The decrease in income tax expenses was
mainly attributable to the fact that (i) Tsaker Dongying recorded
profit before tax in 2016 which utilised the tax losses it generated in
the previous years, resulting in a decrease in the Group’s taxable
profit as compared with 2015; and (ii) profit before tax in 2016
attributed by Tsaker Cangzhou and Tsaker Dongguang decreased
as compared with the same in 2015.
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CASH FLOWS

In 2016, net cash flows from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB171.3 million, as compared with
approximately RMB87.5 million (Restated) in 2015, representing
an increase of approximately RMB83.8 million. Such increase
was mainly due to in 2015, the Group prepaid income tax and
settled income tax for the year 2014, and the profit before
taxation recorded by Tsaker Dongying compensated loss in the
previous year, resulting income tax expense for 2016 decreased
by approximately RMB79.6 million as compared with 2015. In
addition, interest income incurred from foreign RMB time deposits
in 2016 increased by approximately RMB9.6 million as compared
with that of 2015.

In 2016, net cash flows from investing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB248.1 million, as compared with
approximately RMB321.4 million (Restated) in 2015, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB73.3 million, mainly due to the
reduced expenses on the new production plant built by Tsaker
Dongying and the purchase of machinery and equipment.

In 2016, net cash flows from financing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB270.3 million, as compared with
approximately RMB326.5 million (Restated) in 2015, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB56.2 million, mainly due to (i)
the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings and external
guarantees increased by approximately RMB77.8 million in
2016, as compared with 2015; (ii) the net amount of funds paid
to related parties increased by approximately RMB102.9 million
in 2016, as compared with 2015; and (iii) payment of dividend of
approximately RMB31.1 million in 2016.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2016, the daily working capital of the Group primarily derived
from internal cash flow generated from operations and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had (i) cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB396.7 million, in
which approximately RMB191.8 million was denominated in RMB
and approximately RMB204.9 million in other currencies (USD
and HKD) (as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately
RMB194.2 million, in which approximately RMB140.1 million was
denominated in RMB and approximately RMB54.1 million in other
currencies (USD and HKD)); (ii) restricted cash of RMB72.5 million
(as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately RMB300.5
million); and (iii) interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
RMB481.6 million with interest rate of 3.92%-7.60% per annum, in
which approximately RMB241.6 million shall be repayable within
one year (as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately
RMB317.3 million with interest rate of 4.35%-8.40% per annum,
repayable within one year). As at 31 December 2016, HK$20.0
million of banking facilities were unutilised by the Group.

In 2016, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or have
any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 43.9% as compared to approximately 36.8% as
at 31 December 2015 (Restated), which is calculated at interest-
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the period
divided by the total equity.
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CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, total current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB926.2 million (as at 31 December
2015 (Restated): approximately RMB891.0 million), primarily
consisting of inventories of approximately RMB81.8 million (as at
31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately RMB79.2 million),
trade receivables and bills of approximately RMB281.0 million
(as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately RMB235.6
million), prepayments and other receivables of approximately
RMB94.2 million (as at 31 December 2015 (Restated):
approximately RMB67.8 million), cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB396.7 million (as at 31 December 2015
(Restated): approximately RMB194.2 million) and restricted cash
of approximately RMB72.5 million (as at 31 December 2015
(Restated): approximately RMB300.5 million).

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials,
work-in-progress and finished products. The turnover days for
inventories decreased from 46 days (Restated) for 2015 to 39
days for 2016, mainly due to enhanced ordinary management
of inventory levels and proper arrangements for procurement,
production, and sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables and bills of the
Group significantly increased by approximately RMB45.5 million
as compared to those of last year, mainly due to the successful
commencement of production of an additional production line with
capacity of 40,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene at Tsaker Dongao
in March 2016 which led to a significant increase in the production
and sales volume of products such as ONT/OT, in particular during
the traditional peak season of ONT/OT in the fourth quarter.

The turnover days for trade receivables and bills increased from 59
days (Restated) for 2015 to 65 days for 2016.

As at 15 March 2017, approximately RMB145.0 million or 70.2% of
the trade receivables outstanding as at 31 December 2016 were
settled.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016, prepayments and other receivables
of the Group increased by approximately RMB26.4 million from
approximately RMB67.8 million (Restated) in aggregate as at 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB94.2 million in aggregate.
Such increase was mainly due to an increase in the prepaid value
added tax of approximately RMB25.4 million.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, total current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB716.9 million (as at 31 December
2015 (Restated): approximately RMB869.7 million), primarily
consisting of trade payables of approximately RMB256.5 million
(as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately RMB250.4
million), other payables and accruals of approximately RMB199.2
million (as at 31 December 2015 (Restated): approximately
RMB301.9 million) and interest-bearing bank borrowings of
approximately RMB241.6 million (as at 31 December 2015
(Restated): approximately RMB317.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TRADE PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade payables decreased from 139 days
(Restated) in 2015 to 124 days in 2016, mainly due to the decrease
of construction costs included in trade payables of Tsaker
Dongying as at 31 December 2016, as compared to the same as
at 31 December 2015.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2016, other payables and accruals of the
Group decreased by approximately RMB102.7 million from
approximately RMB301.9 million (Restated) in aggregate as of 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB199.2 million in aggregate,
mainly due to the amount due to related parties being settled after
completion of the acquisition of Tsaker Dongao in 2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s buildings, lands
and deposit account with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB118.7 million (as at 31 December 2015 (Restated):
approximately RMB320.0 million) were pledged to secure bank
loans granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 4 May 2016, Tsaker Dongying and Huage Holdings entered
into an agreement in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Tsaker Dongao, pursuant to which Tsaker Dongying
has conditionally agreed to acquire and Huage Holdings has
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests in Tsaker
Dongao at a consideration of RMB17,361,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,668,000). On 18 July 2016, all the approval
and change in industrial and administrative registration procedures
of equity transfer of Tsaker Dongao were completed.

Details of the acquisition were set out in the announcement of the

Company dated on 4 May 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had made an
investment of approximately RMB18.3 million in private equity fund
in Tibet Winshare Equity Venture Capital Fund Partnership.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 February 2017, the Company entered into memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU”) with legally binding with Mr. Liu
Zhixun (2]Z%) and Ynnovate Sanzheng, pursuant to which the
Company (or through its designated subsidiary) intends to acquire
(the “Proposed Acquisition”), and Mr. Liu Zhixun intends to sell
or procure to sell, 75% equity interest in Ynnovate Sanzheng
pursuant to the terms and conditions agreed by the parties to the
MOU. Subject of adjustment as stated in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 February 2017 and the terms of the formal
agreement, the consideration shall be RMB567.0 million, which
comprises (a) RMB280.0 million in cash; and (b) RMB287.0 million
to be settled by the issue of consideration shares.

Details of the MOU is set out in the announcement of the Company
into dated 10 February 2017. No official agreement regarding the
Proposed Acquisition has been entered into as at the date of this
announcement. Further announcement(s) will be made when the
official agreement is executed according to the Listing Rules.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group mainly related to its operating activities. Along with the
continuous expansion of the export business scale, the operation
of the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of fluctuation
in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange risk of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currency in place. However, the Board will remain alert to any
relevant risk and, if necessary, consider to hedge any material
potential foreign exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established its human resources policies and
procedures with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards
of the remuneration system which include a wide range of training
and personal development programs to the employees.

In 2016, in order to achieve the vision and strategies of the
Group, the Group implemented a talent excellence project. To
raise staff awareness on safety and environmental protection and
new national regulations and requirements regarding the safety
and environmental protection, the Group organised relevant
training to facilitate prompt deficiency identification and active
measures for mitigating relevant risks and strengthening relevant
management. In addition, training on supplier management and
sale management sectors were provided to employees.

The remuneration package offered to the employees was in line
with their duties and the prevailing market terms. Staff benefits,
including pension fund, medical coverage, provident funds, etc.,
were also provided to employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 1,613 employees
(Restated 2015: 1,442).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total staff costs of
the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and
provident funds) amounted to approximately RMB101.6 million
(Restated 2015: RMB104.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
LISTING

Trading of the shares of the Company on the main board of the
Stock Exchange commenced on 3 July 2015. The net proceeds
from the Listing amounted to approximately RMB378.8 million. The
proceeds are used as the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 23 June 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the proceeds of
approximately RMB37.1 million, RMB189.4 million, RMB21.2
million and RMB18.9 million have been used as the supplemental
working capital, to expansion of production capacity, development
of the new products and the rental payment of Phase | and Phase
Il of Tsaker Dongao, respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Review Year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in a total amount of RMB1 million.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Tsaker Chemical” or the “Group”)
published the first Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (ESG Report). The purpose of this report is to
convey the management approaches, sustainability
strategies and key performances of the reporting period with
stakeholders. The Group is committed to offering chemical
products including dye, pigments and agriculture chemical
intermediates in good quality and strives to reduce its impact
on the environment in the course of operations and enhance
the working environment safety.

The Group has undertaken multiple shareholder
engagements and activities to effectively determine material
aspects related to the Group’s sustainable development.
The Group has appointed Allied Environmental Consultants
Limited (“AEC”) during this reporting period to assist in
materiality assessment and ESG Report preparation.

The Board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company has reviewed and approved this ESG Report
after their discussion with the relevant management of the
Group regarding the effectiveness of the corporate social
responsibility policies. The Board would like to express its
sincere gratitude to the management of the Group and all
the staff for their hard work and dedication, in contributing to
this report and to the environmental and social performances
throughout the year.

1.1 Reporting Guideline

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide, as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing The Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
Information regarding Corporate Governance is
addressed in the annual report according to Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

1. ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)

1.2

1.3

Reporting Scope

The reporting period follows the Group’s financial year
in 2016 (1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016), unless
otherwise specified. The report includes operating data
related to environmental protection and society.

The scope of this report covers the Tsaker Chemical’'s
major business operating areas: (1) head office located
in Beijing; (2) Tsaker Dongguang, (3) Tsaker Dongying
and (4) Tsaker Cangzhou, unless otherwise specified.

Contact Information

If you have any comments or suggestions on
this report, please contact the investor relations
department at the address below:

6th Floor, Building A, Jiahui International Center, No.14
Jigingli, Chaoyang District, Beijing, China

Tel:

086-10-59796688
Fax:
086-10-64278989-999
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2. TSAKER’S POLICY-TOGETHER WE PAINT A
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

2.1 Tsaker Chemical’s Vision on Sustainable
Development

2.1.1 Company Profile

Tsaker Chemical’s principal business includes
the production of dye, pigment and agriculture
chemical intermediates. The Group’s head office
is located in Beijing, and the production plants
are located at Hebei Cangzhou and Shandong
Dongying, the PRC, respectively. Currently,
the Group owns the largest DSD acid, DMSS
production plants in the world and the third
largest Mononitrotoluene production plant in the
world.

2.1.2 Tsaker’s Vision and Core Philosophy

The Group attaches great importance to
social responsibility as it strives to promote
environmental protection, enhance health and
safety management and contribute to society
through its business operation. The Group
adopts the principle of “Using Green Technology
to Color the World” as the corporate mission,
which aims to integrate the use of greener
technology in the research and development
and production of dyes, pigments and agriculture
chemical intermediates. The Company has
been accredited with Quality standards such
as 1S09001:2008 Quality Control System and
1ISO14001:2004 Environmental Management
System, and GB/T28001-2011 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System to
ensure a high-quality production and operational
procedures are in line with the health and safety
standards.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

2. TSAKER’S POLICY-TOGETHER WE PAINT A
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE (CONTINUED)

2.1 TSAKER'’s Vision on Sustainable Development
(continued)

2.1.3 Sustainability Progress

Beyond the reporting of business and economic
activities, the Group has begun to structure
the reporting of environmental and social
performance in order to better communicate with
the shareholders of the Company on sustainable
development.

The following measures were taken in the
financial year of 2016:

. Writing the Group’s first ESG Report

. Establishing a data collection system for
both environmental and social aspects

. Establishing new goals within the Group’s
sustainable development framework
to further improve the performance of
sustainable development for the year of
2017

2.2 Communicate with our Stakeholders

The Group has carried out a number of activities
with the internal stakeholders, such as organizing
workshops relating to corporate culture, staff meetings
and various types of site visits. The Group invited an
independent third party consultant in 2016 to conduct
an ESG workshop and to conduct stakeholder survey,
both of which provided guidance for the Group to
improve its policies in governing its business operation.

2, PELBOHFH-BFEUHITRE
MBRARR (])

21 EERCEHUEFERE R
=(\)
2.1.3 i ERREE

BRT MERENSEES
o AEBECRBRER
HEEANBE  BEARTF
ERREERDAWAR
BERRAME -

TE-RFHRFENE
B

e BEAEEHEfH
ESG#H%&

. L.L%HFE? IV
WETREBEERY
BERMBWES

c EAKENTESA
BRERNGERN
B B=-F—t
FEE-DIHNET
FEBRNEN

2.2 HEERFMNFNEEE

AEBRANMBFHERET T
ZEE WARERLEL
THH-ETBBRE AT
BEANSEEHE - F5H
EABEFERBTELFE =5
BRI ESG TR URE
nEBERAE  REAEEEL
HERREREESR -

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA

41



RIE - HEREREE
Environment, Social and Governance Report

2. TSAKER’S POLICY-TOGETHER WE PAINT A 2. PELBHAFH-IEFEHTE
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE (CONTINUED) ERERRK (&)

il

2.2 Communicate with our Stakeholders (continued) 22 BHEEMOBFHEERE(E)

by

Figure 1. AEC held ESG workshop for the Group in September 2016
E—.2016F9 AARRERNAREEERNESG TEY

AEC held an internal stakeholder engagement meeting The Group’s department heads actively involved
with Group’s department heads in the stakeholder engagement exercise
TARRBER A AEB S IPIEEET REBBPIETEBBSEEFNETD
REBIFHESEH

Deportment head’s representative presented their Deportment head'’s representative presented their
consenses on materially issues consenses on materially issues
HITERRRBREEENZE BHETEARREEEENRE

Results and feedbacks from the ESG workshop and NEBARESGC TIEHRIEHE
stakeholder surveys served the purpose of identifying RS & R AN B BTIB S 5 M

the material aspects in relation to environmental, social
and governance that affect the Group. A majority of
the employees agreed that the aspects related to

EREAHBENEEZERE - K
BOEIRPEEREMERA

product responsibility and intellectual property rights BRERHENZEHATESR
were of particular importance to the Group’s business —ENEEM - HHABIRE
operation. This indicated that employees attach REASEBENNBERE I
great importance to the Group’s exclusive intellectual HEERERPEERERE -

property rights with regard to its product manufacturing
and development.
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TSAKER’S POLICY-TOGETHER WE PAINT A 2. EELLBMHFH-BFEHTE
SUSTAINABLE FUTURE (CONTINUED) HERERXRXK(#E)

2.2 Communicate with our Stakeholders (continued) 22 BEEMOBFHEERE ()

Figure 2. Investors are being briefed on the production facilities at Tsaker Chemical

B= . ¥ELBERAREESBRNBEERN

For external stakeholders, the Group has held HRIMEBIFHE > AEEER
stakeholder meetings and invited investors for site BRSHEHEE  TBBEERE
visits on its production plants. Starting from 2017, EZ2BAEENEEREM o
the Group will further strengthen its communication —E-tLFEERR AEEE
with different stakeholders. The Group encourages IREARSEOENER - K
stakeholders to provide suggestions and express their SEHBENERRSERSE
views through various communication channels to RERERREER XEF
improve its business operation. HEE -
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REPORT THEME

Tsaker Chemical incorporates the concept of its business
operating procedure in this reporting theme. The report
arrangement resonates with the Group’s principal chemical
production activity which include three important elements:
Selection, Mixing, and Coloring.

Selection

Tsaker Chemical views employees as the Group’s most
important assets and a core element of its development. The
Group extends the selection and recruitment of employees,
where it strives to take care of its employee’s health and
safety and provide a variety of training programs to support
their needs throughout different stages of their career
development.

Mixing

Mixing is considered as one of the crucial manufacturing
process of dyes, pigments and pesticide intermediates. The
Group’s production efficiency and the quality of finished
products heavily rely on the stringent mixing procedures.
Hence, the Group is committed to producing high quality
products by imposing various control measures to its
suppliers in order to fulfill the requirements of different
customers and meanwhile managing its impact on the
environment.

Coloring

Apart from providing high quality products, Tsaker Chemical
has been actively making investment to the community. The
Group strives to contribute to the society persistently through
organizing charitable events and public welfare activities.
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Employment and Employee Benefits

4.1.1 Selecting Talents

The Group understands that having a good
employer-employee relationship is indispensable
to its business operation. A recruitment
procedure has been established in accordance
with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China in which the Group performs recruitment
in “a fair, open and just” manner in order to
recruit talents who meet the Group’s standard.
In addition, the Group strives to provide a
pleasant and healthy working environment
to its employees. The Group attaches great
importance to employees’ personal growth
and development whereby continuous training
mechanism has been provided to meet the
personal growth of individual employees while
fulfilling its company development in the long-
run. The Group portrays a harmonious corporate
culture by providing its employees a variety
of benefits in order to enhance their sense of
belonging.

The Group is committed to:

. complying with all the relevant laws,
regulations and other requirements on
employment practices;

. prohibiting the child labor and forced
labor in any of its operations; and the
same expectation are being applied to the
Group’s supply chain;

. respecting the basic human rights of
employees; treating employees equally and
prohibiting any insulting behavior or acts of
discrimination;
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4. SELECTION (CONTINUED)
4.1 Employment and Employee Benefits (continued)
4.1.1 Selecting Talents (continued)

. offering a safe and hygienic working and
living environment, and ensuring the
employees’ health and safety; and

. establishing a promotion mechanism in
order to review employees’ performances
and to offer promotional opportunities for
talented individuals.

4.1.2 Employees Remuneration and Benefit

Through the establishment of the employees
benefit and compensation system, the Group
is committed to offering employees reasonable
salary and working conditions in order to
attract potential employees and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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Figure 3. The Group has provided various activities for employees to enable them to achieve work-life balance
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4. SELECTION (CONTINUED) 4. P=E(#\E)

4.2 Employees are the Foundation of Our 42 ETIREBMEFEZRENER
Sustainable Development

4.2.1 Health and Safety 421 RBERZE

The Group attaches great importance to its
employees’ health and safety at work. The
Group is committed to complying with relevant
regulatory requirements in relation to health and
safety, and strives to create a safe and healthy
working environment for its employees. Abiding
by the policy of “Safety First by Focusing on
Prevention”, the Group enhances its production
safety management in order to reduce and
eliminate any occurrence of accidents.

Ensure Safe Working Environment

The Group is fully aware of the chemical
exposure to frontline employees, which would
consequently cause damages to their bodies.
Hence, the Group has appointed human
resources department to arrange annual body
check for every employee in order to ensure
their occupational health and safety. Employees
are provided with personal protective equipment
such as masks, ear plugs and protective goggles
to ensure safe operation. In addition, warning
signals and occupational safety reminders are
posted to remind operators when equipment
are in use. The Group also standardized the
management methods for labelling, storage
and packaging of chemicals, in order to prevent
any adverse impact on the environment due to
chemical leakage.

During the reporting period, the Group has
complied with all laws and regulations relating
to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
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4. SELECTION (CONTINUED) 4. PH=E(#E)
4.2 Employees are the Foundation of Our 42 EIRKMBFEZRNER
Sustainable Development (continued) (#&)
4.2.1 Health and Safety (continued) 42 1BEREZZ (&)
Case Study: BRD=E :
Safety Knowledge Contest 2016 ZE-RELZRHAHBE
b=
The Group has arranged trainings on a AEEATMEREIHZ
regular basis in order to enhance employees’ THERNIH  TH
awareness and knowledge with regard to REBERRERZ2NE
occupational health and safety. On 23 November Al e REEZZRETIN
2016, the Group has appointed its safety and —E-REt+-A=+=
environmental protection department to organize BAST —RR2HER
a contest in relation to employees’ safety B FEIBEBRRNE
knowledge. The competition enabled employees BEEEFEREMWARE

to obtain safety production knowledge through
participating in a stimulating and engaging

activity.

48 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE



RIE - HERERERE
Environment, Social and Governance Report

4. SELECTION (CONTINUED) 4. P=E(#\E)
4.2 Employees are the Foundation of Our 42 BIRBMEEZRRNER
Sustainable Development (continued) (%)

4.2.2 Cultivating Talents and Development 422N TR

To cope with the expansion of its business
operation, the Group strives to nurture employee
potential in order to enhance its comprehensive
competitiveness in the industry. Trainings
provided by the Group follows the principle
of “Systematization, Institutionalization,
Diversification, and Effectiveness”, which aims to
improve employees’ knowledge and professional
skills. During the reporting period, the Group
has set up both self-training and internal training
schemes for employees. To enhance the quality
of staff and to strengthen employees’ sense of
belonging, more than 20 training programs were
held for employees’ voluntary participation.
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Figure 4. The Group held various training programs from time to time to enhance the quality of the employees
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4. SELECTION (CONTINUED)

4.2 Employees are the Foundation of Our
Sustainable Development (continued)

4.2.2 Cultivating Talents and Development (continued)

Case Study:
2016 Safety Education and Training Activity

A safety education and training activity was
held in October 2016 for 8 consecutive days.
The activity was jointly conducted by the
Group’s environmental protection department,
the production technology department and the
equipment maintenance department in order
to further improve the safety awareness and
operating skills of all employees.
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SELECTION (CONTINUED)

4.3 Prevention of Corruption and Internal Audit
System

The Group is committed to achieving high ethical
standards and communicate across the top
management to the working level.

In accordance with the Hong Kong Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Chapter 8 “Crime of Corruption and Bribery”
of the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China,
a mechanism to monitor, report and account has been
established to forbid any bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering activities. In the case that corruption
is found, the Group shall investigate and handle in
accordance with the applicable laws.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations with regards to
anti-corruption, blackmail, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

MIXING
Managing Tsaker Chemical’'s Environmental Impact

The Group has always been incorporated the concept of
sustainability development into its business management
mode. The Group adopts the principle of “Using Green
Technology to Color the World” as part of its corporate
culture to develop its strength on environment protection.
The Group carries out stringent selection procedure during
the procurement process to ensure the quality of products
provided by suppliers. During the production process, the
Group strengthens its environmental management to ensure
that its business operations can harmoniously develop
with the surrounding community. The Group will further
strengthen the environmental awareness of its business
partners and it strives to be a green enterprise.
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MIXING (CONTINUED)

5.1

Tsaker Chemical’s Environmental Policy

Tsaker Chemical is fully aware of the environmental
impacts that it occurs during its manufacturing
processes. Adverse environmental impacts such as
gaseous emissions, water pollution, hazardous waste
and greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) are generated
from the operation. Adhering to the Environmental
Protection Law of People’s Republic of China, Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Cleaner Production Promotion
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Group
endeavors to strengthen its environmental protection
management, use greener technology and promote
education to enhance employees’ environmental
awareness in order to minimize the occurrence of
potential pollution accident and maintain sustainable
development.

The Group’s environmental policy is aimed at enforcing
the following principles:

. ensuring that the environmental system of the
production facility is in compliance with ISO
14001:2004;

. arranging the production department to compile
the monthly emission monitoring list and the
materiality environmental factors checklist;

. requiring all employees to carry out their
environmental responsibilities and internal
management procedures in their daily
operations;
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MIXING (CONTINUED)

5.1

5.2

Tsaker Chemical's Environmental Policy (continued)

. purchasing coal with less sulfur content that meet
standard and ensuring the boiler combustion
emission is in compliance with the relevant
requirements; and

. carrying out water treatment in compliance with
the local requirements before discharging.

During the reporting period, the Group has complied
with applicable environment laws and regulations on
wasted gaseous emissions, GHG, emissions to water
and soil, hazardous and poisoned waste.

Supply Chain Management

Having a diversified business portfolio, the Group is
required to consume various raw materials during the
production of intermediates. The Group understands
that it is necessary to take into account of the concept
of sustainable development into its procurement
process in order to enhance resource efficiency
and minimize environmental impact. The Group has
developed a supplier evaluation index to oversee its
suppliers’ performance. The Group also fosters the
green procurement to reduce potential impacts on the
environment. In the forthcoming year, the Group will
work closely with suppliers to further improve the status
of social responsibility of upstream supply chain.
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5. MIXING

(CONTINUED)

5.2 Supply Chain Management (continued)

5.2.1 Supplier Evaluation Index

The Group attaches importance to quality control.
A supply chain management system has been
formulated to assess the quality of its suppliers.
The Group considers factors such as: stability
of products provided, compliance with delivery
date, and its after-sales service to identify and
select qualified suppliers.

5.2.2 Green Procurement

As a green manufacturer, the Group expects
its suppliers to take appropriate measures to
reduce any adverse impact on the environment.
The Group has been communicating closely
with its suppliers to improve their effective use
of materials, reduce unnecessary waste and
prevent pollution. The Group believes that a
sustainable development can be achieved by
joint-cooperation with its supply chain.

5.2.3 Supervision and Audit

An annual audit check and report for supplier's
evaluation has been provided by the Group to
assess their performance on social responsibility.
The Group will immediately cease the
cooperation once supplier is found to employ
child labour, forced labor or other serious
violations of any applicable labour related laws
and regulations.
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MIXING (CONTINUED)

5.3 Product Responsibility

Technological innovation is one of the core of the
Group’s business development strategy. The Group
is devoted in providing high quality products through
implementing stringent requirements on products
quality, with the focus on customer health and safety.
The Group respects intellectual property rights, and a
“Patent Management System” has been formulated to
protect the intellectual property rights of both the Group
and related party.

In its operation and product manufacturing process, the
Group has been accredited with ISO9001:2008 Quality
Management System to ensure products quality. All
finished products went through different stages of
quality inspection to verify its reliability in order to
prevent any unqualified products being delivered to
the market. The Group provides after sales service
to reassure customers of the Group’s commitment to
quality and to ensure products meet their expectations.

During the reporting period, the operation of the Group
has complied with relevant regulations on product
liability, such as the health and safety of the customers
and the public, advertising campaign, labeling and data
privacy regulation.
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5. MIXING

(CONTINUED)

5.4 Emissions and Resource Management

To oversee the use of resources and manage

emissions, an internal resource management system

has been formulated by the Group in accordance with

the national energy management policy and standards.

In addition, the Group further strengthens the energy

conservation initiatives through educating its to

employees and actively promoting the use of energy-

saving technologies and facilities.

5.4.1 Efficient Use of Water and Sewage Management

As a manufacturer of dyes, pigments, and
pesticide intermediates, the Group consumes
a variety of chemicals in its daily operation.
Sewage is generated throughout the production
process, such as industrial effluent, boiler
sewage discharge, laboratory testing discharge
and other domestic sewage. An internal sewage
treatment facility has been installed by the Group
to effectively manage its sewage treatment
and purification and ensure the quality reaches
the standard before discharge. To reduce the
adverse impact on the environment, the Group
has established designated area for sewage
discharge. In addition, the Group appointed its
quality Inspection department to monitor the
discharge of sewage and to ensure continuous
improvement on the production and controlling
processes.
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5. MIXING (CONTINUED) 5. R&(i#)

54 Emissions and Resource Management 54 BFRYIKREREE (&)
(continued)

5.4.2 Gaseous Emission 5.4.2 BEm B

Coal is the major fuel consumption of the Group.
Coal combustion leads to the generation of
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG), such as
carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions. Sulfur dioxide
and soot are the major gaseous emissions arises
from boilers and flash distillation facilities. The
Group endeavors to reduce gaseous emissions
in order to provide a healthy working environment
to its employees as well as to protect the
surrounding environment. The Group strictly
ensures the sulfur content of the coal being used
complies with the relevant standards. Boilers are
also equipped with electrostatic precipitator and
desulfurization devices to safeguard emissions
standards are met. In addition, the Group has
engaged external qualified testing agencies to
conduct regular monitoring to ensure emissions
meet all relevant standards and to reduce
pollution to the environment.
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5. MIXING

(CONTINUED)

54 Emissions and Resource Management
(continued)

5.4.3 Chemical Control

During the production process at the production
plants of Tsaker Dongguang and Tsaker
Dongying, hazardous chemicals, such as
nitrotoluene, methanol, ethanol, acetaldehde,
toluene and other liquid chemicals are used.
The Group established the safety management
system to oversee the utilization of these
hazardous chemicals. The Group mandatorily
requires all of its chemical manufacturers to
obtain relevant business licenses to comply with
government’s quality and safety regulations.
Besides, to prevent leakage of hazardous
substances into the surrounding environment
throughout handling and transportation
processes, the Group regulated internal control
for purchasing, storage, handling, transportation
and consumption of the chemicals. The Group
has taken steps to minimize any leakage
of chemical substances on land and to the
surrounding environment, preventing them from
polluting the water source.

5.4.4 Raw Materials and Solid Waste Management

The Group classified waste in terms of domestic
waste, industrial waste and hazardous waste.
The Group adopts the principle of “enhance the
use of resources and reduce contamination” to
strengthen its waste management procedure.
During the operation, the Group sought to
maximize recycling rate and reduce waste
generation. The Group also engages qualified
third-party contractor to collect hazardous
waste to prevent any contamination on the
environment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2016 FEFEERE

5.

Re (W)

54 HIMRERER (&)

5.4.3 LB L EH

FELCEREZTRIRF
EREMNEEEMATEE
EREFNAETENE
YimnE R K - HIHEHR
K -HE 2B -
FRERERMRIER -
AEBBZBLCLEmT
EfeRtERme2EEG
E - RERBERCERE
BESREELERLRE
SERNEEREETT
& NEERERANESE
RERZERMERE -
REBETRERRICEY
BB R I8 I E AR
REERNBE - 7
K - By - REMARE
EHER2EERE
LR A H 18 B D fm BOSHR
RIHEHINIIER
5 B RI5 M A K
R e

5.4 3FMEEARERYEE

REENERERNERE
SRR - TEREEY -
BRERNE - &A%
MERBERYMNEER
HIERL - B
RA REEBEPRE
BIKRFA  BDRE - &
SETZREERE=

AEEYERERYET
R BRETESRIR

15 o



5.

BIR - HERERERS

Environment, Social and Governance Report

MIXING (CONTINUED)

5.5 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group adheres to the following principles to
effectively manage environmental pollution:

. thorough investigation on environmental risks;

. designation of responsible personnel to handle
any accidents;

. proper employee education; and

. implementation of preventive measures.

Besides, the Group also implements an emission
inspection to ensure its operation is in line with the
relevant emission standards.

Additionally, the Group also implements an
investigation to inspect key the environmental impacts
from its production and operational activities. The
Group developed a mechanism for investigating
environmental pollution accidents: for minor accidents,
the environmental, health and safety department
will be in charge of investigating the cause of
accidents and carrying out immediate measures to
mitigate the situation; in case of major environmental
pollution accidents, the Group set up an emergency
investigation team to carry out the investigation on the
accident, and promptly adopt all possible emergency
measures and ensure all environmental impacts are all
under control.
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COLORING

Color the Community

Apart from pursuing excellence and commitment to
production innovation, the Group is devoted to carrying out
its social responsibility by contributing back to the society.
Through actively hosting and participating in different public
service activities, Tsaker Chemical endeavours in making
the society around the operations of the Group colourful and
prosperous.

During the reporting period, the Group has organized the
“Dragon Boat Festival Welfare Activity” at Tsaker Dongying,
which aimed to help those in need through donation of
goods and materials. The Group believed that employees
could extend their capacities outside work to participate in
community activities.

During the reporting period, the Group has donated
and raised funds for various organizations, associations
and educational institutions, which amounted to around
RMB1 million to aid people in need and to support scientific
research and development.
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Figure 6. Dragon Boat Festival Welfare Activity 2016
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To acknowledge for the staff's contribution, the Group
provide in total of 234 festival benefits on the eve of the
Dragon Boat Festival.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

AWARD AND HONORS

BIR - HERERERS

7. RERRE

The Group has obtained a remarkable progress during the AEEEREHEUIFERREFE

reporting period.

Major awards include:

WMETHEEER -

FTERBEEE

EEEE (o) ARLBERSG,

FERUAGEH LS EHAE AP, ZHMH
HRE. ARERAES. MRk, A F e

Seatn

Award 818 Institution 13
s s
3 2 B R b b Hebei Technological Small
and Medium Enterprises
:::::'::;;:;, Hebei Science and Technology Department
& LB R R 3
b AR iR
& %
%
SR R |
' Novel Utility Patent: Organic Intermediate
Continuous Hydrogenation Reactor
State Intellectual Property Office of the P.R.C
ERHBEERN AR EREANS RERS
REARANBERABERER
._3%\‘ - -?3&'&23;.
% Br B 2016 Hebei Excellent Enterprise

Technology Center
Hebei Development and Reform Commissions
TE-ARENLEEFSLERMP O
B REINEZES

Z

TOP 100

RN IR

2016 CHINA PETROLEUM AND CHEMICAL
INDUSTRY TOP 100 PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

BELS (RW) ARAT

2016 China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Top 100 Private Enterprises
China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation

—E-AFPEAENMEIRERCERR
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8. THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 8. BXHM(EBE HMEREARE

GUIDE INDEX E51)E5]
The Group has complied with the “Comply or Explain” REBEBETEN MR LR B 8
provisions as set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board T TETHBREINREME
Listing Rules. The table below is the summary of the o UTREIEHBESRMENT
reporting compliances. Eo
General Disclosure Aspect Section Page
—RIRE Em =] =8
A. Environmental 1%
Emissions A1 5.4  Emissions and Resource 56
Bemm Management
FRIRERERE
Use of Resources A2 5.4 Emissions and Resource 56
EREHA Management
RN ERERE
The Environment and A3 5.5  The Environment and Natural 59
Natural Resources Resources
RIBERRARER RIBMRARER
B. Social &
Employment and Labour Practices EARE TER
Employment B1 4.1.1 Selecting Talents 45-46
&% PRIEA A
Health and Safety B2 4.2.1 Health and Safety 47-48
REEZZ BERZZ
Development and Training B3 4.2.2 Cultivating Talent and Development 49-50
B R R AE I BEATER
Labour Standards B4 4.1.1 Selecting Talents 45-46
T AR PEA T
Operating Practices & 3E 184
Supply Chain Management B5 5.2  Supply Chain Management 53-54
frEgEEE HEsEEE
Product Responsibility B6 5.3 Product Responsibility 55
EmEE EmEE
Anti-corruption B7 4.3 Prevention of Corruption and 51
RES Internal Audit System
Br L BT AR EE R BIE
Community
HE
Community Investment B8 6. Coloring 60
HERE BRE¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEERE



EEREREEE

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi, aged 35, is an executive Director, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman of our Company, responsible for overall
business strategy and major business decisions of our Group.
Mr. Ge joined us in February 2007 and was promoted to the vice-
president and president in December 2011 and August 2012
respectively. Mr. Ge is also a director of Tsaker Cangzhou.

Mr. Ge has a thorough understanding of our business,
development, management, customers and products. Mr.
Ge has been substantially involved in our operation, general
management and administrative affairs since he has joined our
Group in 2007 and has accumulated extensive experience in the
chemicals production business. He was principally responsible
for strategies planning, corporate development and concluding
business decisions, together with our senior management, during
his tenure as the vice-president of our Group. One of the business
decisions that Mr. Ge concluded includes the development of
DATA, a downstream product of DMSS that has become one of
our principal products and enhanced our profitability as a whole.
In 2012, he further assumed the responsibility for our overall
business strategy and major business decision as president
of our Group. Our Board believes that the continuation of the
existing practice of Mr. Ge’s dual role leadership is beneficial to
our Group taking into account our current scope of business and
development.

With Mr. Ge’s extensive experience, our Board believes that
vesting the two roles in the same person provides our Company
with strong and consistent leadership, and facilitates effective
business planning, implementation and execution of our business
decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the business
prospects and management of our Group.
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Under the leadership of Mr. Ge, our Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of our Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on our Board offering independent perspectives, our
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between our Board and the management of our Company and that
it is in the best interest of our Group to have Mr. Ge taking up both
roles for effective management and business development. Our
Directors consider that the deviation of the said provision A.2.1
is appropriate in such circumstance. To maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices of our Company, our Board
shall nevertheless review the effectiveness of the structure and
composition of our Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances.

Mr. Ge obtained a master’s degree in International Business
Management for China from Middlesex University in the United
Kingdom in February 2007 and completed studies in chemical
engineering from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

Ms. DUAN Weihua, aged 48, has served as the chief development
officer of the Group since June 2016. Ms. Duan is responsible for
industry research, development planning and investment project
research. She joined the Group in 1995 and has over 20 years of
experience in the chemical industry. Ms. Duan has been appointed
as an executive Director by the Board with effect from 25 August
2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

EXREENEET  EBSSHERERRE
THRE  IRENWAEETERSER
Bolti ARFIBEERRDIEHEHAE
EERERNEEEESRESRFEL B
KRANESEE=EBUFYTESR
HEVBEY  AUARANESERARE
RHAREERRESSHEALTNEEENE
NRERERHFE - AR EEREME
ABEAREEREBRRFESAEER
FERBE  ARANESRARBE LAE
ARG HEERATEIRE - BEFAE
REBKFHNEEREREN EBDMAE
BOBRTTRRNESSRERAKN
MR o

REER-BELE= P ERABEE
AEEEEBTHEEETBM R
EENFLARRPAREAB(LBIR
GEE

BE#ELzt: 485 B-T—~E~AR
HEAEENEERRE - BT AET
¥R  BRBAIRBREBEBEWE - BN
—AABEEMAEREE ML TTERR
20FKE - RLLTOEEETEZRMT K=
E-ANENAZTHARBEFERQITHNT
E=xo



é%& |_Jn EIEE

Directors and Senior Management

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 40, is the chief financial officer of the Company,
being responsible for the financial operations of the Group. Mr. Bai
has been appointed as an executive Director by the Board with
effect from 25 August 2016. Mr. Bai joined the Group in September
2014 as the Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Bai is also the sole director
of Tsaker Hong Kong. His work experience includes acting as
manager for the Tianjin branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (&
FEXEHRRETMBHEAMER DA KEDFT) from September
2002 to February 2010 and the financial controller of Tianjin
Walkman Biomaterial Co., Ltd, which is principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and marketing of medical devices in
the PRC, from February 2010 to August 2014. Mr. Bai is a Certified
Public Accountant of China. Mr. Bai obtained a master’s degree
in Technoeconomics and Management in March 2002 and a
bachelor’s degree in Technoeconomics in July 1999 from Tianjin
University.

Ms. JIN Ping, aged 40, is an executive Director and the vice
president (Research & Development in Technology) of our
Company, being responsible for the overall technological research
and development of our Group. Ms. Jin is also a director of Tsaker
Beijing since its incorporation. Prior to joining our Group in April
2006, Ms. Jin worked at Chengdu Municipal Pharmaceutical
Factory IV Division Il ( B EB T & E2 M9 — 5 ) (currently known
as Chengdu Beite Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ( REMZISEEGR A
Al ), which is principally engaged in research and development,
production and sale of pharmaceutical and healthcare products,
from July 1996 to August 2003, including serving as a team
leader of the research and development centre (R LERES
F# & ). Ms. Jin joined our Group in April 2006 and has served
various positions in our Group. Ms. Jin obtained a master’s
degree in Biomedical Engineering from Tianjin University in
the PRC in March 2006 and completed a three-year diploma
course in Industrial Analysis from Southwest China Institute of
Technology (currently known as Southwest University of Science
and Technology) in the PRC in July 1998. In addition, Ms. Jin was
awarded the title of “Petrochemical Engineer” (51t T T2EM) in
May 2011.
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Mr. DUAN Weidong, aged 43, is the vice-president
(Manufacturing Operations) of our Company, being responsible for
operations management and day-to-day operation of our Group.
Mr. Duan is also a director of each of Tsaker Cangzhou, Tsaker
Dongguang and Tsaker Dongying, the production director of each
of Tsaker Cangzhou, Tsaker Dongguang and Tsaker Dongying
and the legal representative of each of Tsaker Dongguang and
Tsaker Dongying. Mr. Duan has almost 20 years of experience in
the chemical industry. He joined our Group in December 1997 and
has served on various positions within our Group. In addition, Mr.
Duan was a member of the National Technical Committee 134 on
Dyestuff of Standardisation Administration of China (2Bl EHEXE
{ERMTZEE) from May 2009 to May 2014.

Mr. Duan has resigned as an executive Director due to work
reallocation with effect from 25 August 2016.

Ms. DONG Zhongmei, aged 47. Ms. Dong has over 20 years
of experience in the chemical industry. She joined our Group
in December 1997 and has served on various positions within
our Group. She was the Vice President (Sales) from April 2014
to August 2016. In April 1999, Ms. Dong was awarded the Best
Salesperson of the Industrial System in 1998 (— L ANFFET
¥ A REHERT) by the Economy and Trade Committee of
Hebei Province (At BRKEEHZEZES). Ms. Dong completed
studies in Economic Law through distance learning from Hebei
University of Economics and Business in the PRC in July 2001.

Ms. DONG Zhongmei has resigned as an executive Director due
to health conditions with effect from 25 August 2016.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. XIAO Yongzheng, aged 44, is a non-executive Director. He
is responsible for providing advice on corporate governance and
internal control matters. Mr. Xiao is also a director of Transfar
and a general vice-president of Transfar Holding Group Co.,
Ltd. (B{LIZREBAER2F) (“Transfar Holding”) (being the
indirect holding company of Transfar). Prior to joining our Group
in March 2015, Mr. Xiao was responsible for valuation work in
China Construction Bank from July 1995 to February 2000, and
subsequently worked in the Investment Management Department
of D’Long International Strategic Investment Company from June
2000 to June 2004. Mr. Xiao joined Shanghai Wanye Enterprises
Co., Ltd. In November 2006, being responsible for operation
management and subsequently became a departmental director at
Shanghai Wanye Enterprises Co., Ltd. until July 2009.

Mr. Xiao obtained a degree in Master of Business Administration
(International) from The University of Hong Kong in October 2002,
and a bachelor’s degree in Mining Engineering (BETL#2) from
Central South Institute of Technology (8 L% ) in the PRC in
June 1995.

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 62, is a non-executive
Director. He is responsible for providing advice on corporate
governance and internal control matters. He has been a member of
the advisory board of Ocean Equity Partners Fund L.P. (the entity
which controls Wider Pacific) since September 2012.

Mr. Fontaine serves as an executive director of Hong Kong
Venture Capital and Private Equity Association. In 2000, he
founded Investel Asia, a venture capital and private equity
firm and served as its managing director from January 2004 to
December 2006. He was the chief executive officer of Newcom
LLC from January 2007 to September 2008. Prior to joining our
Group in April 2015, Mr. Fontaine served various positions within
the BCE Inc. group, the largest communications company in
Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell Ardis and Tata Cellular, for
approximately 16 years of his career. Mr. Fontaine has also been
acting as a non-executive director of D&G Technology Holding
Company Limited, a company listed on Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1301) since August 2016 and as an independent director of
China Lending Corporation, a company listed on NASDAQ (ticker:
CLDC) since July 2016.
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Mr. Fontaine obtained a bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in June
1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of Québec
since January 1980.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director, being responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. Between January
2014 and March 2015, Mr. Ho served as a managing director of
Munsun Asset Management (Asia) Ltd. Since November 2013,
Mr. Ho became an independent nonexecutive director of TK
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and an independent
non-executive director of BBI Life SciencesCorporation (stock
code: 1035) from October 2014 onwards. From August 2015,
Mr Ho became the CFO and joint company secretary for
Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. Mr. Ho previously worked
in various international financial institutions, such as a senior
research analyst of Credit Lyonnais Securities (Asia) Limited
from September 1996 to February 1999, and a vice president in
the Research Department of Institutional Equities, Asia Pacific
Department of JP Morgan from February 1999 to October 2004.
Mr. Ho served various positions in HSBC, such as the Head of
China Value and Growth Research in CIBM Research Asia of
HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited in September 2004, Head of China
Research of HSBC (Securities Business) Beijing Representative
Office in June 2008, and Hong Kong China equity sales director
of HSBC in January 2011. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as TLT Lottotainment Group Limited) (stock code: 8022)
from November 2013 to April 2014.
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Mr. Ho received a Master of Commerce degree, specialising in
Finance from the University of New South Wales in Australia
in April 1991, and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the
University of Sydney in Australia in May 1988. He was awarded as
Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered Financial
Analysts in September 1998, and has been a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Association for Investment Management and
Research since January 1999.

Mr. ZHU Lin, aged 43, is an independent non-executive Director,
being responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. Zhu is also a partner of Beijing Legendhouse
CPAs (It BEE5TEIEH A7) and a director of Beijing Run Qin
Consulting Co. Ltd. (ItZEEZEHABR AT ). Mr. Zhu has been
a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet Company
Limited (3t REFAE B4R DB R ), a company whose shares
are listed on the Over the Counter Bulletin in the PRC (¥1=4%),
since July 2016. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015, Mr. Zhu
was a senior manager at the mergers and acquisitions department
of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(Beijing Branch) (& KkEZH CRY) BRATILRS AT ) from
October 2003 to November 2005. Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Overseas Financial Accounting (&3t & INR B St
EP31k) from Central Institute of Finance and Banking (currently
known as Central University of Finance and Economics) in the
PRC in June 1995. Mr. Zhu has been a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2000.
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Mr. YU Miao, aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director,
being responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. Yu is also a partner of Global Law Office. Mr.
Yu has been a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet
Company Limited (It FREFAEHARHERAF), a company
whose shares are listed on the Over the Counter Bulletin in the
PRC (37 =4R), since July 2016. Prior to joining our Group in March
2015, Mr. Yu was a partner of Global Law Office from March 2006
to June 2010, and subsequently a partner of Norton Rose (Asia)
LLP from June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Yu returned to Global Law
Office as a partner in July 2011 and has been a partner there since
then. Mr. Yu obtained a postgraduate diploma in International
Law from The University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom
in December 2001, and a bachelor's degree in Economic Law
from Heilongjiang University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. Yu was
qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. Ge’s
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. DUAN Weihua is an executive Director, the chief development
officer of our Company. For details about Ms. Duan’s background,
see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, is the chief financial officer
of our Company. For details about Mr. Bai's background, see
“Directors” under this section.

Ms. JIN Ping is an executive Director and the vice-president
(Research & Development in Technology) of our Company. For
details about Ms. Jin’s background, see “Directors” under this
section.
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Mr. SHI Qiang, aged 61, is the chief engineer of our Company,
being responsible for the strategic development of our Group. Prior
to joining our Group in April 2004, Mr. Shi worked in the Chemical
Research Institute of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (A
ZHEAEI{LIHIERR) (the “Research Institute”) from January
1986 to March 2004 and served various positions, including the
director of the design office of the Research Institute. Before that,
Mr. Shi worked at the Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau Share Limited Corporation (AEHZ A LRZFRMHOERA
Al) (formerly known as Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau (REH E0 TF2/F) prior to its reform in 2000), a provider
of hydropower engineering services in Inner Mongolia, the PRC,
from January 1982 to December 1985. Mr. Shi has approximately
30 years of experience in the chemical industry. Mr. Shi joined our
Group in April 2004 and has served various positions in our Group.
Mr. Shi obtained a bachelor's degree in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in May 1982. In August 1994, Mr. Shi
was awarded the title of “Senior Engineer’ (54 T2E0) by the
Office of Leading Group for Professional Title Reform of the Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region (A5 H BAEBBNEEE M
PWAE), and in October 2012, Mr. Shi was awarded the title of
“Energy Manager” (BEJRE 26T ) by the Development and Reform
Commission of Hebei Province.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. WANG Yanling, aged 37, is one of the joint company
secretaries of our Company. Ms. Wang has a background of
legal experience. Ms. Wang joined our Group in July 2014 as
a secretary of the board of our Group and the legal consultant.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wang worked as a legal manager
of Risun Holdings Co., Ltd. (JERZIEARERAF]) from July 2010
to July 2014, a practicing solicitor of Beijing Hanwei Law Firm
(LT ERERESFT) from July 2008 to July 2010 and was a
legal executive of Beijing Taiming Law Firm (1t Z=E12EIS
F&FfT) from July 2003 to July 2005. Ms. Wang was conferred the
occupational qualification of law by the Ministry of Justice of the
PRC in February 2007. Ms. Wang obtained a master’s degree in
International Business Law from VU University Amsterdam in June
2013, a master’s degree in Laws from Liaoning University in June
2008 and a bachelor’s degree in Arts from Hebei Normal University
in September 2003.
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The Board is pleased to announce the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of dye intermediates, pigment intermediates mononitrotoluene,
ONT, and others. Analysis on the principal business of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 140 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends a final dividend of RMB0.073 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2016. Such final dividend
is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM which
will be held on 16 June 2017. The dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 30
June 2017 on 13 July 2017 whose names appear.

BONUS SHARES

The Board also recommended to issue the bonus shares on the
basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every one share
held by the Shareholders whose shares are on the register of
members on 30 June 2017, subject to the Shareholders’ approval
at the AGM which will be held on 16 June 2017, and if passed, the
share certificate of the bonus issue shares will be posted on 13
July 2017.
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A further announcement and a circular containing, among other
things, further details of the issue of bonus shares (including a
detailed timetable) will be despatched to the Shareholders as soon
as possible.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 21 to 38 of this annual report for details.

Environment Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection. As we
became a fast-growing and a leading producer of dye, pigment
and agricultural chemicals intermediates, we have developed
production processes that comply with all applicable national and
local standards in environmental, health and safety protection
in all material respects. We also believe that implementing and
maintaining advanced development on our environmental, health
and safety protection measures serve as a competitive strength.
Producers that do not meet the local environmental, health and
safety protection standards may incur losses and fines imposed by
the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to
time and we had not received any notifications or warnings and
had not been subject to any fines or penalties in relation to any
breach of any applicable environmental, health and safety laws
or regulations that could have a material adverse effect on our
operation. For the year ended 31 December 2016, we had not
lost any order from our customers due to environmental, health
and safety concerns. We believe that our awareness of the
environmental, health and safety issues and dedication to their
protection makes us a leader in this area from an early stage.

Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technology improvements were made with a view
towards complying or strengthening our environmental, health
and safety protection measures. Producers that are unable to
meet the environmental, health and safety standards of the local
government and the downstream customers would incur a higher
cost for fines and remediation and might not be competitive in the
industry in the long run.
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The Company has set up the “Environmental Protection
Administrative System” to implement the discharge of the duties
of the person in charge and staff of every level and every
department, and confirm the disposal treatment and standard
of sewage, waste gas and waste. We have also set up the
“Accountability system for Tsaker Chemical” to enhance the
awareness of safety and environment to all our employees and
mitigate and root out any neglect, leading employees to fulfill their
responsibility with lofty professionalism and to ensure the quality of
work, so that a standardised management can be implemented.

The Company put much values on corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that the
business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System ISO9001,
Environmental Management System ISO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System GB/T 28001-2011 for our
management system.

In compliance with related laws and regulations

The Company always places focus on strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the non-compliance
incidents as disclosed in the Prospectus, setting up and improving
the existing administrative system, enhancing the daily operation
and supervision, adopting effective measures to avoid and reduce
risks and violation of rules. The following are some of the primary
laws and regulations applicable to the Group in the PRC.

Laws of the PRC on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production systems and
detailed operation procedures in place. In addition to the daily
production safety inspection, our group commenced a routine
comprehensive safety production inspection on Dongguang
Production Plants, Dongao Production Plants and Dongying
Production Plant and conducted thorough investigations on safety
loopholes weekly. Control on safety production are strengthened
by adopting feasible preventive measures. We ensure to put
in place various safety production systems, measures and
responsibilities as well as the effectiveness of relevant contingency
plans.
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The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention and
Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law on the Prevention and
Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

The latest communique of the Fifth Plenary Session of the 18th
Communist Party of China Central Committee proposed in
enhancing the effort on environmental protection as to increase
the environmental quality as the core, implementing the strictest
environmental protection system to thoroughly realised the plan of
prevention and treatment of air, water and soil contamination and
the vertical administrative system of monitoring the executability of
environmental institutions ranked below province.

To effectively monitor the measures we have adopted for impact
reduction by our operation to the environment, we have already
installed pollution control equipment such as monitoring equipment
on generators at our production facilities to control and record
the gas pollutants and the emission level of sewage and solid
waste. We have also set up a series of internal policies and plans
for environmental risks avoidance to ensure our compliance
with the applicable state, industrial and local standard laws,
regulations and policy requirements, including reports on the gas
pollutants, the emission level of sewage and solid waste and
regular assessment on such emission level issued by the local
safety and environmental department (Environmental Protection
Bureau of Dongguang County, Work Safety Supervisory Bureau
of Dongguang County, Environmental Protection Bureau of
Hehou district, Dongying City, Work Safety Supervisory Bureau
of Hehou district, Dongying City and Administrative Committee
of Hehou Blue Economic Development Zone) . We constantly
strengthen the development of clean production technologies
to satisfy the increasing standard of environmental protection.
Where any applicable emission standards are sidetracked, we
will investigate the cause and adopt corresponding corrective
measures. Furthermore, our emission of sewage and solid waste
and air pollutants is subject to the monitor by the above-mentioned
safety and environmental department.
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The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

Gain generated from the exporting business of the Company
represents a relatively large proportion of the total revenue for
the year and is denominated and settled in USD. Along with the
constant promotion of internationalizing RMB, we do not only
closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign currency, but also strictly
comply with the regulations on the control of foreign exchange in
foreign exchange filing registration, foreign exchange settlement,
foreign exchange operating activities and foreign exchange
investing activities.

The Foreign Trade Law

The Company has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with law and abide
by the trade order. In order to maintain fair market competition, we
do not engage in improper competition behaviors, such as selling
at an improperly low price, tendering in collusion, issuing false
advertisement, involving in bribery. For exporting, the Company
also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws and
regulations of the export destination countries, such as the anti-
dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labor Law

The Company developed and improved its internal rules and
regulations to safeguard the rights of its employees, including
labour safety and health system. The Company stringently
implemented national protocols and standards on labor safety and
health, conduct labor safety and health education for employees,
prevent labor accidents and reduce occupational hazards.
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Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Company complied with the PRC laws, rules and
regulations, including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations
on Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Company did not receive any penalty from
relevant administrative department.

For the underpaid Social Security Insurance Fund contributions
due to some of the employees enrolled directly to the New Rural
Cooperative Medical Scheme (¥E& 1Rk ) as disclosed in the
Prospectus, to the extent practicable, the Company has liaised
with such employees and made sufficient provisions in relation to
the non-compliance.

In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. We have also appointed
an internal legal adviser to be responsible for overseeing updates
on the PRC laws and regulations applicable to our business
operation, and advising us on compliance matters. In addition, we
plan to provide our Directors, senior management and employees
with continuing training development programs and updates
regarding the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis
to proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance for risks reduction.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers. We
have passed a number of qualification and certification processes
required by our customers to establish our stable customer
base. We have had relationships with our major customers for
approximately ten years on average. We believe that these long
term relationships enable us to establish and maintain market
leadership in the dye and pigment intermediates industry.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated in providing quality customer services.
We endeavor to supply our products to our customers in a timely
manner. We have also provided after-sales services such as
paying site visits to our major customers from time to time and
conducted customer surveys in order to understand their evolving
needs and resolve their concerns.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, we have capitalized on
the existing resources of Tsaker Dongao, including staff, sales
network, customer base of domestic herbicide manufacturers and
customer relationships to actively expand new customer network
and has successfully taken up the market share of ONT/OT. Our
strategy to control markets of our ONT/OT, MNT product lines
through enlarging supply of the upper-stream raw material PNT
was beginning to show its effect.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically on a
monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and specifications
of the products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit terms and
the quality examination procedures at arms’ length negotiations
between the parties based on normal commercial terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production or
experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers for such
raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship between us
and our major suppliers has been and will continue to be good and
stable. All of our domestic purchases were paid in Renminbi. All of
our foreign purchases were paid in USD.

EMPLOYEES: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees supplementary compensation benefits, such as free
shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and food and
beverage allowance. In addition, we value our employees and
provide them with continuing education, on-job training and
encourage their career development through accumulating on-the-
job experience. For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate
in the PRC, we are requested to make contributions to various
government sponsored employee benefit funds, including social
insurance fund, basic pension insurance fund and unemployment,
maternity and work related insurance funds in accordance with
applicable PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there have been no labor
disputes or strikes at any of our production facilities. Our current
relationship with our employees and the labor unions are good and
are based on mutual support and respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, and
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In dealing
with these risk factors, the Group remains in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.
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Global economy and macroeconomic conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions,
as well as governmental policies may affect our sales, will result
in pressure on the prices, volume and margins achieved or
achievable in the future. A decline in demand or a shift to lower
value end products with a lower demand for our products resulting
from deteriorating economic condition may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, we will actively gain understanding of changes in
domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp information of
industries in the upper and lower stream in relation to our products
and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in our profits. We
will maintain good cooperative relationships with major clients by
providing them with products highly functional and of consistent
quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched product structure
and portfolio to diversify the risk of production concentrate. Our
products are sold all over the world to avoid regional economy
fluctuations. We keep developing new customers to lower the
dependence of one single customer.

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. Along with the
continuous expansion of the export business scale, the operation
of the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group reset the exporting price every quarter
to avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and concentrated
purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange risk. The Group
will actively monitor the impact of change in currency exchange
rates on the Group and, while taking into account the nature of its
business, adopt measures based on scientific identification and
effective balance to control relevant risk in order to avoid material
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group neither drew up
any hedging policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.

We are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in
prices of raw materials and supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic condition
and changes to the PRC or international environmental and
regulatory requirements. The prices of the raw materials are to a
certain extent related to the price of crude oil. Fluctuations in oil
prices may affect the prices of toluene, an upstream raw material
of PNT, which, in turn, may also affect the prices of PNT. Any
significant increases in the cost of the raw materials may increase
our cost of production and negatively affect our profit margin
and, more generally, our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. A reduction in, or lack of availability
of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain, may also
impact our profitability to the extent that we are required to pay
higher prices for, or are unable to secure adequate supplies of the
necessary raw materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain.
In response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust
the prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.
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Expansion into new markets presents increased risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. As a result,
our future operation in these markets may be less successful than
those in the DSD Acid and DMSS markets. Customers in these
new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we may need
to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we originally
planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to hire, train
and retain qualified employees. This may have material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.

In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technology and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

After two years of production, for the year ended at 31 December
2016, we have capitalised on the existing resources of Dongao
Chemicals, including in-depth knowledge of products and
operation of the production plants from its staff, sales network,
customer base of domestic herbicide manufacturers and customer
relationships to implement our strategy to control markets of our
ONT and OT product lines through increasing supply of the upper-
stream raw material PNT was beginning to show its effect, which
has laid sound foundations for our further business expansion as
well as external acquisitions and mergers in the future.

We experience seasonal fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.
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In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely and
effective action and provide our business with stable and adequate
cash for operations.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 21 to 38 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 21 to 38 of this annual report for details.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 35 of this annual report for details.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on page 10 of this annual
report. This highlight does not constitute part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

Please see the section headed “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis” on page 38 of this annual report for details.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the top five customers
attributable to the Group accounted for approximately 28.9%
(2015 (Restated): 32.5%) of its total revenue, and the turnover
attributable to its largest single customer accounted for
approximately 8.8% of its total revenue (2015 (Restated): 10.1%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the top five suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 32.8% (2015 (Restated):
48.0%) of its total purchases, and the turnover attributable to its
largest single supplier accounted for approximately 8.4% of its total
purchases (2015 (Restated): 20.6%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital
in issue) had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or
suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 137.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

FEERRMURE

FERF

BE-_E—X<E+-A=t+—HLEE,
AEERNERRFNRZEMAEEA
WAK289% (= —HF(LEH) :
325%)  MAKEZE-—HAEFHNRXS
B AEEBAWANE 8% (ZE—RE (K
B5) 1 10.1%)

FTEHRED

BE_Z—~"F+-A=+—BHLFE-
AEERNRERHESNRZEEREEE
E-E-R"E+ZA=1+-BHLEFE#H
BEHENRSN(ZE—HFE(LES) :
48.0%) > MALEZE — R AHEFHNR
SEEAEEABEEN8 4% (ZE—1
F(ZLEY) :20.6%) °

RBEHRN - BIEEE FARSENER
BEANEARR(BESHAAEELL
AN BRITROBENS% U L) RAKH
AREFREEETFREEES -

W%k - BER&R
AEERBE-ZE-R"F+=ZA=+—H
HEEHENYE BRERREZHFE
BN ERE B MR 15 -

ik s
TEBCRERBE-Z—-<F+=A

ST-RLEFEHENEHFRANE
137ENGEREZE® -



DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB584.7 million (as at 31

December 2015: RMB593.0 million) .

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at to the date of this
annual report .The Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Ms. DUAN Weihua

(appointed on 25 August 2016)
Mr. BAl Kun

(appointed on 25 August 2016)
Ms. JIN Ping
Ms. DONG Zhongmei

(resigned on 25 August 2016)
Mr. DUAN Weidong

(resigned on 25 August 2016)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIAO Yongzheng
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire
from office by rotation and will be eligible for re-election at every
annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition will hold office until the next following general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment.

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Bai Kun and Ms. Duan Weihua will retire and eligible, to offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
GE Yi, Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr. YU Miao will retire by rotation and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the Directors
at the forthcoming AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Details of changes to any of the information in relation to any
Director during the Reporting Period required to be disclosed
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” contained herein.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 68 to 76 hereof.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

The executive Directors, each of Mr. GE Yi and Ms. JIN Ping
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on 3 July 2015, which is subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement.

The executive Directors, each of Mr. BAl Kun and Ms. DUAN
Weihua has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 25 August 2016, which is
subject to renewal upon mutual agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from the date of
appointment to 3 July 2015, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation) .

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the contracts of significance entered into between the
Group with its controlling shareholders or subsidiaries have been
disclosed in the section of “continuing connected transactions” in
the Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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Besides disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors and their connected entities (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a material
interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts to which
the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to the business of
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 9 and 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) ) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) , or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest

Number of Shares held
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ExEH EEME FEROEE RESYEIL®
GEYi Interest in a controlled 345,058,500 (L) 68.86%
corporation
XX REZGEE RS (#FR)
Notes:
FifsE
1. The Letter “L” denotes long position in the shares.

2. As at 31 December 2016, the number of issued Shares of the
Company were 501,125,000 shares.

(i) Interest in associated corporations

Name of associated

Name of Director corporation

1. [HR]JEZROTNER -

2. R=FB-RE+=A=+-R0 &27
E#TR 228 EA %501,125,000 %

(i) MEEEE R
Percentage
of interest in

Nature of interest the corporation

REEZRE
EEER HEEE AR EmtE BROADL
GEYi Cavalli Enterprises () Beneficial owner 100.00%
XX Inc. (“Cavalli”) BEREEA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Note:

1. Cavalli is wholly-owned by Mr. Ge Yi, an executive Director. For
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Ge Yi is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Cavalli.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during the
Reporting Period.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the Company
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of Shareholder

REREME

Capacity/Nature
of interest

513 EEME
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of securities shareholding®

Cavalli®

Qi Lin®
EIH @

Winshare Hongtai (Shenzhen)
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

NEHERE(RINREEBLE
(BRER)

Ocean Equity Partners
Fund Il GP Limited ®

Ocean Equity Partners
Fund Il L.P. ®

Ocean Equity Partners
Fund GP Limited ©

Ocean Equity Partners
Fund L.P. ®

Wider Pacific Limited ©

Beneficial owner

ERBEEA

Interest of spouse
EiB s

Beneficial owner

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REZHEEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

RELEHEEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REZGEEER

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REZHEEER

Beneficial owner

ERBEAA

EFBHHE BRESIEIO
345,058,500 (L) 68.86%
(&)
345,058,500 (L) 68.86%
(&)
34,425,500 (L) O 6.87%
(FR)
30,596,000 (L) 6.11%
(FFE)
30,596,000 (L) O 6.11%
(FR)
30,596,000 (L) 6.11%
(&)
30,596,000 (L) 6.11%
(FFE)
30,596,000 (L) 6.11%
(FFE)

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED g1
HECBEKERRATA



92

EEERE
Directors’ Report

Notes:
(1)  The letter “L” denotes long position in the shares.

(2) The 345,058,500 Shares are held by Cavalli, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Ge Yi. Ms. Qi Lin, as the spouse of Mr. Ge Yi, is
deemed to be interested in these 345,058,500 Shares under the
SFO.

(3) Ocean Equity Partners Fund L.P. and Ocean Equity Partners
Fund Il L.P. directly own 66% and 34% interests in Wider
Pacific Limited respectively. Ocean Equity Partners Fund Il GP
Limited in turn owns 100% interests in Ocean Equity Partners
Fund Il L.P., hence Ocean Equity Partners Fund Il GP Limited
is deemed to be interested in these 30,596,000 shares. Ocean
Equity Partners Fund GP Limited in turn owns 100% interests in
Ocean Equity Partners Fund L.P., hence Ocean Equity Partners
Fund GP is deemed to be interested in these 30,596,000
Shares.

(4) As at 31 December 2016, the number of issued Shares were
501,125,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group did not have any share option scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries had not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Our Controlling Shareholders have entered into the Deed of Non-
competition in favor of our Company (for itself and as trustee for
the benefit of each of its subsidiaries) , under which our Controlling
Shareholders have undertaken to our Company that they will not,
and will procure that none of their respective associates (other than
members of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including through
anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual
arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any of their own
account or with each other or in conjunction with or on behalf of
any person, firm or company or through any entities (except in or
through any members of our Group),
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. carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in
or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, officer,
partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or otherwise,
and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

. take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any of
the then current customers, suppliers or employees from any
members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the undertaking of
noncompetition.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance during the
Reporting Period with the non-competition undertakings under the
Deed of Non-competition issued to the Company in 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting
Period based on data and the confirmation provided or given by
the Controlling Shareholders, and are satisfied that the Controlling
Shareholders have complied with the Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

1.  Property Leasing Agreement

On 8 June 2015, Tsaker Beijing entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”) with
Huage Holdings, pursuant to which Huage Holdings agreed
to lease to Tsaker Beijing certain portion of the premises
situated at 6th Floor, Building A, Jiahui International Center,
No.14 Jigingli, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC with a
gross floor area of approximately 473 sq.m. (the “Premises”)
for use as our office for a term commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on 31 December 2017 at an annual rent
of RMB1,578,000 (including utilities and management fees)
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2017. The
annual rent are in line with the prevailing market rate.

The actual annual rent (inclusive of utility charges and
management fee) was RMB1,578,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB789,000).

The rental payable by Tsaker Beijing under the Property
Leasing Agreement was determined with reference to (i)
the rentable area to be leased to Tsaker Beijing under the
Property Leasing Agreement; (ii) the prevailing market rent
for similar premises in the same building of the Premises; (iii)
the historical utilities and management fees paid by Huage
Holdings in respect of the Premises.

Tsaker Beijing is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company. Mr. Ge Yi, a Director and a Controlling
Shareholder, is a connected person of the Company. As Mr.
Ge Yi and his father, Mr. Ge Jianhua, hold 100% interest of
Huage Holdings, Huage Holdings is a connected person of
the Company for the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Hence, the property leasing agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the Company.
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Assets Leasing Agreement

On 15 January 2015, Tsaker Dongying entered into the
Assets Leasing Agreement with Dongao Chemicals (and
subsequently on 8 April 2015, both parties entered into
a supplemental agreement) , pursuant to which Dongao
Chemicals agreed to lease to Tsaker Dongying the Dongao
Production Plant, in relation to the production of, among
others, PNT, ONT, MNT, OT and NMP, for a term of three
years commencing on 15 January 2015 and expiring on 14
January 2018 at an annual rent of RMB16,200,000. The
production capacity of our Dongao Production Plant includes
40,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene (PNT/ONT/MNT) and
6,000 tonnes of NMP under the Assets Leasing Agreement
and an additional 40,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene under
the option for the leasing of the Additional Assets.

On 17 March 2016, Tsaker Dongying entered into the
New Assets Leasing Agreement with Dongao Chemicals,
pursuant to which Dongao Chemicals agreed to lease to
Tsaker Dongying the Assets and the Additional Assets in
relation to the production of, among other things, PNT, ONT,
MNT, OT and NMP for a term of three years commencing
on 17 March 2016 and expiring on 16 March 2019 at an
annual rent of RMB22,700,000. The production capacity
of our Dongao Production Plant includes 40,000 tonnes of
mononitrotoluene (PNT/ONT/MNT) , 6,000 tonnes of NMP,
and an additional 40,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene under
the New Assets Leasing Agreement.

The actual rental transaction amount for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB11,033,198.94 (2015:
RMB15,525,000).

The rental payable by Tsaker Dongying under the Assets
Leasing Agreement and the New Assets Leasing Agreement
was determined with reference to (i) the valuation by an
independent valuer; and (ii) the arm’s length negotiation
between the parties.
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On 4 May 2016, Tsaker Dongying and Huage Holdings
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Tsaker
Dongying has conditionally agreed to acquire and Huage
Holdings has conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interests in Dongao Chemicals at the consideration of
RMB17,361,000. On 18 July 2016, all the necessary
approval and procedures for equity transfer of Dongao
Chemicals were completed.

As set out in the Prospectus, the Assets Leasing Agreement
and the New Assets Leasing Agreement, Tasker Dongying
has an option to purchase the whole or part of the Assets
from Dongao Chemicals at a prevailing market price to
be negotiated and determined with reference to an asset
valuation by a certified asset valuer. The consideration
was determined after arm’s length negotiation between
Tsaker Dongying and Huage Holdings with reference to
the appraised net asset value of Dongao Chemicals of
approximately RMB17,361,000 as at 29 February 2016, as
appraised by an independent valuer.

Prior to 18 July 2016, Dongao Chemicals was a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Huage Holdings. Tsaker
Dongying is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company. Mr. Ge Yi, a Director and a Controlling
Shareholder, and his father, Mr. Ge Jianhua, together
indirectly hold 100% interest in Dongao Chemicals. As
such, Dongao Chemicals is a connected person of the
Company for the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Hence, the transactions contemplated under the
Assets Leasing Agreement and the New Assets Leasing
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company prior to completion of the aforementioned
acquisition of Dongao Chemicals.
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If the transactions under the above mentioned Property
Leasing Agreement, Assets Leasing Agreement and New
Assets Leasing Agreement are aggregated in accordance
with Rules 14A.81 to 14A.83 of the Listing Rules, each of
the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
for the aggregated transactions is expected to be more than
0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the aggregated
transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements in the absence of a waiver but
exempt from the circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Framework Purchase Agreement on Iron Powder

Tsaker Dongguang entered into a framework purchase
agreement (the “Framework Purchase Agreement on Iron
Powder”) with Yijia Iron Powder on 8 June 2015, pursuant
to which Yijia Iron Powder agreed to supply iron powder to
us for a term of three years commencing on the date of the
Framework Purchase Agreement on Iron Powder and is
subject to renewal. The maximum transaction amount under
the Framework Purchase Agreement on Iron Powder will not
exceed RMB90 million, RMB100 million and RMB110 million
for the three years ended/ending 31 December 2015, 2016
and 2017, respectively. Iron powder is a raw material for
producing DSD Acid.

The price for the iron powder to be supplied by Yijia Iron
Powder to us under the Framework Purchase Agreement on
Iron Powder will be determined with reference to the price
at which comparable types of iron powder that are sold by
independent suppliers under normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business and such price shall be no less
favourable than is available from independent suppliers. Our
Group will seek quotations from at least two independent
third parties offering the same or comparable products to
determine on the fairness and reasonableness of the price
and to decide if the price is comparable to or more favourable
than those offered by independent third parties for the same
or comparable products.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
purchase any iron powder from Yijia Iron Powder (2015:
RMB36,881,000).
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Yijia Iron Powder is directly and wholly owned by the younger
brother of Mr. Ge Jianhua and Mr. Ge Jianyong, uncle of Mr.
Ge Yi. As such, the framework purchase agreement on iron
powder constitutes a continuing connected transaction for
the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors reviewed the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions and confirmed such transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has performed certain
established reviewing procedures on the above continuing
connected transactions of the Group entered into during
the year ended 31 December 2016, and confirms such
transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board;

(2) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
the provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the total cap as disclosed in
the Prospectus and relevant announcements of the
Company.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the
following connected transaction:

Acquisition of Tsaker Dongao

On 4 May 2016, Tsaker Dongying and Huage Holdings entered
into an agreement, pursuant to which Tsaker Dongying has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Huage Holdings has
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interests in Tsaker
Dongao at the consideration of RMB17,361,000. On 18 July 2016,
all the necessary approval and procedures for equity transfer of
Dongao Chemicals were completed.

The details of the transaction are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined and were in compliance with disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company did not have
any discloseable connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction pursuant to the relevant provisions in relation to
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. Every Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore entitled to
be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other relevant
regulations for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In light of a loan facility of RMB280,000,000 (the “Loan Facility”)
provided by a bank to the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely ¥ &L (RE)BRA
(Dongying) Company Limited*), on 20 February 2017, the bank

7] (Tsaker Chemical

included an additional requirement regarding the Loan Facility,
which required Mr. Ge shall remain as a Controlling Shareholder,
with his direct or indirect shareholding in the Company being no
less than 51% throughout the term of the Loan Facility. For details
please refer to the announcement dated 20 February 2017 of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 109
to 121 of this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and
as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young is required to retire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and is eligible and offers itself for re-election. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
14 June 2017 to 16 June 2017, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend the AGM, during which period no share transfers will be
registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 June 2017.
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The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
27 June 2017 to 30 June 2017, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the final
dividend, and the issue of bonus shares during which period no
share transfers will be registered. To qualify for the final dividend
dividend, and the issue of bonus shares, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 June 2017.

By order of the Board
GEYi
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Beijing, the PRC, 29 March 2017
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the corporate governance code and
corporate governance report under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own corporate governance code. The Company has
been in compliance with all applicable code provisions under the
corporate governance code throughout the Reporting Period,
except for code provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company will continue
to review and monitor its corporate governance practices in order
to ensure the compliance with the corporate governance code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

EEEMARIALQTAEZT—XRF—A
—AREZZ-—RE+TZA=1+—-HILH
Bz hEERRE o

LRELER

FEEINEFEKFHEEER MR
ERRESSRALEXEERBEM -
RATRCHEMETRBMSE T EAEZ
(EEERTADKEEELBRSIMER
HAG 2 hEERTA - RAFHRAKE
B RBEHR - RITFBRIEA2.1
FRRGREEERTREAR BB RS
B BFESHE-ATEE) I XOFH
—HETFLEERTUETZAEERT
IR - RABBEBARTLERA P
ERESR  UERBTLEERTR -

\

ESSRELAEENERES  UEEX
EENRBEREUAREREBRRR
ExECRAKENSREERRELE
BHEEEREENEOIREE  RER
ARBEBHFEHE  ESECHIL=
BESSEES  BREELKEES - HM
ZEEhREEEE - ESECOZREE
EEREERERBEKERAENEE -

PREEARRNEAEZER - ETEH
ERRER > BERAKEUFEERRTR
BRERMZH S XETHE -

RRAFREHMHEESHNEAEFARLZHEE
BEERE  UNESFERZREBIRER
& o



TEERKRE

Report of Corporate Governance

Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors:
Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. DUAN Weihua (chief development officer)
(appointed on 25 August 2016)
Mr. BAI Kun (chief financial officer)
(appointed on 25 August 2016)
Ms. JIN Ping (Vice President)
Mr. DUAN Weidong
(resigned on 25 August 2016)
Ms. DONG Zhongmei
(resigned on 25 August 2016)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. XIAO Yongzheng
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. ZHU Lin

Mr. YU Miao

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments
as well as their identity and the time involved to the issuer, the
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on latest development and changes
in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous

professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills. From time to time, the joint company secretaries of the

Company update and provide the Directors with written training

materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.

A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting

Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as

follows:

ARABBERESETHERERR
BUBRRREFNEMBRILEE o KD EH
FLARMETHENRREREBESA
& BeERBENSEEITE -

RIEESRANEN  REBEHRN BF
B F MR T

Nature of Continuous
Professional Development

Name of Director EEMSR FESXRREREME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi XL A /B, C
Ms. DUAN Weihua REELE A B,C
Mr. BAI Kun HEXE AC
Ms. JIN Ping E¥L+ A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. XIAO Yongzheng HEBEEREE A B
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincent 5t 4 B
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung ARREE B
Mr. ZHU Lin RFREE A B
Mr. YU Miao TREE B
Notes: P EE -
A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or Al HEWHNER HEERHHE
briefings kSRS
B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate B: MEZEEIIZENME BEEEL
governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, (¥ER EERE LTHRBIREMME
Listing Rules and other relevant laws BEEG
C:  participating in training provided by law firms and that relating to C: ZMmEmriRMtiEIl - EAREKE

the business of the Company

BRI
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision A.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE has been
with the Group for many years, he has a thorough understanding
in our business, management, customers and products. With his
extensive experience in business operation and management,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our business
decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The executive Directors, each of Mr. GE Yi and Ms. JIN Ping has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date, which is subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement.

The executive Directors, each of Mr. BAI Kun and Ms. DUAN
Weihua has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 25 August 2016, which is
subject to renewal upon mutual agreement.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, renewable upon mutual agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, each of the
Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for election by shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
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For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda
and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before the Board meetings
or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the Directors have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings or Board Committee meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity
to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.
Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the joint company secretaries
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are
open for inspection by the Directors.

During the Reporting Period, eight Board meetings, one annual
general meeting and one extraordinary general meeting were held,
and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is
set out in the table below:
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Meeting Attended/ Meeting Attended/

Number of Number of
Board meetings General meetings
Directors = HEEEERH HE BRERERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi XREE 8/8 22
Ms. DUAN Weihua(" BREELLO 3/3 Not applicable®
TER®
Mr. BAI Kun® HELE® 3/3 Not applicable®
TEA®
Ms. JIN Ping B¥u+ 8/8 2/2
Mr. DUAN Weidong® BEREEC 5/5 2/2
Ms. DONG Zhongmei® ELEEL L 5/5 2/2
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. XIAO Yongzheng HERLEE 8/8 2/2
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent ~ FONTAINE Alain Vincent £ 4 8/8 2/2
Independent non-executive BV EHITESE
Directors
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR ELE 8/8 2/2
Mr. ZHU Lin REREE 8/8 2/2
Mr. YU Miao TEELE 8/8 2/2
Notes: MfsE -

(1)  Ms. DUAN Weihua was appointed as an executive Directors
on 25 August 2016. She attended all the Board meetings held
subsequent to the date of her appointment.

(2) Mr. BAI Kun was appointed as executive Director on 25 August
2016. He attended all the Board meetings held subsequent to
the date of his appointment.

(3) Mr. DUAN Weidong and Ms. DONG Zhongmei resigned on 25
August 2016. They attended all the Board meetings held prior to
their date of resignations.

(4) The Company did not convene any general meeting upon the
appointment of the Directors becoming effective.

M

(2)

(3)

4)
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code
for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to
the Board and report to the Board on matters;

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprise three members, namely Mr. Zhu

Lin (chairman), Mr. Xiao Yongzheng and Mr. Yu Miao, of which Mr.

Zhu Lin and Mr. Yu Miao are independent non-executive Directors

and Mr. Xiao Yongzheng is a non-executive Director.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as

follows:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to deal with
any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if the
preparation of publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

BAREREENSREERRE &
IRIFEERER

FE BAREREAREERE
BE2BRITARERFM

FERBNAQRA ZEEXERRE
RES YHESSHBEAERK
[EsRIEESEE

BMANALAEEXRERTA BT
BRREEEERREZHE &

BAREERAQNRAE AR ANER
HRNETHER

BEREEEM=-FHEAR  BIRRLE

(£

B)  BEEBAERTRAE - HfK

REERTHAERBYFIATES M
HERELERBENTES -

BEREEENTERENT ¢

N

TERERIBRBANEE B
HMEARERMESSRMHERE
it B SN B A% BED A0 Fr B % BS A MR
o AR EEARMA B A
B BHR 2 BET AR

EERDANMBRERUARFER
ERRE - FFERER(EHET
B)EERENTEN  LFMARRK
RBEMBERMERBNERS
8

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED

EEILBEEEERAT

113



114

TEERKRE

Report of Corporate Governance

in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)  major judgmental areas;
(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; and
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8. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company for
inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of
two meetings to discuss and consider the following:

. it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015 financial
year and the auditor’s report prepared by the external auditor
on accounting matters and the major findings during the
audit;

. it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2016; and

. it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal controls (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function), risk management system and
procedures and the re-appointment of external auditor. The
Board did not have separate opinion on any recommendation
and suggestion by the Audit Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment, retirement or removal of external
auditor.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the
meetings are set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members ZEHE EHERE EHERH
Mr. ZHU Lin RERITHE 2/2
Mr. XIAO Yongzheng HBERBSTE 2/2
Mr. YU Miao FRRE 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprise three members,
namely Mr. GE Yi (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and
Mr. ZHU Lin, of which Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director and Mr.
HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin are independent non-
executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

1. to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by the
Board; review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2.  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

3. to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

4. to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its review
results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;
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5.  to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and the
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in
the future; and

6. to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarised as follows:

PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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IMPLEMENTATION: The Company is committed to selecting the
best person for the role. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board’s composition (including gender, age, length of service)
will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. it reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any necessary changes to the Board;

2. it reviewed that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company are held by the same
person, and believes that vesting the two roles in the same
person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates effective implementation and
execution of our business decisions and strategies, and is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Company; and

3. itreviewed the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meetings are set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members EEHR EHERE FEHEXE
Mr. GE Yi XRXEE 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AIRATEE 1/1
Mr. ZHU Lin RERTE 11
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. XIAO Yongzheng and Mr. HO
Kenneth Kai Chung, of which Mr. YU Miao and Mr. HO Kenneth
Kai Chung are independent non-executive Directors and Mr. XIAO
Yongzheng is a non-executive Director.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
according to standards including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities concerned,
and employment terms of other positions within the Company
and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

3.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;
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7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. it reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management; and

2. it reviewed the employee remuneration policies and
structure.

The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at
the meetings are set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members ZEER BHEREFEHERE
Mr. Yu Miao THEE 11
Mr. Xiao Yongzheng HBEERLE 1/1
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung AIRURSTE 1/1
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EEREREEEROTFM

MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors and senior management of the
Company (whose biographies are set out in pages 63 to 71 of this
annual report) during the Reporting Period falls under the following
bands:
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Number of individuals

Band of remuneration (RMB) &% 4% (ARYE) AE

RMB1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 2 1,500,000 —

RMBO to 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 12
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR EXFHMERRNMERREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the period from the
Reporting Period which give a true and fair view of the affairs of
the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash
flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
132 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
by the Audit Committee on an annual basis. In 2016, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and subsidiaries.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk management
and internal control systems can only make reasonable but not
absolute guarantees to prevent major misrepresentations or
losses, which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failing to meet business objectives.

Internal control department

The Group has established an internal control department,
whereby such department plays an important role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities
of the internal control department include standardizing and
reviewing operating risks, financial positions and internal control of
the Company, as well as conducting regular and comprehensive
audits of all subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company. The internal
control department reports to the Audit Committee at its annual
meeting in respect of the adequacy and effectiveness of its work in
the previous year and the work plan for the following year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Company. Our internal audit function is the core
of the third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking,
auditing and monitoring the work performed by the first and second
lines of defence.
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The Company’s risks are identified from business processes in
our established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Company who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe is
assessed in terms of likelihood of occurrence and the significance
of impact, taken into account the current internal controls in place
to mitigate these risks. The risk assessment results are reported to
senior management and the Board for the confirmation of our risk
response strategies, based on their preferences towards risk, the
available resources for risk mitigation, and the current controls in
place. A review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted and the Company in
2016 considered that the systems are effective and adequate.

The Company'’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control — Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood and
impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to achieve
our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status are monitored by both management and the internal audit
function to ensure these control defects are properly resolved in a
timely manner.

The Group has also established policies and procedures
for the handling and dissemination of inside information,
including “Material Information Internal Reporting System of
Tsaker Chemical Group Limited” and “Information Disclosure
Management System of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited”. The
information to be disclosed should be properly reviewed and
approved by our compliance functions and management to ensure
its appropriateness and accuracy, and is closely monitored after
disclosure.
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During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and
considered that the design and implementation of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group are effective
and efficient in all material respects.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and
nonaudit services provided to the Company for the Reporting
Period is as follows:

REESER  ESECRIAEENER
EERAMBEZRS  ARBHRMANVER
ERRABEERANRIRERERE
EXFTHEHEBRRRD °

B AN B &

A RBERARGOA D TRENEE
KRB 2 BOMEERINWT

Amount (RMB)
Type of services BR A3 5l 2HE(ARYT)
Audit services ZE AR 3,100,000
Non-audit services in relation BRI B
to taxation consulting IR EARTES =
Total s 3,100,000*

The Company and Ernst & Young Tax Services Limited are
still negotiating the tax-related charges for the year ended
31 December 2016 (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
RMB28,000).

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Wang Yanling, one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider) as the other
joint company secretary to assist Ms. WANG Yanling to discharge
her duties as one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.
Ms. WANG Yanling is the primary contact person of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, Ms. WANG Yanling and
Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun have undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and its shareholders and maintains a website at http://www.tsaker.
com/html/english/brand.htm, where the up-to-date information on
the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a
timely manner after each general meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, shareholders may put
forward proposals for consideration at general meetings of the
Company. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law. However, shareholders who wish to
propose resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of
Association for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting
and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the section headed “CONVENING
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPQOSALS” in this annual report.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tasker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Articles of Association during the

Reporting Period.
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To the shareholders of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsaker
Chemical Group Limited (the “Group”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 134 to 226, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Two of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB 42,444,000
as at 31 December 2016.
The Group has recognized
deferred tax assets of RMB
10,611,000 against the tax
losses to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable
profits is probable.

Recognition of deferred
tax assets requires critical
management judgement about
likelihood and magnitude
of creating future taxable
profits to offset the tax losses,
including expectations for
future sales and margin
developments and overall
market and economic
conditions. Actual profits are
likely to be different from those
forecasts since anticipated
events frequently do not occur
as expected and unforeseen
events may arise, and their
impact on estimates and
forecasts may be material.

The Group’s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the deferred tax assets are
included in Note 2.4 and Note
27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the
assumptions used in projecting
the expected future taxable
profits such as sales volume,
sales price and margin by
comparing these key inputs
with the Group’s historical
data and performance and
economic forecasts, assessing
the income tax rate applicable
to the deferred tax assets to
be recognised, and reviewing
supporting documents for
those assumptions made such
as sale contracts and budget
made by management. We
also involved our tax experts
to assist us with corporate
income tax reconciliation
review.
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Withholding tax for subsidiaries’ retained profits

As at 31 December 2016, the
subsidiaries of the Company
located in Mainland China
had retained profits of
RMB429,416,000. Management
did not provide any deferred tax
liabilities against these retained
profits given that the amount
will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future but rather
used for the subsidiaries’ own
development and investments.

Provision of withholding taxes
for retained profits is complex
and involved significant
management’s estimates and
judgement on the cash flow
forecasts of overseas holding
companies, as well as the
subsidiaries.

The Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures about the
deferred tax liabilities are
included in Note 2.4 and Note
27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the
management’s assumptions
and estimates in relation to the
likelihood of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China distributing
a dividend in the foreseeable
future through comparison
with their development,
investment as well as dividend
plans. We also assessed
the capital demands of the
overseas holding companies
by reviewing the cash flow
forecasts, liquidity analysis
and other commitments. We
obtained the management’s
representation with respect
to the distribution plan of
the subsidiaries’ retained
earnings.
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Other information included in the Annual Report FHEEMHEMER

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other ENTESEAHHMERES - HbER
information. The other information comprises the information BEHERFEFRANFTEER  ETEE
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated AR REPOZEENRE -
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not ERPEGETERRERNZIEL TRE
cover the other information and we do not express any form of HibER  mBATSTERMUIBREME

assurance conclusion thereon. NAEE LW ©
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial EERMPYEEMBERRNET - RAW
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, ETRMEEMEN  tMmELBREHZE

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially EHEMERRREGSMBERRIEME
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our B RETERNENFEERTRFIML
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be FEREEERERBMHBER - EREMAE
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, HITHWIE MEMARAELEMEREE
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other BEARERED > AIRMEREZEE - 5
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to it RAMBEELEARSE o

report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the EERRAUBRRARENEE
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation EQNREEAEERBERESHMLAEE
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and MR E BT EREENREB D TERGH
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA WEERBEBEEEMHSNES KR
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies R UWHHERAEAGFEESUBRRWES
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine AEEAHREGERERMERWE KR
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial PRI&FTAFEMRBEIZEE -

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors ERBEEVBEERRE . SEQATESEAE

of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability BETE SEEESELENED  £B
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters ABERATHEEESESETENSBENR
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of FRBELEASTER  RIESQLTE
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to EEEN BEXEBERREFELLE > Il
liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic BHMBBRNERSR

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee ERZEESHY BELATNEERTE
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s B BEENBREBERNEE-
financial reporting process.

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 431
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Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
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disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if ERREBEIEREUEREPHNE
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our BIEE RWEBNEETZE > Al
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to BEFTER - BN EwRE2ERZ
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or YR EAHMLEMRNENETR
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a B YT *%%Iﬁ‘i BRAEE
going concern. B BEEETREBFELSE -

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content . TEREYBERERNERBER &
of the consolidated financial statements, including the BIAD BEEE URGEY
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial BERESGUTEEFEN AR KM
statements represent the underlying transactions and events BE RZMEE -

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the . B EEERNEREREBTITHN
financial information of the entities or business activities MBEERNERZTZE  BENES
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated '5 BoOUFEHAEMBERERER
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, ER-RMEEEE EERH
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 7 BEXEEEFTIF - BRMBES
solely responsible for our audit opinion. ERAEZIEME -

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among KM (HhEE) BrsragsE - &5
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and ZHERERENZE (BREERMESZTP
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in BB AEEHNEMNERRKE)E &
internal control that we identify during our audit. NREREEEEE -

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we BATE BARBEREESRIEHR
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding HRERMEHTEEEEBEL IEE’HEE%?E%L

independence and to communicate with them all relationships BER WRAURESEMEAASHE
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our EKMBIMNWEREMEMEE UK
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. FEEEMIBr E S e (WNE ) B E R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we REEBZZESEBNEEYT  RFRE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the MESEHAPRETHERRNETRS
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current BE AMBKBERETEE - RIFEEE
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe ERAAFLAHBEELER  HERK
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation ZEMNBERT RPARAWESLEER
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely ERNEEARRSEEHETEBBEAR
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be iﬂ*%lﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ/_ﬁﬁgﬁiﬁbtqﬂﬁ" ' B
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences AIRMSEZEMBE P HMELEE -
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HERBIZEMBENETFTEREZA
auditor’s report is Bennett S.H. Wai. BRI

Hﬂli

Ernst & Young ZXREFRERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEETE

Hong Kong &k

29 March 2017 —E—+tFE=H=+HhH
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Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)*
(&&E%))~
REVENUE Wz 6 1,041,142 880,270
Cost of sales SHERA (747,537) (612,939)
Gross profit EX 293,605 267,331
Other income and gains HA R WS 6 19,848 19,094
Selling and distribution expenses $HER DX (38,947) (34,115)
Administrative expenses THAX (90,635) (97,940)
Other expenses Hithpa (3,701) (1,439)
Finance costs B RS R AR 7 (10,317) (7,334)
Exchange losses, net & B8 F R (15,395) (4,244)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRBE AR R 8 154,458 141,353
Income tax expense FriStip & 11 (33,537) (43,883)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 120,921 97,470
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2EKA
INCOME
Other comprehensive income to  SREZPEEHIEE
be reclassified to profit or loss BROVEMEEEA
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on BREINEIZERHIE X E5E
translation of foreign operations 23,528
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREEBAEEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 146,864 120,998
Profit attributable to: THALEAEER
Owners of the parent BAREBA 120,921 97,470
Total comprehensive income THATEEZEBRA
attributable to: HazE
Owners of the parent BRAREBA 146,864 120,998
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEEERERTA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EiEERER
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HEAREE
(expressed in RMB per share) (RBRAREIR) 14 0.22

* REMBRRPNETEECARLAREZEHNT
HEBEHES - E—-SREFBRRMTT4R

F$=E 30 ©

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements have been
restated due to business combination under common control, further
summary details of which are included in Note 4 and Note 30.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Notes

Rret

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 15
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT T A EFRIE 16
Other intangible assets Hitn\FEE
Investment in joint ventures REEQRIZRE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 17
Deferred tax assets ELEBIBEE 27
Other non-current assets HittERerEE
Total non-current assets FRBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7E 18
Trade receivables B S ERFIE 19
Notes receivable U EE 20
Prepayments and other receivables F& {38 & H fth fEUR 708 21
Prepaid income tax FASFRSH 11
Restricted cash ZREE 22
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 22
Total current assets MENEERAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEE
Trade payables B S EATIR 23
Other payables and accruals Hit e RIERETER 24
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3+ ESRITIERR 25
Income tax payable B REH 11
Current portion of long-term REVEFRHBENERER 2

borrowings 25
Total current liabilities mENEEREE
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAE

CURRENT LIABILITIES

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December 2016

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-RF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
(Restated)

(REH)

882,002 733,012
85,207 89,780
114 -

900 -
18,300 —
26,963 26,748

- 15
1,013,486 849,555
81,765 79,169
206,623 164,268
74,406 71,311
94,249 67,754

- 13,817

72,461 300,516
396,743 194,192
926,247 891,027
256,523 250,447
199,168 301,907
181,622 317,320
19,634 -
60,000 -
716,947 869,674
209,300 21,353
1,222,786 870,908

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
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R-ZE—R"FE+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December 2016

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December

2016
=
t=A=+-H

Notes RMB’000
ffat AR®WT T

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEME

Deferred income IEFEUR A 26 21,001
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 27 800
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5+ ERITERR 25 240,000
Total non-current liabilities FREEEHREE 261,801
Net assets EEFE 960,985
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEEER
of the parent
Share capital B 28 30,649
Reserves & 29 930,336
960,985
Total equity AR 960,985
Ge Yi Bai Kun
XX BHE
Director Director
2 EE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEERE

31 December
2015
—ZT-HF
+=ZB=+—H
RMB’000
AREET T
(Restated)
(REH)

6,806
1,550
8,356

862,552

30,649
831,903

862,552

862,552
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE_Z-—R"E+-A=1t—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAGERAEE
Safety
Share Share Capital  production Statutory ~ Translation Retained
capital premium reserve fund reserve reserve profits Total

Bx  RBEE  BARE Z2tEEE  IERRE  ENGR  RER aif
RMB'00D  RMBOO0  RMB000 ~ RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMBO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE-B-H

(as restated) (&E5)) 593,724 (290,841) 33,294 56,842 413,669 862,552
Profitfor the year ERER 120,921 120,921
Other comprehensive ~ FAEMZENA :

income for the year: 25,943

Total comprehensive ~~ ERZEARALE

income for the year 120,921 146,864
Dividend distributedto ~ 2IEFRENRE

Shareholder (Note 13)  (HfzF13) (31,070) (31,070)
Transfertostatutory ~ ERZETHE

reserve (27,453)

Deemed Distributionto ~ RAEAERRELR
the then shareholder of  ¥ERB({LEHER
Shandong Tsaker GG
Dongao Chemicals Co, ARELIBRER
Ltd. (formerly known AR ([FERR)H
as Shengli Oil Field 2K (Mi&30)
Dongao Chemicals
Co., Ltd.) (‘Tsaker
Dongao’) (Note 30) (17,361) (17,361)

Appropriation to safety ~ EARZAEES
production fund (6,606)

At31 December 2016 R-E-AE
+2A=1-H 593,724 (308,202)% 39,000+ 84,295 51158  469,461* 960985

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 437
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Year ended 31 December 2016

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-Z2-— A F+-A=t—RILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREARG
Safety
Share Share Capital ~ production Statutory ~ Translation Retained
capital premium reserve fund reserve reserve profits Total
BR RfVEE  EARE ZREEEE iERE 0 ERBE  REWE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETn  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETR
(Restated) ~ (Restated) ~ (Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(&=5) (&%)  (&EH)  (EEH)  (@EH)  (@EH)  (£E3) (&3
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1F
(as previously reported) —B—H
(xEA2H) 6 214911 (315467) 21,234 43,881 1687 334504 306846
Adjustmentin relation  SEHIER EREEBH
to the acquisition AR (M)
of Tsaker Dongao
(Note 4) - - 24,626 - - - 626 25,252
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-18-5-R
(restated) (&£E5) 6 214911 (290,841) 21,234 43,881 1687 335,220 332,008
Profit for the year EERH (MERZR)
(as previously reported) - - - - - - 102,258 102,258
Adjustmentin relafion  ENEFERRAEH
to the acquisition R (M)
of Tsaker Dongao
(Note 4) - - - - - - (4,788) (4,788)
Profit for the year EEER (L5
(restated) - - - - - - 97470 97470
Other comprehensive ~ EREM2EMRA :
income for the year: - - - - - 23,528 - 23,528
Totel comprehensive ~ FR2EUALLE
income for the year - - - - - 23528 97470 120,998
Issue of shares (Note 28) /TR (Fit26) 30643 378813 - - - - - 409456
Transfer o statutory ~~ BRZETHME
reserve - - - - 12,961 - (12,961) -
Appropriation to BARREEES
safety production fund - - - 6,060 - - (6,060) -
At31December 2015 R-E-RE
(restated) +=B=t-8
(£E5) 30,649 503724 (290,841 33,204 56,842 25,215* 413669 862,552

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

*

of RMB930,336,000 and RMB831,903,000 in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016 and 31

December 2015, respectively.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE_Z—R"E+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
AL —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETDHFBRSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: BRELATEF - 154,458 141,353
Adjustments for: B THISEELFE
Finance costs B A 7 10,317 7,334
Exchange gains, net B Ui AR (9,067) (5,442)
Interest income FEUWA (9,876) (2,557)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME BMERSEE
property, plant and equipment HE WEE 1,023 -
Depreciation nE 54,269 44,047
Amortisation of prepaid land FEAS L AR & OB S
lease payments 4,573 4,036
Amortization of other intangible Hittmp EE s
assets 3 -
Amortisation of other HAn3EREN & E N
non-current assets 15 10
Amortisation of deferred income ~ IEFEUR A 384 (2,645) (1,297)
Recovery of assets written off MEEEEWE = (3,443)
Impairment of inventories FERE 1,833 1,788
204,903 185,829
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,430) (4,369)
Increase in trade and notes B S RERFIEREREE
receivables &N (45,451) (79,712)
Increase in prepayments and FENFIE R E MR RRIE
other receivables 3 (17,451) (11,976)
Increase in trade payables B ZEAFUEE I 18,705 30,769
Increase in other payables and Hit I RERETEA
accruals 0 14,784 52,469
Increase in restricted cash FIRF LM (562) 2)
Cash generated from operations K& ELWIEE 170,498 173,008
Interest received S &)= 12,180 2,557
Interest paid 2HFE (10,317) (7,386)
Income tax paid [EERIZIEES (1,051) (80,662)
Net cash flows from RETEEREREFEE
operating activities 171,310 87,517

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 439
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_ZE—"F+A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

—E-RE —T-FEF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KaE ARMWTFT ARBETT
(Restated)

(FR&E35)

CASH FLOWS FROM RETHFERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE -  BWERREER

plant and equipment (229,577) (291,882)
Purchase of other intangible assets BB 2T EE (117) (32,729)
Proceeds on disposal of items of ~ HE&E¥% - MENREEE

property, plant and equipment FriSFIR 1,323 2,317
Capital contributions to MEERNTEE

joint ventures (900) -
Purchase of an available-for-sale BEatHERE

investment 17 (18,300) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — BB A E (17,361) -
Proceeds from governments grants BB S fE 16,840 882

Net cash flows used in investing  REEEFFARSREFEEE

activities (248,092) (321,412)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBAERERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Funding from related parties 515 BREBLINES 27,006 89,048
Funding to related parties %Eﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁﬂ’]ﬁé (118,589) (77,738)
Proceeds from bank loans TER Fﬁ?%?ﬁ’\ 499,942 412,320
Decrease/(increase) in time Z%EY THERNER

deposits for bank loans 'T?TA;FXQ/ &) 228,617 (300,000)
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (335,640) (176,000)
Dividend paid 2RRE (31,070) —~
Proceeds from issue of shares ?é{THxTﬁFﬁ?%?i - 378,841
Net cash flows from financing RUESREN TSRS REFEE

activities 270,266 326,471

NET INCREASE INCASHAND BERBESEEYIEINFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 193,484 92,576
Cash and cash equivalents FONReRESEEY

at beginning of year 194,192 96,174
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSENFLE

changes, net 9,067 5,442
CASH AND CASH FRAERAEEEY

EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 22 396,743 194,192
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1106, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates
. manufacture and sale of dye intermediates
. manufacture and sale of mononitrotoluene (comprising

para-nitrotoluene (“PNT”), ortho-nitrotoluene (“ONT”")
and meta-nitrotoluene (“MNT”)) as well as ortho-
toluidine (“OT”) and others

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding company
and parent of the Company is Cavalli Enterprises Inc.,
a company registered in the British Virgin Islands and
controlled by Mr. Ge Yi (“Mr. Ge”).

LAFRFREFH

ARARAA—FXNHASHSEMK
YWEBERAT - ARG FEMPS
B 9 i 3f 2P.O. Box 472, 2nd
Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1106, Cayman
Islands °

RRABAB-—RREZRAT - RF
N ARANMEBLAREEZRSEU
IRCER

s EBERTEENEEMNHKE
s RPPEEMNEEMKE

e —HERX(BREYHAR
R(PNTD - M E R X
(TONTD) UK B M ERX
(TMNT)) » #BR X (OT))
REAMNEEMEE

BEERAE FARAARAERAAR
& A7) A Cavalli Enterprises Inc. -
—FREBEZESTAMNATAR
AHXREE(TXREEDEZERHID
o
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. LAFRFEEZFH(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries BEHBARNER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

ARABEEWBE QA RNFREI W

142

follows: T:
Place and date of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share Percentage of equity
Name establishment capital interest attributable to
AL/ BT the Company Principal activities
AR HIHRAS LER/EMEx  ADEEGREASE  TEER
Direct Indirect
E# A&
% %

Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong)
Co., Limited
(FRILE(EB)BRAT)

Tsaker Chemical (Cangzhou)
Co., Limited
(FRILZ (RN BRAR)

Tsaker Chemical (Dongguang)
Co., Limited
(FRILZ () BRAR)

Tsaker Chemical (Dongying)
Co., Limited
(FRILE(RE)BRAT)

Tsaker Technology (Beijing)
Co., Limited
(FENHK (R) BRAF)

Tsaker (Beijing) Investment
Co., Limited

(¥2 (AR REEEERAT)"

Shandong Tsaker Dongao
Chemicals Co., Limited

(WRFERRERRAR)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Hong Kong

2 September 2010
£
~E-FFAACA

Hebei, People’s Republic of
China (‘PRC")

23 September 2005

PEARLAE (HE)
ibiA

“ZRRFARCTER

Hebei, PRC

7 May 2013
HE
“Z-ZETRtH

Shandong, PRC

20 May 2014
PEILE
“E-MEERZTH

Beijing, PRC

17 October 2013
PEILR
“E-ZETATLA

Beijing, PRC

21 September 2015
HELR
ZE-RFAACT-H

Shandong, PRC

15 March 2004
FEILR
“REMEZATER

HK$34,174,000

34,174,000387

RMB125,000,000

AR%125,000,0007

RMB66,000,000

AR 66,000,000 7

RMB30,000,000

AR 30,000,000 70

RMB40,000,000

AR 40,000,000 70

RMB30,000,000

AR 30,000,000 70

RMB23,800,000

AR 23,800,000 70

100 -

Investment holding and chemical
sale

RERRAEmEE

Chemical production and sale

tEREENSE

Chemical production and sale

tEREENHEE

Chemical production and sale
tEREENHE

Internal technical support and
chemical sale

REBRAZ BN EnEE

Investment holding

REZR

Chemical production and sale
and leasing

tEmEERBERESR



B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. L2FREKEEH (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about joint ventures EEEELAANER
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: EERATWFBEHIWNT :
Place and date of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered share Percentage of equity
Name establishment capital interest attributable to
AL/ R the Company Principal activities
AL RUBERAH LER/AMERx  ALAAEERERSL IEEH
Direct Indirect
ER B
% %
Tibet Wen Xuan Tibet, PRC RMB1,000,000 - 30 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd 4 December 2015 RERR
(BETREREBRAR) HERE AR 1,000,000 T
“E-IE+-ARA
Shenzhen Xuan Cai Equity Shenzhen, PRC RMB2,000,000 - 30 Investment holding
Venture Capital Fund 1 April 2016 REER
Management Co., Ltd ER AR 2,000,000
(REFAEREETER “Z2-7EMA-H

ARAT)

* The registered capitals of RMB19,210,000 have been paid by
31 December 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of Tsaker Chemical
Group Limited which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

21

* BE-Z-AE+t-A=+-R-
3% {9 25 7 8 4 A R #19,210,000
7EO

LRI 2 FLEZEERRLT
MEBAR DNESRAERFEHE
REEAZEYHBUAKEEFE
E2ETERN ESAR/REHAEM
MBLARZHBEESHEERBR
T °

WEEE

FHBBRRDIREFBSHALE
((EREMAS ) EANE B
BHEE ([ EFEBMBHREER )
(BEEBUBMELER FBET
ER((BBEHAER ) RERE) &
BLARERRRE B D RRGIH
BERER VUBHRCREESL
BABEAmAEME - UARE (T A
RED25 MEPHRBESEITE
BRERBIONTN HE5EEHRE
BRIM o

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
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BT E BT
Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Comparative information

Certain comparative amounts have been restated
to conform with the current year’s presentation and
disclosures. In addition, certain items in the consolidated
financial statements have been restated due to business
combinations under common control, further summary
details of which are included in Note 4 below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combinations under common control are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
Detailed accounting policies are set out in Note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

21 WREEE)

BOFEE (&)

B Rk H M2z & E AR
NEBRAKEZATNZEEAR
FERER  NELESEHFE
REZEEBEME - TERBELSE
EEREARBZRZ 2EEAM
[AFEEEREE  B&@m - WA
AXRREREENGFEAERR
HIK A o

HEERBEREREXHMBEARZ
SN BRI = EESEEZ -
HEZEHRE AEESEHT
HERBEBWRES - UEKLE
EHEZHNBARBREERED
DYESE PN

HMAEBAREHHWBE LR ZEZEH
B BRILIERNEZHBLARZE
E(BEBE)REE (i) AFE
BB R Z BREE R (i) AR R
R BTERESR ) REZ(EK
REZAAREBE (i) FIRBZEMAER
B2 ARBER(i) WERPEMTE
HEEZBSBHERE  AAIERE
fli 2 HE WA ATERR 2 AR E B A
REFIBEERBINREERN (0
B) BREHEAEBEEHERRBEE
EREEMEFERAZEERR -

HEZFHTHEBSHERERS
BEAR - SR BRFRHANEGS
B IRRFIRE2.4 -
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2.2

B E R

Notes to Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

2.2 ERRRRECZEE

REBERAFEMBHRRE RN
THAREETERBUBREE

U

BRMBRELE 105
BEMBREEAE 125

REBEERZE 285
(Z2——%) 287

S S L ERLE
2458

BEMBRELERE 145
BAGERE 1R 25T
BASEAE 165K
BHRETTERE R
pa ]

BASEAE 165K
BASEAEAR
pa ]

BASERE TSR
(ZB——F) 283

—E-—FEZF-MF
BHZFERE

REERE
VEA-D:
HoIMER

hELERE
Ei Sk

EEHTHF
#EHY

TEZHER
By EZ

RS
/‘_‘%/ﬁ

B LtENM
&Y

ERBHE
iRz &z

/e

HLEEBY
BREER
pa H]



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 ERRKEZSE ()

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS
14, amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, and certain
amendments included in the Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of
the amendments are described below:

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify: (i) the materiality requirements in HKAS
1; (ii) that specific line items in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of financial
position may be disaggregated; (iii) that entities have
flexibility as to the order in which they present the
notes to financial statements; and (iv) that the share
of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line
item, and classified between those items that will or
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The amendments have had no
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method
for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current
assets.

BRBMBHREERE 105 - FEBH
BHRELENE12HEREBSTEL
B8R (ZT——F) 285 - &8
MBRELNE MR 2B - &8
BB mEERE145% - BB E
B 16 RERBS T EAEAIRZ
BIR—FE-——FE-F-NFH
HFEXERBENE TEILR
HEASE M BHRRMEBES - BB
B2 MERZEHAWT -

(a) BBAETEAFE1HEBITEE
HEBREN2MRIEESDE
RESEHMERS - ZZ5BTE
B BEBEENE 1AM
EAMBE iGEABEERE
fth2E KRR RES MR
KRAZBEEBATFAD ;5 iii)
ERBREL2 VMK REME
WIEFESEEME ) Riv)EA
EEEARNDEBE ATRR
EEATMEMEEIRE LA
EREBEEEHZAZY W E
EREITSHEAEHIESR
BENZEEHEBETEE -
o ZEBITEFRESH
BHRRARRGEBEEREMLE
HU R A2 HIEE I FHEFE
RANRE - ZEBITRBETS
HAEENUBREEEEMN
BEAEE -

(b) BEBEFTEANFI6HERESE
FHERIE 38 RIER] BBERBE
FFERIE 165 R EBE TR
F38EFZFEA BN ER
MEKEER(ZEEAH -
By EEZEBNZMIER
BEREEERECEBENZE 2
B o Bt WREFRBRAR
WEWE BMERSKRE LA
BEFEERZBERTITAR
BEBLEE - ZSETHE
R - ZESBiI8AEE i
BB KRB EEEFME
2, FREANEENAREHAK
BEAMTEHIERBEEZINE -

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED

EEILBEEEERAT

147



148

2.2

B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

The HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments allow entities to
use the equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
their separate financial statements. Entities already
applying HKFRSs and electing to change to the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in their separate
financial statements are required to apply the change
retrospectively. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group did not elect to apply the change.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

. HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Clarifies that the disclosures in respect of
the offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities in HKFRS 7 are not required in the
condensed interim financial statements, except
where the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report, in which case the
disclosures should be included in the condensed
interim financial statements. The amendments
have had no significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Clarifies that a servicing contract that includes
a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature
of the fee and arrangement against the guidance
for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in order
to assess whether the HKFRS 7 disclosures are
required. The assessment of which servicing
contracts constitute continuing involvement
must be done retrospectively. However, the
required disclosures need not be provided for
any period beginning before the annual period
in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not have any servicing
contracts.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Clarifies that
market depth of high quality corporate bonds
used for discounting the post-employment
benefit obligation for defined benefit plans
is assessed based on the currency in which
the obligation is denominated, rather than the
country where the obligation is located. When
there is no deep market for high quality corporate
bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not have
any defined benefit plans.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies
that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements
or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever
they are included within the interim financial
report. The amendment also specifies that the
information within the interim financial report
must be available to users on the same terms
as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. The amendment is not applicable
to the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
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2.3

P BER R

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for application now.

23 EMFERRERZEEMBEES

2R (#)

FHRAHERARAEE z2ZEE R
MBRELER 2E—FERUT ¢

RZZE-NFEAA BEGTHA
SEMEBMISREEDNEIRMN
BRERAN SeMIEBENRE
BERER—BUREETBETEL
FIVERERBMIEREEREINR
FEEBEARA o ZERSIADHE
RitE - BERSTEITEENH
RE - AEERHE-Z—N\F—
B—BRRMNEEMEREEAEO
5% o REEBEFAZEAFE -

BBV BRELENFEI10RREES
FTERE 285K (2T ——F) 2185
HEBBUBERELENEI10RRE
BEFTEAE28H(ZE——F) 2
BERREERABRERSE QT
ZEZEEHER IEMEREZ
T—HBER ZFEBITRE  ER
EEHABEREENAZBNE
EHEIIERBR —EHEKE A
BAZERZIER EXZHR
THERE-BEB2EER > AZX
SEEZWRRBRERZREEZ
BREAER HELATHEREE
REBESSLELRAZERRMR -
ZEBITNEER - EBEFMD
BER=ZE-RNF-AKREEN
BREEAEI0RREBSER
F28 (2T ——F) 2BrI ik’
FAERBH > MR ERE B
BREBEREERRANSTFE
BRZNEE-—SxRETUEE
A ZER TR -

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED

EEILBEEEERAT

151



152

2.3

B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implement issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC) — Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)
— Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. The amendments will result in additional
disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2017.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application
for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions
on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an
entity should determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition of subsidiaries and business under common
control, where applicable, has been accounted for using the
pooling of interests method, with reference to the principle
set out in Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations issued by the HKICPA.
The financial statements of the businesses under common
control are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

The pooling of interests method of accounting involves
incorporating the financial statement items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common control
combinations occur as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the control of the controlling shareholder. The
net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
shareholder’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or the excess of the acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of investment at the
time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control or since their
respective dates of incorporation/establishment, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

2.4 FEEHBREAE(E)

EBEHREHE

BEEBSITMASAEM S
EoIESR R AREFT 256
EREHEEIEER > Wi
ZEHEESZHE QAR ER(iH
EA) CRAESBRESHETEA
fRe RHAREHN 2B 2HBRE
BREAQAMEEZ2RMEERA—
B ETTBREH -

REBESHEFEIRFFAHR
HEZHGENEHERIERN
MBHMREE  BUZRFEEBZ
LM ERAEBRERZREER
RREFEAECEGERE-
EHERIEBRNEE FEMKERE
BRBRRWER  RARTREES
fto TENHERBBINRKE
LARAEE BERIAKEDR
FEENESBHAREHERR
RENRENANZHBATMEH
2o

REeBEERHM2EREREES
REBERSEKEMEH2&EH
HYEZEGREERAEBERZH
BEHEAHXBEEZT A ZEMK
N/RIBBEUBREREBESR
) 2XE TWAREHESHZA
e KRERARABREAEIBZE
B RE - REBREBFRREIR
REMRE RFIKEN o



P BER R

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations, other than business combinations
under common control, are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial information are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
information on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()
(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machines and equipment 9% to 19%
Office equipment 18% to 32%
Motor vehicles 9% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, machinery
and equipment under construction or installation, which
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group. Include
other criteria for writing off amounts charged to the allowance
account against the carrying amount of impaired financial
assets.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold; and

(b) interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Pension scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
members of the state-sponsored pension scheme operated
by the Mainland China government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the required contributions. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. The functional
currency of the Company is US dollars. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain entities within the
Group are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2.4 FEEHBREAR(E)

SN (&)

BEERAIIRUSINETENFE
HWEBUANSRZAHNE R
HeUIMNBERAABEFENFEE
HEERBEEAABEEANER
BE BMEFEREAELNWNREGE
FEERERZEENAABESR
BEANBNSRERER(NAERQ
REEWRERBECREMEZEY
AREREANIEE  HREEH
TR BN EM 2 E WA RBE SR E

) e

FEEETEENDREERSAR
HWUSNNER - RBEHKR &E
EENEERAGERBREPRER
MEXRBRE/AARYE  MHEEBSR
ZEENMEFIEXRREBAR
HE o

FFEEAEREZHEREtEEEB AR
AERERZERS - HEBIE
B EHZBEBNIEBEENE
b2 E WA B D RIEm P HER -

BAEESHRERERMS - BINE
RAZRERECKRFAMEFY
ERBERARE -

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED

EEILCBEEEERAT

177



178

BT E BT
Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred tax liabilities

The Group recognised deferred tax liabilities for part of
its foreign-invested subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings
of RMB16,000,000 (2015: RMB31,000,000). Under the
prevailing income tax law of the PRC and its relevant
regulations, dividends paid by PRC enterprises out of profits
earned after 31 December 2007 to non-PRC tax resident
investors are subject to PRC withholding tax of 10%. A
lower withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group in the past was charged with
withholding tax at a rate of 5% when those PRC subsidiaries
distributed profits to their holding companies outside
Mainland China. Therefore, the Group applied 5% to provide
for withholding taxes on retained profits to be distributed
(Note 27).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Management'’s estimation is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with tax planning strategies (Note
27).

Impairment assessment and net realisable value of
inventories

Inventories of the Group are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Management conducts assessments on
the net realisable value of inventories by reference to their
age, obsolescence, estimated net selling prices and other
economic conditions of the markets in which the Group’s
customers operate. If the actual selling prices of inventories
are substantially less than those expected due to an adverse
market condition or other factors, an impairment loss on
inventories may be incurred (Note 18).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment provision for receivables

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered as indicators that
a trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to
trade and other receivables are discounted if the effect of
discounting is material. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade and other receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade and other
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised as income in profit or loss. The
impairment is subject to management’s assessment at the
end of the reporting period, and hence, the provision amount
is subject to uncertainty (Note 19).

Property, plant and equipment-recoverable amount

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, each
asset or cash-generating unit is evaluated every reporting
period to determine whether there are any indications of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an estimate of
recoverable amount is performed and an impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
or cash-generating group of assets is measured at the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Property, plant and equipment — recoverable amount
(continued)

Value in use is generally determined as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of those expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset in its present form and
its eventual disposal. Present values are determined using
a risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate appropriate to the risks
inherent in the asset. Future cash flow estimates are based
on expected production and sales volumes, selling prices
(considering current and historical prices, price trends and
related factors) and operating costs. This policy requires
management to make these estimates and assumptions
which are subject to risk and uncertainty; hence there is a
possibility that changes in circumstances will alter these
projections, which may impact on the recoverable amount of
the assets. In such circumstances, some or all of the carrying
value of the assets may be impaired and the impairment
would be charged against profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment — estimated useful lives and
residual values

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values (if applicable) and consequently
related depreciation/amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will increase the depreciation/amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, and it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore in
depreciation/amortisation expense in future periods.
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4. RESTATEMENT 4. H7|
As a result of the business combination under common HR-ZE-A"EEYERBEZHAGIE
control of Tsaker Dongao (as detailed in Note 30) in 2016, HTHEES O (GEBRMEES0)
the relevant line items in the consolidated statement of HEzE-E-—HAF+=-A=+—HL
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year FEEzHnEeEERAEMEE KRS
ended 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of X -HR=E—FHF+=-HA=+—H
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated CEHREHMBRRAEK REERED
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated KEBE2=E-HFE+=ZA=1+—
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December BLEEZHAEREREREHEM
2015 have been restated as follows: HEEHWNT :
The Group
(as previously Tsaker The Group
reported) Dongao (as restated)
r5E r5E
(MEIZH) PERR (&E5)
Condensed consolidated statement of profitorloss  HZ=F-RE&+=F=1—H
and other comprehensive income for the ILFECBREEERR
year ended 31 December 2015: At ERER
Revenue W& 875,711 4,559 880,270
Profit for the year FEEAN 102,258 (4,788) 97,470
Other Comprehensive income for the year, netof tax EEEMZEYA » HFFHE 23,528 - 23,528
Total comprehensive income for the year FERENALE 125,786 (4,788) 120,998
Condensed consolidated statement of financial RZE-1E+ZA=t-Hz
position as at 31 December 2015: BRFEIMBMRRE :
Non-current assets FRBEE 593,697 255,858 849,555
Current assets RBEE 863,539 27,488 891,027
Total assets BENE 1,457,236 283,346 1,740,582
Current liabilities RBaE 606,792 262,882 869,674
Non-current liabilties FREEE 8,356 - 8,356
Total liabilities BfEE%E 615,148 262,382 878,030
Net assets EEFE 842,088 20,464 862,552
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4. RESTATEMENT (CONTINUED) 4. B (#&\)
The Group

(as previously Tsaker The Group

reported) Dongao (as restated)

*58 r5E

(MEI2HR) FERR (f&=5))

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent BARHEE NEGER 842,088 - 842,088
Deemed contribution RfELE 24,626 24,626
Total comprehensive income in 2014 RoE-ME2ERALE 626 626
Total comprehensive income for the year EREEWAER (4,788) (4,788)
Total equity T 842,088 862,552

Consolidated statement of changes in equity HE-Z-RE+-A=t-H
for the year ended 31 December 2015; HEEZGEREETR
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent SAFEE AEGER 842,088 842,088
Deemed contribution from the then shareholder RIEEBRR 2 HE 24,626
Total comprehensive income in 2014 R=B-ME22ERAEE 626
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EUALE (4,788)
Total equity BREE 842,088 862,552
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ~ HZ=F-H&+=F=+-8
ended 31 December 2015: LEERGARERER

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities TETBHRE/ (FR) BERE 39,305 48,212 87,517
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities RETBFRE/ (FR) BEHE (214,035) (107,377) (321,412)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities RETBFRE/ (FR) BEHE 266,690 50,781 326,471
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Ex2BNFHE 5,442 - 5,442
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the pigment intermediates segment produces pigment
intermediates products for use in the production of
pigment;

(b) the dye intermediates segment produces dye
intermediates products for use in the production of dye
related products; and

(c) the mononitrotoluene, OT and other segment produces
PNT, ONT, MNT, OT and others.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated mainly based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except the profit or loss for the Company are
excluded from such measurement.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilities are
same as total assets and total liabilities for the consolidated
statement of financial position, excluding assets and
liabilities related to the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEERE

EESBEH

HREBEZBN AEEEZHEER
Bl REBEN BT =@

2HREEDER -

(a) BERTHEEIBEERRER
EENERTEEER

(b) FERFEEBIMBEERANER
HEEREENRRTEEE
m R

(c) —MWHERX MPAXRRRHEM
DELEEPNT » ONT » MNT »
OTRHEMER -

EEEBVERAKENEE D
RE URERDERRRFMEE
HARK e 2RBEETBZERNAT 2R
ZERER (B8 FRE - LRV
AEBRBADER,(BIB) R -
RAEBRBANGR(F1B) REXR
SEBRBAEN -BNLSAEE
HAQBEHERTABRENE -

THMEEREBEDREGSPHNR
MEANEERERBERLAERRN
LFAFE HREAQXTEEANEE
K& @RI o



B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BESWMEH(EAE)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=-E—-—R"E+=ZB=+—HLt
FE
Pigment Dye Mononitrotoluene,
intermediates intermediates 0T and others Consolidated
—HERK
BRTER PEAEE  BRRERER 2e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Segment revenue: ABE
Revenues from exteral customers REMDEFHYE 197,444 482,235 361,463 1,041,142
Intersegment sales PHEEE 171,406 313,854 66,301 551,561
368,850 796,089 427,764 1,592,703

Reconciliation: Lo
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEHELH (951,561)
Revenue from continuing operations BELEEREL NS 1,041,142
Segment results i 286,263 110,021 431,487
Reconciliation Eitd
Elimination of other income due to EAREEKENL

unrealised gains WAZE (807)
Elimination of investment income REWAHSE (262,000)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses  BEREMAIBRER (14,222)
Profit before tax B AER 154,458
Segment assets THEE 522,078 1,029,140 522,850 2,074,068
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment receivables ppld etk (705,374)
Corporate and other unallocated assets CERAMAABERE 571,287
Elimination of unrealised profitin inventories KB & HFIE8 (248)
Total assets BESE 1,939,733
Segment liabilities 2H8E 205,865 804,036 469,748 1,479,649
Reconciliation 8%
Elimination of intersegment payables DEEAT B (705,374)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties CERAMAAEEE 204473
Total liabiiies IR 978,748
Other segment information AftAHER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or REENEINEE

loss for inventories HERE - 1,833 1,833
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE 24,373 18,842 56,011
Capital expenditure EREY 127,754 63,912 204,523
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BESBEHHE)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2015 (Restated) BE-E—HF+=-B=+—HLt
FE(KEY)
Pigment Dye Mononitrotoluene,
intermediates intermediates OT and others Consolidated
—HERE.
BRTER FHPEE  BRRRRAL ga
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

Segment revenue: D
Revenues from external customers REMIZFHYE 185,527 552,079 142,664 880,270
Intersegment sales AHBHE 93,337 204,584 45,710 343,631
278,864 756,663 188,374 1,223,901
Reconciliation: o
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEHEH (343,631)
Revenue from continuing operations REBELEEKY
i 880,270
Segment results PHEE 45,536 161,268 (19,041) 187,763
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment transactions 2 SR 548 (654)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2% k2 EHX (45,756)
Profit before tax BRBERER 141,353
Segment assets IHEE 426,194 1,048,927 362,287 1,837,408
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment receivables 7 SR FE L8 (646,594)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ ®EREMAIREE 549,821
Elimination of unrealised profit in inventories &R & RFIL# (93)
Total assets BEEE 1,740,582
Segment liabilities AHEE 364,977 590,715 354,400 1,310,092
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment payables AEHEEATIEE (646,594)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ~ %R EMK I BEE 214,532
Total liabilities BEEEH 878,030
Other segment information At HEs
Impairment losses recognised in profitor ~ REZEAEIHNEE
loss for inventories HEEE - - 1,788 1,788
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 9,935 20,332 13,727 43,994
Capital expenditure EARY 13,934 28,017 248 541 290,492

186 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEERE



B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BESBEHEE)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information IR E R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RBEIMBEFHWKE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(Restated)
(#&E5)
Mainland China A A B 706,646 496,815
India ENE 107,570 119,076
Germany = 51,415 55,440
United States %E 48,486 51,295
Indonesia ENEfEfae 29,633 42,503
Taiwan =¥ | 28,617 31,735
Italy BARF 23,281 20,996
Spain (s 14,193 20,995
Japan SN 12,989 15,730
Brazil By 9,661 16,414
Turkey T+EH 3,135 4,017
Korea B2 3,007 2,284
Other countries HiE =R 2,509 2,970
1,041,142 880,270
Revenue information above is based on the locations LW EERTIRIEEFRE
of the customers. NERSH -
The Group’s non-current assets are substantially TEBHWERBEERE RIS
located in Mainland China. AL EIARRE o
(b) Information about major customers (b) FEEFEHR
In 2016, the Group did not have any revenue from R-ZZB—ARE REBILHER
sales to a single customer which accounted for 10% or BHE-—EZEPFPZHERFMEX
more of the Group’s total revenue. EEAWZFE10% R E -
In 2015, revenue of approximately RMB89,108,000 R-ZE-—FHF AR
was derived from sales by the dye intermediates 89,108,000 JT 9 Yt &5 3k B Z 8t
segment to a single customer. TR MBE—BETFPHEE -
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. W& RtKARKE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, KBEFAMEEREHIREE R
after allowances for returns and trade discounts during the BREERNEBNEZZRE -
year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: Wi s BB ARKZES T :
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARYET T
(Restated)
(F&EH)
Revenue g
Sale of goods HEEM 1,041,142 880,270
1,041,142 880,270
Other income and gains Hibg A R i
Bank interest income SRITRIE WA 2,557
Government grants* BT B 4,797
Sale of materials and scrap SHEM B EER 11,068
Others Hith 672
19,094
1,060,990 899,364
* Government grants included subsidies granted by * BR#EEBRNENARIEE?
governmental units to support qualified research programs R EmE N B RAAT
and rewards for the listing (“Listing”) of the Company’s RO AR ER LS (TE® D E
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, which are W RNEBEBRAELBMARGE
recognised as income during the relevant period when such REIERRABBA - BFFBTE
expenses were incurred and the conditions for the grants FHESERRPEETBEN®@E
were fulfilled. Government grants also included grants that BB EELE LN EREEENTE
are related to qualified long-lived assets and such grants were HAaEAFHREREMKETTA
deferred and released to profit or loss as other income over B o  ZEHBSWEMFEMEK
the expected useful lives of the relevant assets. There are no ERIFHNRAREE -

unfulfilled conditions on contingencies attached to the grants.
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FINANCE COSTS 7. HMEREF
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: A DT ¢
2016 2015
AL —E-5fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
(Restated)
(#&E5)
Interest on bank loans IRITERFE 21,500 8,788
Other financial costs HAth B R AR 1,659 5,651
Less: Interest capitalised B BARIEF B (12,842) (7,105)
7,334
The weighted average interest rate of capitalisation for the BE-_Z—R"E+-A=+—HL
year ended 31 December 2016 was 5.10% (for the year FEEXRLSENMET IR
ended 31 December 2015: 6.41%). A510% (BE=-Z—HF+=A
=+—HILFE :6.41%) °
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. MKMEIRF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEBRBADER LM (5T
(crediting): N UTRESE
2016 2015
—EB-XRE —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARBT T ARETT
(Restated)
(f&E5)
Cost of inventories sold EEFENKAE 747,537 612,939
Depreciation e 15 54,269 44,047
Research and development costs  ff 3% f 2 9,710 15,136
Amortisation of land lease TR E RIS
payments 16 4,573 4,036
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B Bl 57 B 3,100 4,165
Employee benefit expense EERAHX (FEEE
(excluding directors’ and chief EERFETHAE
executive’s remuneration 9 3557 B
(Note 9)) (M95E9))
Wages, salaries and welfare I¥-HekEAN 75,994
Pension and other social BREREMERR
insurances 24,167
Exchange losses, net [E 5 E5 18 5 48 4,244
Loss on disposal of items of HEME BMERSEE
property, plant and equipment HE WEE -
Write-down of inventories to FEMRZETEIRFE
net realisable value 18 1,788
Recovery of impairment of ez AR E TR
trade receivables WEZ B 5 EWFRIE (3,443)
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EFRIETHAEMFHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RAFERBELTHREY - BEBLT
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), &BIZE383(1)(a) ~ (b) * )R (HERA
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and A(EEEEFHER) RBIE 2R
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about EFREBECESEREIETHRAERH
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: BNE ST -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Fees B 375
Other emoluments: Hiiph & -
Salaries, allowances and 4  ZEEEREYER
benefits in kind 1,677
Performance related bonuses* RIRFEAL* 2,014
Pension scheme contributions EREFH B 230
3,921
4,296
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to * KATETHITESPEBRER
bonus payments which are determined as a percentage of the SERFERANIE-—EEILHE
profit after tax of the Group. ZAEAL °
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FAENBUFHTESZE
during the year were as follows: AESINT
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARBETT

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung R E %4 75
Mr. Zhu Lin REAREE 75
Mr. Yu Miao FEEE 75
225
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER TEENBIFHITES
independent non-executive directors during the year HEMME (ZZ—hF : |) -
(2015: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

2016 ZE-RE

Executive directors; irES .
Mr. Ge Yi AWk
Mr. Duan Weidong @ REREE
Ms. Dong Zhongmei @ ERgate
Ms. Duan Weihua " EE Gl
Mr. Bai Kun REAEO
M. Jin Ping R

Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Xiao Yongzheng BERLE
Mr. Fontaine Alain Fontaine Alain Vincent

Vincent i
Total o)

Executive directors, non-executive directors

Fees

fig
RMB'000
ARBT R

Salaries,
allowances and
henefits in kind

#4 2RR
ENilE
RMB’000

ARETT

ESEREETHARMTHH ()

(b) HITESKFHTES

Performance  Pension scheme
related bonuses contributions Total
Bihe
FRRA SRS &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTR
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFIETHRARBMOTEME)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITESRFHITEE(E)
(continued)

Salaries,
allowances and Performance  Pension scheme
Fees  henefitsinkind  related bonuses contributions Total
4 BER e
ik ENAlg AL HE 258 &zt
2015 ZE-1f RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

Executive directors: by £
Mr. Ge Yi v - 612 - 98 70
Mr. Duan Weidong BEREEY - 127 816 29 972
Ms. Dong Zhongmei @ ERgate - 286 550 2 865
Mr. Shi Qiang %A - 366 132 1 499
Ms. Jin Ping a¥at - 286 516 13 875
- 1671 2,014 230 3,921
Non-executive directors: ~ FEITES :
Mr. Xiao Yongzheng BEREE 75 - - - 75
Mr. Fontaine Alain Fontaine Alain Vincent
Vincent %k 75 - - - 75
150 - - - 150
Total CHl 150 1,677 2,014 230 407
(1)  Appointed as directors of the Company on 25 August 1) RIEBE-—RENBZT+EHBHEZME
2016. RARDNEES -
(2) Resigned on 25 August 2016 from the position of 2) RIBE-—XRENBZT+EHBBREE
directors. Eo
There was no arrangement under which a director RER BEFTANEEREREE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the HEEA SN2 HE -
year.
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEESHHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included RERTERSTFHEERBRE=S
three directors (2015: three directors), details of the EFE(ZE-—HF =RKEE) I
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2015: FAERNFNESHNHRTME(ZZE—1
two) highest paid employees who are not directors of the F MA)ERTNEERFRNE
Company are as follows: BT ¢

2016 2015

ZE-RE —E-HF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Salaries, allowances and e RMREBEYRNZ
benefits in kind 1,148
Performance related bonuses RBEA 650
Pension scheme contributions EREFTEIMR 156
1,954
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose TN FUTHENFESRESH
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: MEENAZAT :
Number of employees EEAH
2016 2015
—B-XE —T-HF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Z= AR% 1,000,000 7T 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A K% 1,000,001 t&
AE# 1,500,000 7T 1
2
11. INCOME TAX 11. FiE#
Cayman Islands HEHS
Under the current income tax laws of the Cayman Islands, REBEFENRITAERZE K
the Company is not subject to tax on any income or capital NBABAREABARERKRREH
gain. mBE o
Hong Kong BE
Under the current income tax laws of Hong Kong, companies REEBRTAEHE AREMR
are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5% on assessable EERELAYRBEETBNERD G
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong. FIR16.5% B R MM EBFIBH -
Singapore Fhnig
Under the current income tax laws of Singapore, companies RIEFMERITRER L AAA
are subject to Singapore profits tax at 17% on assessable o TE 37 003 E AR SR 3R B 3T N3 A0 B
profits arising in or derived from Singapore. RFUERIE 17% BB =R 40 57 iR
FIBH -
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INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Mainland China

The Company subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and related
laws and regulations, Tsaker Chemical (Cangzhou) Co.,
Ltd. (CE&E{LE (CAM) BRAT) (‘Tsaker Cangzhou”)
withholds corporate income tax at the rate of 5% when
it distributes dividends to Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (“Tsaker Hong Kong”) in respect of
earnings generated commencing from 1 January 2008.

11. IR (&)
PEARAME ([HEIAFE]D

RARARRPERENEQRER
25% B ERBMAEH (ZEREE
BRIM) o

RETBEEERSHERERER
RESR  RBLEBOEM) BRLF
(TREARMDRERZ-ZZNF -
A-HERBELENMERA @R
ELBE(ER)ARARAIEES
B 2IKR B TR 5% MR EFTE
Fi o

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETT
(Restated)

(&%)

Current — PRC BIHER — P E
Charge for the year FAZH
Deferred IERE

44,233
(350)

Total tax charge for the year FABIAZ HBRE

43,883

Reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for Mainland China, in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the

ERAREARE (AR KREDHER
BIFRFE ) SR RE B R E R BRBL AT &
F3E A BB IR T B AR B R B RS

tax expense at the effective tax rate, is as follows: EMHEAEERNOT ¢

2016 2015

ZB-RF —Z-1F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®T

(Restated)

(F=E751)

Profit before tax BRELATE R 154,458 141,353
Tax at the statutory income tax rate (25%) EE SRR (25%) 5T EHFE 38,615 35,338
Tax loss not recognised REROBBRER - 4,015
The effect of different tax rates RREENTE 1,056 60
Non-deductible expenses kR 1,317 4,312
Income not subject to tax BEZHHBA (1,944) (358)

Additional deduction of research T AR LA HN0R

and development costs (AR EX)) (1,034)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & iB{E HARI OB IEE 18 (3,604) -
Withholding tax BMH (750) 1,550
Total income tax expense FriSHip 2% 43,883
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ARRANGEMENTS WITH CHINA CHEM CO.,
LTD.

The Group entered into various arrangements with China
Chem Co., Ltd. (“China Chem”), an unrelated party, for sale
of products and purchase of raw materials. Based on these
arrangements, China Chem is considered as the agent
for and on behalf of the Group in the respective sale and
purchase transactions.

In the sale arrangements, the Group has latitude in
establishing prices, and the primary responsibility for
providing the goods to the customer, bears inventory risk
during shipment, and credit risk for the amount receivable
from end customers. Accordingly, the Group recognises
revenue from sale of products based on the respective
amounts billed to end customers. Under all the above-
mentioned arrangements, China Chem provides certain
administrative work and financing service (on improving
the Group’s working capital management) in return for
service and interest charges, respectively. The financing
service under arrangements of sale of products is related
to expediting settlement of receivables while the financing
service under arrangement of purchase of raw materials
is related to delaying settlement of payables. The service
charges paid on administrative work relating to sale of
products form part of selling and distribution expenses of
the Group while those relating to purchase of raw materials
are considered as part of purchase cost of the related raw
materials. Financing charges are recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as other finance cost in
profit or loss.

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend a final dividend at RMB0.073
(2015: RMB0.062) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016. The dividend was not recognised
as a liability as at the end of the reporting period.

The directors also recommend a bonus issue of shares on
the basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every
one share held by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), subject to the Shareholders’ approval at
the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 16
June 2017.

12.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent is based
on the following data:

14. BAFREREREHETABGSRE
7

BRAEERSRAEARLGERE
ARBERADENUTRETE ¢

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
(Restated)

(&)

120,921 97,470

Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable FARAREBRER
to ordinary equity holders BB AEMLER
of the parent (RMB’000) (AR®TFT)
Shares ik E|
Weighted average number of ARGTESRERAREE
ordinary shares in issue during BRI E BRI
the year used in the FHEE(TR)

basic and diluted earnings per
share calculation ('000)

501,125 437,290

Earnings per share BRER

Basic and diluted (RMB) BEARNEE (ARY)

0.22

The Group did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BERERMH
Machinery
and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
CE e HARE hE fEIE Ehy

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR

31 December 2016 Z2-R"ETZRZT-H
At31 December 2015 R-B-RE12AZt-H

and 1 January 2016 R=Z2-7~5-B-H

(restated) (&E5) -
Cost A 231,108 371,420 9,714 2,252 318,296 932,790
Accumulated depreciation  EiHFERHE

and impairment 789 (152051) ) (1.281) - (1%97m)
Net carrying amount BEFE 189,319 219,369 5,063 965 318,296 733,012

At1 January 2016, netof ~ RZE-"E-f-F-
acumulated depreciation  HIBEHFERAE

and impairment 189,319 219,369 318,296 733,012
Additions HE 2,415 204 315 202,023 205,605
Disposals HE (1,066) (1,276) (4) - (2,346)
Depreciation provided during IS EIE

the year (14,494 (37,660) (162 - (54,269)
Transfers 2 93,881 79,713 80 (173,674) =

At 31 December 2016, netof  H=E—~RE+A
accumulated depreciation  =+—H - Ik

and impairment ZIMEREE 210,055 260,350 346,645 882,002
At 31 December 2016; RIB-RE
tZB=t-B:
Cost R 326,173 449,461 10,074 2,900 346,645 1,135,253
Accumulated depreciation  B3HERAE
and impairment (56,118) (189,111) (6,242) (1,780) - (253,251)
Net carrying amount HETE 210,055 260,350 3,832 1,120 346,645 862,002

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 497
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements

15. W% - WRE R\ ()

(CONTINUED)
Machinery and Office Consruction
Buildings equipment equipment  Motor vehicles in progress Total
BF  REREE R i3 EEIR At
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2015 (restated) —F-FEE+=F=1-8
(&&3)
At31December 2014and  W=F-BET=A=t-A
1 January 2015; R=Z-1%-B-H
Cost R 197,323 333,045 8,212 2,249 124,662 665,491
Accumulated depreciaton  BiHTERFE
and impaiment (1408)  (120820) (3790) (63) (1615 (158467)
Net carrying amount BEFE 165,917 212,225 4422 1413 123,047 507,024
A1 January 2015, netof ~ RZE-RE-B-H-
accumulated depreciation  FIRREEHTEREE
and impairment 165,917 212,225 4422 1413 123,047 507,024
Additions HE 440 5402 1,704 3 265,032 272,581
Disposals e (2.466) (24) (56) - - (2,546)
Depreciation provided during  FARELHE
the year (1.341) (31,248) (1,007) (451) - (#4,47)
Transfers g2 36,769 33,014 - - (69,783) -
At 31 December 2015, netof  RZE-AETZA=1-H"
acoumulated depreciation  FIRREHTEREE
and impairment 189,319 219,369 5,063 965 318,296 733,012
At 31 December 2015: R-E-1%
tZA=t-8:
Cost AR 231,108 3711420 9,714 2,252 318,296 932,790
Accumulated depreciaton  EiHTERF(E
and impaiment M789)  (152051) (4651) (1,281) )
Net carrying amount BEFE 189,319 219,369 5,063 965 318,296 733,012

R-BE-—RNER=ZZE-—HE+=A
=t+—H rEEETEFREF

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain of the Group’s
buildings with aggregate net book values of RMB62,689,000
and RMB12,237,000 were pledged to secure bank loans of EEH AR®62,689,000t kAR
RMB80,000,000 and RMB20,000,000, respectively (Note #£12,237,000 7T) 2K AEUS R 1T
25). EFR AR 80,000,000t R AR
20,000,000 7t (MIFE 25) ©

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no impairment BE-_Z—R"E+-A=+—HL
loss was incurred. FE  WEMELREERE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. H1% BEREM (E)
(CONTINUED)
Included in the property, plant and equipment as at 31 R-E—-—RER=-ZZE—FHFE+=A
December 2016 and 2015 were certain buildings with ET-—HWYE BERREERE
net book values of RMB2,825,000 and RMB7,715,000 BREFED B A AR 2,825,0007T
respectively of which the property certificates have not been R AER¥ 7,715,000 JT Y& F s R B
obtained. SEEENETF -
The Directors are of the view of the Group is entitled to EERALREEERESEREBRE
lawfully and validly occupy and use the above mentioned ARFERLMEFT  BEESRAE L
buildings. The Directors are also of the opinion that the METTEHAEERFRTER
aforesaid matter will not have any significant impact on the MEREMERTLE -

Group’s financial position for the year.

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AMFLHBARRT

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-EHF
+=A=+—-8 +=A=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
(Restated)
(f&E51)
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEREE 94,148 64,788
Addition nE - 33,396
Amortisation during the year RE R (4,573) (4,036)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ = 8 =+—BMEREAE 94,148
Current portion (included ENHAER D (B ERFENFIER
in prepayments, and HA e FRIE)
other receivables) (4,368) (4,368)
Non-current portion JEBNERER 89,780
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the pledged prepaid RZZE-—RER=ZZ—-HF+=A
land lease payments amounted to RMB34,597,000 and =+—H CEFBEMALHEER
RMB24,734,000, respectively, to secure bank loans granted B Bl A AR 34,597,000 T & A
to the Group (Note 25). R #24,734,000 T » AEEE F &

SEARTER (HFE25) ©
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AHHERSE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-HF
t=B=t-8 +=A=t+-~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Non-publicly traded investments, ZERAFTEZHEARRZERE :

at cost:

Private equity fund in Tibet RARNXIRIXERERES
Winshare Equity Venture Capital &B1% (BREE)
Fund Partnership (Limited (IEFRIZE D) 2AEES

Partnership) (“Winshare Equity”)

As at 31 December 2016, an unlisted equity investment with R-ZE-—RE+ZHA=+—8H"

a carrying amount of RMB18,300,000 (2015: Nil) was stated HREEBEAAEEGTNWHEEER

at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair B UBESERAEAAEESE

value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the EZAUREGE HEEEAARY

opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The 18,300,000 t(=F—HF : &)z

Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future. FETRARERRAREES
R AEFRENOIRLEZER
& o

18. INVENTORIES 18. FK®

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-fHEF
t=A=+t—-RA t=HA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARET T
(Restated)
(f&E5)
Raw materials JE AT} 27,132
Work in progress EEm 11,386
Finished goods SR 42,439
83,598 80,957
Less: impairment provision B ORERE (1,833) (1,788)
79,169
As at 31 December 2016, none of the Group’s inventories RZE-—RE+ZA=+—H =K
was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (2015: EEFEMEFIKFEREERT
Nil). ERNERR(Z2—0F &) -
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. HHEWRIA
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(#2&E51)

B2 BWEIR

Trade receivables

206,623 164,268

206,623 164,268

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers and small-sized customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The credit
period is generally one month for domestic customers,
extending up to three months for overseas customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control on certain of its outstanding
receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

BRHEFRNARZFBEARARAN
MO AEBRAZFNEIERS
GREBEE -BREAEFMES ' 7
E-RAE—ER HRBIEF
AEREHZZ=EAR  BUEFH
EBAGFEELR - "EEORYE
T e R U B A FE W TR R R BR AR B
2o

BAGHSREEEEMERN -
ERAAIR A EENE 5 R
REESEREREAEF  A&H
THEEAFERTER -BEH5EK
RBRTETE °

REBEHHARNE 5 BEREN
BRER 0 AT (BB R B B I A0 BRI
B mT -

31 December 31 December

Within 1 month — @A R

1 month to 2 months — @B EZm{EA
2 months to 3 months MEBZ=1EA
3 months to 4 months =@ R Z{E A
Over 4 months ME A L

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
+=ZA=+—-H +=B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
(Restated)

(#&&&E5)

76,717

51,887

22,027

4,274

9,363

206,623 164,268
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

19. BHEUIHRIEA ()
B2 BUGRERERENEBNT ¢

2016 2015
—E-XF —ET-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(&%)
At 1 January n—A—H 3,443
Impairment loss reversed B EDR{EEE (3,443)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H -

As at 31 December 2014, provision for impairment of
trade receivables was a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables with a carrying amount before provision
of RMB3,443,000. The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to customers which were in unexpected
difficult economic situations and it was expected that
these receivables would not be recovered. The previously
fully impaired trade receivables of RMB3,443,000 were
recovered during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

R-ZE-—WNFE+=-A=+—-H B
ZREBREREREABINRER
SEVRERE RHBRERAE®
A AR 3,443,000 7T ° EBIRERE
WHBETEHEREMMEREEN
EFEH BEFEHZSEWRFEER
FEFRE BE-FT-HF+=
B=+—BLEE  SEUWE A
HEEFTIRBENE S EWRKIE -
AE#¥ 3,443,000 7t °

FEMNIHARERBBENE S E
W RRRE DTN

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E—-XEF —E—FE

t=A=+t—-RA t=HA=1—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT ARET T

(Restated)

(f&E5)

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR BTN ARORE 152,430 136,225
Less than 1 month past due BEDR—EA 31,822 12,545
1 to 3 months past due B —Z=1A 13,744 8,351
Over 3 months past due BHEI=EA L 8,627 7,147

206,623 164,268

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

B R 180 5 7% RO B A BB R B K
EfEEFER  WERNOHILE
EBARCE -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable of the Group are all bank acceptance
notes and are usually settled within six months from their
respective dates of issue. None of the notes receivable as at
the end of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was
past due or impaired.

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety:

The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted
by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with aggregate carrying amounts of RMB52,305,000 and
RMB47,415,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015,
respectively, to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
trade payables due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”).
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the Endorsed Notes and the associated other payables.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including the
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other
third parties. None of the Endorsed Notes settled during the
year have been recoursed as at the end of the year.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety:

19.

20.

BABURIN (4])

EEHERBENERRIRES
BAUEFERE HERAKENY
RELBERE - REBEER S
RREFEERTESEANE B
HEEHRDHEARTE2HKE - B

SR AR R S A R A R E R o
FEM R i

FEENEREBEIBRITEALZR
B UIBERASBERTRPEN
BAREE REBE-ZF-—~FR
ZE-AF+ZR=+t-HLEHFE
R BEERREBHIME -

AEFRIEBRINCERSHEE :

AEBEEETEPBERERITE
WHERZEE(EEEE) THEHSE
THER UXFT#EIZEHERD
NESZENRE RZZE—RFR
—E-AF+-A=+-—HWHAR
HED B A ARY52,305,000 T &
AREE47415000c ([HE]) - &
ERE AEEEELNREBER
FEH ETESEEBEEEEN
EHNRRE Bt AEEFERR
EEZENHAREENREE
ENFHE - FE% AEBLER
BEMEAEEEENEAER
BRELE EERNEAEEZET
EAEME=L - RER > BER
FREENEEEBRER -

EREUIBIANCERSHEE -
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21.
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NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Notes”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with aggregate carrying amounts of
RMB240,410,000 and RMB290,655,000 (restated) as at 31
December 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Derecognised
Notes have a maturity from one to six months at the end
of the respective reporting periods. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Notes have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to
the Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Notes and
the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure
to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Notes is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the Directors, the
fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes are not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the dates of
transfer of the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 or cumulatively.

20. EHRE (&)

AEEOEETHESHESYR
AR TEMNE TEKREE
THBREREE]DBE LUEE
R-ZE-—RER-ZZF—HF+=
B=+t-—BAEREEALEI A
A R #240,410,000T & A B #
290,655,000 7t (L&) WESZE
HEBFNEZENRE - REHRE
HA BMBREIAZENZHENT
—ZXEAR - REPENEE L
EHEWRTENONBRT » #%
BREENEEAHAEBREER
BI(BESEND -EERE &K
EECEZERMAREREENY
FTHRERBRER Hit  HEH
REIAFRRERZENEIMREE
REBEMR  REERBERER
EENEESTIRBEZSHBRE
REENABBRESAREELENR
REEREBSERAEKRAE - EER
B AEEREREIAZENEE
EANAABELETERK

BE-Z—RER-Z—HFE+Z=
B=+t—-BLEEE AEELER
EHEMEREIAZE R HRERTME
HoRBEZZE-—ARERZZE—H
F+ZA=+—-HLEFEHREFTHE
EhOMERREESAEENE

P
e

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ANREREMERRIE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-0F
+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR%T T AREF T
(Restated)
(&=75)
Advance to suppliers i THLIERI R EASR 36,962
Prepaid land lease AN LB ER 16 4,368
Other receivables H g FE 26,424
67,754
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. AARBEREMBEIKRIE(E)
(CONTINUED)
None of the above assets is impaired. The financial assets FmEEBERE - 5t A LR
included in the above balances relate to receivables for MEmEEMETHEENTRNE
which there was no recent history of default. WFRIEER ©
The other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and have HihEWFHE A EIKF - T2 R
no fixed terms of repayment. REEEEZERE -

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22. FleRBEEFEEYVLURZIRAL

RESTRICTED CASH

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-hF

+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+-—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik AR%T T ARET T

(Restated)

(B=75)

Cash and bank balances RERIRITHER 407,421 194,708
Time deposits EHEFER 61,783 300,000
Less: Restricted cash W ERRE (a) (51,078) (516)

Pledged time deposits for KT FERAES

short term bank loans EHERITER (b) (21,383) (300,000)

Cash and cash equivalents BHeNESEEY 396,743 194,192
Denominated in RMB UARETHE (c) 191,803 140,071
Denominated in other currencies LA E {5 e EHE 204,940 54,121
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBLZEEY 396,743 194,192

Notes: MIEE -

(@) As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s bank (@ R-ZE—RERZZE—HEF+=
balances of approximately RMB518,000 and RMB516,000, A=+—HB ' x&@B5BBERT
respectively, were deposited at banks as a safety production ERHAREES518,000 TR ARK
guarantee fund pursuant to the related government 516,000 TIF MR ER1T - LUIRIEE
regulations. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank BAHRRERAFELZ2EEREBE
balances of approximately RMB560,000 were deposited as 2 REBE-—RE+ZB=+—
a guarantee fund for the salary of rural workers pursuant to H AEBZRTEHOARYE
the related government regulations. As at 31 December 2016, 560,000 T E 17 A$R1T - 1RIEHERES
the Group’s bank balances of approximately RMB50,000,000 BREERIEAERIFSZREBR
were deposited to secure subsidiaries’ bank loans. S RZIBE-—RETZA=+—

B AEBZRITEBROARY
50,000,000 jt E & 7 7% LA BT
BARRITER °

(b) As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, restricted cash of by R-ZE—XRERZZE-HF+=
RMB21,383,000 and RMB300,000,000 was deposited to B=+—H ZERESARY
secure subsidiaries’ bank loans. 21,383,000 7t & A ¥ 300,000,000

TEAGTERVERM B A RRITE
e
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22, FleRBaEFEMLURERRAS

RESTRICTED CASH (CONTINUED) (#)

Notes: (continued) FiEE © ()

(c) RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, (c) ARBTHEHIBREMEY -
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control AT ARIE B R BICHMNE B 2
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and BREDDRAEE - EERFESER
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is E) AEETEBERELE N
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through EEKZRITHARE ZLBAEM
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. o

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITRESMEBEFA ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬂg?ﬁ

daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted ﬁiﬁﬂ%’éa‘fﬁ o SRITHER R IR I

bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with ﬁﬁ?ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁmmﬁigéﬁﬂjﬁﬁ

no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the IMHE A RO SR IR AT "_iﬁ@ﬁﬁ@
cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank deposits EFEYWUARZRHERITERANRE
approximate to their fair values. BEREAREBERE -

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BHEMRIA

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REREMARE 5 BAHIE 2 Rk

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: o (RIBRFAMTE) MIOT

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—FE
t=A=+t—-R t=HA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARET T
(Restated)
(f&E5)
Within 1 month —fE@AR 76,871 160,816
1 month to 2 months —1{& B Z/1E B 56,146 34,325
2 months to 3 months MEBRZ=EA 22,092 22,943
Over 3 months =@BUL 101,414 32,363
256,523 250,447
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are EZERNRERTHE  UBEIR
normally settled on 30-day to 90-day terms. 30 HZ 90 HWIRKHEIREE -
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HtWEAREREER

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-HF

+=A=+—H +=ZA=+-—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ik AR%T T ARYEET T

(Restated)

(g=&E5)

Advances from customers EEER 1,565
Accrued salaries, wages EitgHe TERER

and benefits 30,341

Due to related parties FE{SREEE T FUE 34(b) 177,403

Payables under the Endorsement & &1 T KB 7B 20 47,415

Other payables HAth S FRIR 45,183

199,168 301,907

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

LSRRG EER - Tt R AEE

EEEBEHR -

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. HBMITHEM
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
ZE-RE+ZA=t-H “E-RETZAZT-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
EIRFIE (%) HER  ARMTR BBAE%) HBMA ARMTR
Current BE
Bank loans —unsecured ~ $RITER - EiE#A HIBOR+2.7 2017 26,832 - - -
Bank loans - secured RITER-FEA 3.92-7.60 2017 PAUNCINN  4.35-8.40 2016 317,320
241,622 317,320
Non-current FENH
Bank loans - secured RITER-FER 523698  2018-2019 240,000 - - -
240,000 _
Total st 481,622 317,320
Analysed into: AT
Bank loans repayable: ERUTBEER
WERITER
Within one year —FR 241,622 317,320
In the second year to FoEZELE
fifth years, inclusive (BEEEME) 240,000 -
481,622 317,320

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
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25.

B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

The Group had banking facilities amounting to RMB17,890,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
RMB200,000,000).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

25. FHRMITHER ()

Notes

i3

MyEE

BE-_ZFT—-—RF+
FE AE@ESR
17,890,000 T (=& —

ZRA=+—-BHLk
FEEEARY
EF+=A

H : AK%200,000,0007T) °

REEETRITESR

31 December
2016
—E-RE
+=A=+-A

RMB’000
ARBFT

certain of the Group’s land
use rights (with a net carrying
amount of RMB22,421,000 and

RMB15,000,000 at 31 December

2016 and 31 December 2015,
respectively);

the Company’s letter of credit;

joint guarantees by Tsaker

Cangzhou and Tsaker Chemical

(Dongguang) Co., Ltd. (&1t
B (RN)BMRAT) (“Tsaker
Dongguang”);

certain of the Group’s land
use rights (with aggregate

net carrying amounts

of RMB8,425,000 and
RMB9,734,000 as at 31
December 2016 and 31
December 2015, respectively)
and certain of the Group’s
buildings (with aggregate

net carrying amounts

of RMB10,284,000 and
RMB12,237,000 as at 31
December 2016 and 31
December 2015, respectively);

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEERE

1)

2)

3)

NEIZ**JFitME)ﬂ
B(RZBE-—RE+=
A=+-—- H&_g i
F+ZHA=+—-Hzk
HFEINAARE
22,421,000t K AR ¥
15,000,000 75 ) 5

ARRERE

FERNREEILE (R
X)BERRA(TEER
XDBEER

AEBzETLHER
B(R=-Z—~+ZH
=t+t-HBER=ZE-1
F+ZA=+—-B2Zk
HFEAEAARE
84250007t & A R ¥
9,734,000t ) R A& H
ETEF(RZZ—RF
+ZA=+—-BEK=

—HEE+ZA=1+—H
ZERAFEAEAAR
#10,284,000 T & A B
512,237,000 70)

(i)

RE AT R AR

31 December
2015
—E—h%F
+=A=+-8
RMB’000
ARETRT

15,000

270,320

12,000

20,000



B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. T ESR|ITER:E)
(CONTINUED)
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 AR®T T ARETF T

5) certain of the Group’s buildings 5) AEEzETET (K=
(with an aggregate net carrying E-RE+ZA=+-—
amount of RMB50,590,000 asat ~ BEREFELBEAAR
31 December 2016); #%50,590,000 7T) ;

6) certain of the Group’s land 6) AEBEZETLHMFER

use rights (with an aggregate B(RZFE-R"+TZA

net carrying amount of St+t-HZEREFES

RMB3,751,000 as at 31 A ANRM®3T51,000

December 2016), and certain of T)REAEEETETF

the Group’s buildings (with an (R=2—-R"E+=A

aggregate net carrying amount St+t—-HZEEFES

of RMB1,815,000 as at 31 A ANRM1815000

December 2016); JT) -
7) the Group’s fixed term deposits 7) AEEEHER (K=

(with a net carrying amount of —R"E+ZA=+—H

US$3,082,000 at 31 December SR F{E 5 3,082,000 =

2016); and )R -
8) certain of the Group’s land 8) AEEzETLHEMR

use rights (with an aggregate B(R=F-~"+t=A

net carrying amount of =St—HZEREFESL

RMB56,769,000 as at 31 % B A K #56,769,000

December 2016), and certain T)RAEBETET

of the Group’s buildings (with (R=ZE—-—R"E+=H

an aggregate net carrying St+t—HZEEFERS

amount of RMB20,608,000 as A A R 20,608,000

at 31 December 2016), and joint T)RAEERMN  ZE
guarantees by Tsaker Cangzhou, R} ¥EEB  ¥E
Tsaker Dongguang, Tsaker B (ER)BRAF
Hong Kong, Tsaker Technology EERBRADNAUR
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (EZ R (d KRB ZGERBEHEE
R)BMR2QTF), Tsaker Dongao o

and the Company, and the

Company’s letter of credit. (ii) 280,000 -

Total #et 454,790 317,320
(i)  The Company deposited RMB50,000,000 at the bank in order (Y AATDBEIEABHERTEA

to obtain the letter of credit. EHI 72 A R % 50,000,000 7T ©

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 909
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26.

27.
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. HHEMITHRE)

(CONTINUED)

(i)  The Company deposited US$29,233,000 at the bank in order (i) RZE2E—tHFE—A=Z++tHB X2
to obtain the letter of credit on 27 January 2017. The buildings AAEREAERMERITEAEH
and land use rights were pledged on 13 February 2017. 1$5%29,233,000% T - R=ZF—t

FZA+TZH ZEEFRIHE
FRECEEA -
Except for a bank loan of RMB26,832,000 which is Fr AR #26,832,000 T ZRITE R
denominated in HKD, all borrowings are in RMB. LB TEHEN  FTEERUARYE
FTE °

DEFERRED INCOME 26. BIEA

Deferred income represents the balance of government EEWAEC KRB RHBGES I

grants received and will be recognised into other income and BRI HREEZERKREMEA

gains when all conditions have been fulfilled. RIS ER -

DEFERRED TAX 27. RIEREA

The components of deferred tax assets of the Group are as AEBEEREEEZHKBD R

follows: ST

Change of
fax base of
propet,
plant and
Impairment  Impairment of equipment!
Impairment of oftrade property, plant ~ Government  Accrued  Disposalof  intangible
inventories  receivables and equipment grants  expenses  fixed assefs assefs  Taxlosses Others Total
0% BER
ERRN % ERR HE R/ EVEE
BERE  MERE  BEME  WRRD  BMER EREE o0ERR RAER it &t
RMBO0 RVB00 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO0D RMBO0D RMBO0D RUB00D RUB00D RVB00D
ARETL ARBTR ARETTL  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTRL ARETR
06 ZE-RE
At Jenvery fas eslated)  T—F A (£E5]) 1836 147 4280 95 6338 1,716
Defered tax redtedcharged) AT ARE/
opftorlossdurngthe  (EEEITR)
year (Note 1] ZEERA ) (123 3549 (600 (065 (550) (1105)
At31 December AtoBzt-8 - 1113 4,99 3380 - 5,768 10611 16 26963
2015 Restaed) Z5-BE(TE))
Att January #-3-8 - 81 183 1522 330 231 1315 1661 0 2848
Defered tax redtedchargee) 3T ABR/
opoftorbssduingte  (EEENR)
year (ot 11) 2RI 14 (8 - m) 9% (1.48) (o) 4055 0 1900
At31 December MzB=1-A 148 - 183 1447 4280 %5 6,33 1716 18 26,748
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Notes to Financial Statements

27. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 27.
The Group had cumulative tax losses arising in Mainland

China of RMB42,444,000 as at 31 December 2016 that will

expire in three to five years. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of those losses as it is considered

probable that tax profits will be available against which the

tax losses can be utilised.

The component of deferred tax liabilities of the Group is as
follows:

RIERIA (H)

R-ZE-—XRE+=ZA=+—H =K
SEERFEAREEEZRFTHREER
ANER#42 444000 R =ZEH
FRAER ELEHBEEEENZSE
EBiEER  RRABERERNET A
PIRSER EE B IR E AT E ©

AEBEEESERE AR H
T

Withholding tax

FENH
RMB’000
AREET T
At 1 January 2015 RZE-H&FE—-F—H -
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during ~ RER BIBFEHIBRE
the year (Note 11) EAEBIIE (BEEE11) 1,550
As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZE—HF+-A=+—HK
—E-R"FE—AF—H 1,550
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during 3t AFERBIBEMN
the year (Note 11) EEBIE (FIEE11) (750)
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZB-R"E+ZA=+—H 800
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a BREPBELCERSHE RHPEKX
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to ERINIERECEMABIRE
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises EERHRE  HIZ10% KB R B

established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised for the portion of retained earnings
that are expected to be distributed from those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in the foreseeable future. The
remaining retained earnings will be utilised by the Group for
production expansion in Mainland China and therefore, no
deferred tax liabilities were recognised.

WHEHH - ZREB-ZTFNF -
B—BEREN  UBAR-ZZL
FTZA=1T-HENEF - i
BAEENEREEMEREER
SR RBHRE A RABEN
5% EHBR Bt NEEAEA
B 7E 5 B K BE RS RO B R D B PR
ENBANMENREBETHEE
MBHEHZ - R-F-—A"FE+=R
=t—H BREBFNDBIEIN
EERBAEPERATRRRKS KA
EHERERLINZERBE LR -
BTREBRFNEHRAEERERK
EHRBEARENEE  HALARBIE
FEFLIF o
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&&x
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company RAFR-_E—NOE+HA=-+HA
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 October CTHERSIMRIAEHREER
2014 with initial authorised share capital of US$50,000 ANE - K ETE R A 550,000 %
divided into 5,000,000 shares of a par value of US$0.01 7 » 9% 5,000,000 B AR HEI{E 0.01
each. ETZBRAMD
The movements in share capital of the Company are as AATRAESEEHSNOT :
follows:
Issued share
Number of capital
shares Share capital equivalent of
Shares us$ RMB’000
i:dni) ROEE BA  ZEERTRE
E ARET R
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2015, W-ZE-HA&+=-B=+-8"
at US$0.01 each FRO.01ER 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
As at 31 December 2016, R-E-RE+=ZA=1+-B"
at US$0.01 each FR0.01ER 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR:
At 1 January 2015 R-E-5%—-F—-H"
at US$0.01 each BRO01ER 100,000 1,000 6
Capitalization upon listing EHEBERE 374,900,000 3,749,000 22929
Issue of shares BT 126,125,000 1,261,250 7,714
At 31 December 2015, W-ZE-HA&+=-B=+-8"
at US$0.01 each FR0.01ET 501,125,000 5,011,250 30,649
At 31 December 2016, RZBE-RFE+ZA=+-8 "
at US$0.01 each FR0.01ER 501,125,000 5,011,250 30,649

212 ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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29.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company passed on 12 June 2015, the sum of
US$3,749,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company was capitalised and applied
towards paying up in full at par 374,900,000 shares of the
Company upon listing.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 3 July 2015 in connection with the Company’s Global
Offering and the completion of the over-allotment,
126,125,000 ordinary shares of the Company of US$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$4.01 per share for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$505,761,250 (equivalent to RMB398,944,307). Share
issue expense charged to equity was RMB20,103,153.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of
association of the companies now comprising the Group,
before distributing the net profit of each year, companies of
the Group registered in the PRC are required to set aside
10% of their statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year’s losses as determined under relevant PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares. However,
the statutory surplus reserve fund must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of each entity’s share capital after such
issuance.

28. & (&)

29.

BEATABRRR-_ZFT—EFRA
+T_AEBNEERABER &
3,749,000 = T (AN @ B A 5T A KD
ARMDEERNITERSEE) BX
BER ARAATIRMALTRERE
B2 EH R 374,900,000 RER 1D ©

ARAWBROR=-ZB—HEFELA=
BEBIFLETRAAQATZER
BEPTRBEREMS A7
%8 R4.0158 T % 17126,125,000
BREREEICIETHEER

AMNMKBEBERN  BE5EH S
505,761,250 T(HE R A K ¥
398,944,307 7t) o st AR KRR 12
BT A AR 20,103,153 7T ©

foti O

g B R I 1 O I TR B A A 0
BREREEDRGARER DR
REETE

EERE

BREFEEIERAEEREETA
FZEBEREME SESIRAF
Al AEEEREZIMOATER
KERBEEBETESTEREE
HWEEEEZ BSHEELEHR
HI0%BELERGBHEERES
BRRENESREESATIRAEAN

50%8 RO ARERSHE
ETRE LTRHBHFEEESTH

REHEETFHBEIBITAR - R
M ZEEBHBRERESLRAED
HEFERTRZARRAEN25% °
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29.

30.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Safety production fund

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety of the
PRC, the Group is required to set aside an amount to a safety
production fund at a certain percentage (less than RMB10
million: 4%; from RMB10 million to RMB100 million: 2%; from
RMB100 million to RMB1 billion: 0.5%; greater than RMB1
billion: 0.2%) of the previous year’s operating revenue. The
fund can be used for improvements of safety, and is not
available for distribution to shareholders. The balance of the
safety production fund in equity represents the safety fund
that was set aside but not yet used.

Capital reserve

Share capital of the Group’s subsidiaries before the
incorporation of the Company is recorded as capital reserve.

Capital reserve also included the difference between the
consideration paid by the Company for the acquisition of
subsidiaries pursuant to the Reorganisation and the net
assets of the subsidiaries being acquired at the time of the
Reorganisation.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
completed a business combination of Tsaker Dongao
under common control of Mr. Ge Yi. Tsaker Dongao was
established on 15 March 2004. Huage Holdings Group
Co., Ltd. (EXEREBHERLE) (‘Huage Holdings”),
controlled by Mr Ge Yi, acquired the entire equity interests
in Tsaker Dongao from an independent third party on 11
September 2014. After the acquisition, Tsaker Dongao
is principally engaged in the leasing of its assets to the
Group under asset leasing agreements for the production of
mononitrotoluene (consisting of PNT, ONT and MNT) as well
as OT and NMP. Before the commencement of the asset
leasing agreement in January 2015 with Tasker Chemical
(Dongying) Co., Ltd. (EE{LE (RE) BRATF)
(“Tasker Dongying”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Tsaker Dongao was principally engaged
in the production of mononitrotoluene as well as OT and
NMP, which was ceased after entering into the asset leasing
agreement with Tsaker Dongying.
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30.

fitifm (48)
ZEEEES

BETFEVTBBEEARZEEEE
BEEBBARBEMRNE TEER £&
EEREEEIERE—FEZE
BNEBRH-—TELBE(ARBI108E
TTUT 4% ARE10BBTEA
RE¥E100HET : 2% AR¥1008
BETZARB10ET 05% AR
IO T UL 02%) ER24EE
HS - ZZ2EEESTARME
SEZREHREETTAREREE
T2k - BEFHBTHNEZE2EEER
SREEBEEMAFEANZEZES o

=Ny

REEME QR RA D B
B ZRATI NBRFIEE A -

EXARETEBEAQARBEEAR
BEHNBARXNNKERREAR
HEWBEHEARNEEFEZH
HYZEHE -

EHaH

REBEZE-_ZTE-—XR"EF+ZA=+—8H
LEFEE ARQAERTHEEZRER
MWEBEM ZEBEHBRRE
HEBETHEESDH EERER
—EENFE=ZRA+HEBRIL XX
GEEEFNERZEREERR A A
TEXERDR=_Z=—-—NERA
+-BERBUF=FHRBEELERR
WEBRE - WER EEREE
ERERBEEERERERLAEE
HEEEEUEE-—HEFRR(E
FEPNTONTRMNT) AKROTR
NMP ° BB E{LE (RE) BRAQ T
(HERE ) (AR TBEZENE
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The following table summarises the fair values of assets
and liabilities of Tsaker Dongao when they were acquired by
Huage Holdings on 11 September 2014:

30. ¥ (H)

THRELAXERRER-Z-NFR
At -—BHEIERWBENEE
REEAREE:

RMB’000
ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment M > BERRE 181,489
Prepaid land lease payments FEf LB EFIE 26,259
Inventory FE 5,206
Other current assets HiREEE 4,872
Trade payables g S EMAFIE (79,440)
Other payables and accruals HitENsaE R ETE R (113,760)
Fair value recognised by EXEREINAAEE
Huage Holdings 24,626
Purchase price paid to an OEEEHE=SZNNIBEE
unrelated third party (24,626)

On 4 May 2016, Tsaker Dongying and Huage Holdings
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”).
According to the SPA, Huage Holdings agreed to sell and
Tsaker Dongying agreed to purchase the entire equity
interests in the Tsaker Dongao, a directly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huage Holdings at an aggregate cash
consideration of RMB17,361,000. The acquisition was
completed on 18 July 2016.

As the Group and Tsaker Dongao were under common
control of Mr. Ge Yi, the acquisition is considered as a
combination of entities under common control. Accordingly,
the assets and liabilities of Tsaker Dongao have been
accounted for at the fair value recognised by Huage Holdings
when it acquired Tsaker Dongao and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group prior to the business
combination have been restated to include the results of
operations of Tsaker Dongao commencing from the date
when Tsaker Dongao became under control of Huage
Holdings. The consideration paid by the Company for the
acquisition has been accounted for as an equity transaction
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB520,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed
and are included in other expenses in profit or loss.

—E-RNERANAB ¥EREH
EXERITICESESHE(EEWN
Z) BEBEEWHZ EXERE
EHERYERERAERAR SR
BARM17,361,000 t i BEER
BR(EXERNEEZEWERT)
HEDBRE - WBER=ZZ—KE
+tA+TNBRAK -

HRAEEEEEREAFBAXK
FEMES WABBRIABRSE
B-—ZHcBRNELSH B
It RERRNEEREBEREX
ERUBYERRECEHAEXRE
BUAAABERR  MAKENER
EUBBRREXEBEHACES
BYEREAEREREFNERR
AARERRNELEEE - A1 F
RBBAXANRERNGERES
BRUBRODRS AR -

AEBRUBRBEESSRAIAR
#5520,000 7T ° ZERZRAE H 8
RETAEE -
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31.

32.

33.

B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises under operating
lease arrangement with a term commencing on 3 July 2015
and ending on 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

31.

32.

RARRAR

RZZ-ARE+ZA=+—-B ' &
SEETELAREE -

EEHRRE
ERAEEA

rEBELEHERET  HER
Ly HEHE-ZF-HFLA
ZHREZZ-—tHF+ZA=+—
=

R-B-A"E+=A=+-8 &
£ (8 5K 277 R T $81 9% 45 2 L SR
ERESENT :

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZBA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year —FER 1,578
In the second to fifth years, F_EZEFERF (BREEEME)
inclusive 1,578
3,156
COMMITMENTS 33. &I

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in Note 32 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

PR £ P RE 32 M A & R BRI
o REBERZRERRNE A%
EEIWT -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
+=ZHA=+—-B +=B=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)

(#2&E5)

Contracted, but not provided for 25T #{B I K14
Plant and machinery B R He2s

182,200

118,556

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE



B E R
Notes to Financial Statements

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. ABFERS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BRAFBHMRAMIP D FMRHP
these financial statements, the Group had the following REM REBERFERNERR
transactions with related parties during the year: BHETUTRS
2016 2015
ZE-RF “Z-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARBT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Purchases of materials: BEMH (i)
Dongguang Yijia Iron Co. Ltd. RAGEEHDERL T 36,881
Sunchem International Trading Sunchem International
Pte. Ltd. Trading Pte.Ltd. 486
37,367
Funding from related parties: REBESNES : (i)
Huage Holdings ELER 168,319
Hebei Huage Dye Chemical AEELFRLE
Co., Ltd. BRAF 7,018
175,337
Funding to related parties: BEEERNES
Huage Holdings ERER 27,377
Huage Cangzhou EJoRM 27,330
Hebei Huage Dye Chemical ALERFRUEE R D
Co,, Ltd. BRLF 23,018
Cavalli Cavalli 13
118,589 77,738
Property leasing fee paid to EESZZST L)
Huage Holdings WEREER 789
Acquisition of a subsidiary BEXERKE—B
from Huage Holdings WEATE (iii) -
(i)  In the opinion of the Directors of the Group, the () AEEEERE FEHEHEEES
transactions between the Group and the related parties ZENRZ IR —REKRBREDIZ
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of EEBERTIET -

business and on normal commercial terms.

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 947
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34. EHAXH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(@) (continued) (a) (&)

(i)  Funding from related parties was mainly for meeting the (i) REBEINESTEZAEMSR
capital requirements of the Group during the year. The EEFRESEE - ZESAHEKR
funding was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed H2ERAIBETEERDE 45
repayment terms and was included in other payables At ARZE-HER=ZZE—RE
and accruals, and prepayments and other receivables TZA=+—-BHNEEHERRE
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 FREMEMARERETERUR
December 2016 and 2015, respectively. FESFIE R E A EUFRIE -

(i) On 4 May 2016, Tsaker Dongying, an indirectly (iiy A-ZZ—XR"ERATA > AAFMH
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Huage E2EMBAREEREMERE
Holdings entered into a sale and purchase agreement RITVEEHR(TEEHRE]
(the “SPA”). According to the SPA, Huage Holdings RESEEHR  EXEREELE
agreed to sell and Tsaker Dongying agreed to purchase REETRERDBRAREBEARY
the entire equity interests in Tsaker Dongao, a directly 17,361,000 T B B RE (X
wholly-owned subsidiary of Huage Holdings at an ERNWEEZ2ENBEAR) N2
aggregate consideration of RMB17,361,000. BRHE -

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) EREIERZEAIRGEHELL
The Group had outstanding balances with the following AEBHUTEES ZBEXR
related parties: HEEREER

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-51F
t=A=t-B +=RA=1-H
Relationship with the Group RMB’000 RMB’000
HEAREENER AR®T R ARBTT
(Restated)
(&=51)
Trade and bills payables: BEIENREBEREMNRE
Dongguang Yijia Iron Co. Ltd.  Controlled by Mr. Ge Yi’s
relative 5,970
RABEZEDERAA AR XEERBES
5,970
Other payables and accruals: HitnEFRIERESER :
Huage Holdings Controlled by Mr. Ge Yi 177,403
ERER xR AT
177,403

The above balances are unsecured, non-interest- LEESRABEER s T ERAR

bearing and repayable on demand. EREE -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. ABFEXS (])
(CONTINUED)
(c) Guarantees received from related parties (c) EEEGRAMER
As at 31 December 2016, none of the bank loans was R—_E-RNE+=-ZA=+-—
guaranteed by the related parties. B BIEBTERREBLR
HigR -
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) EEXEEEASHHE :
Group:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Compensation paid to key BEEEBAETNH
management personnel (note 9) & (K 9) 3,921
The related party transactions in respect of items (a) EX(a) R (b)EREBES RS IR
and (b) above also constitute connected transactions BRBEXSUEERERS
or continuing connected transactions as defined in (EERLEMRAE14AE) o

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 949
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. BENSSHEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZLHESRMIAENSREPARANER
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as EHEHAOT :
follows:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-EHF
Financial assets +=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
ERMEE RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loans and receivables: ERREWFRIE :
Trade and notes receivables ERERFEREKREE 281,029 235,579
Financial assets included in SFATEARIE - BEeR
prepayments, deposit and HitEWHIEN EREE
other receivables 49,988 26,424
Restricted cash ZR|EL 72,461 300,516
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 396,743 194,192
Available-for-sale financial assets: A{{HELREE :
Available-for-sale investments AHtHERE 18,300 -
818,521 756,711
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-EHEF
Financial liabilities +=—A=+—8B +=ZHA=+—H
at amortised cost RMB’000 RMB’000
RBERRIRNESREE ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Trade payables B S RMAIE 256,523 250,447
Financial liabilities included in SFAEMENRIERETE R
other payables and accruals HeEmas 169,113 270,001
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5 ESRITHER 421,622 317,320

847,258 837,768
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37.

B ER

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
available-for-sale investments have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities closely approximate to their fair values.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, amounts due from and due to related parties, other
financial liabilities and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and notes
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

36.

37.

EMITRARZAARRERLARES
R 5l B

TRMEENEENAIAEERER
FR-BRTREZTIRBEFELR
Frr & 5008 (58 5 25 88 W & BRSM) ©
LT AR BRARMEET 2 A EE -

ReERkBELSEY ZREL B
ZRUGRER BWRE - 5T AN
RE - ZERAEMBRFTIANEH
EE -EZEBMNARIE  GFAHME
NHEREGFERANESREEN A
REERAREZKREEMESE £
EHRZETAREHRREY -

AERTERRAMEERENR
REEDNERAZEUER - FER
PR TEHMANIEERTAN
MEHRHPARARBESREFRTNE
B

AEENSRAER SREENE
EE SRR A A B EEE -

MERBRERHSERBE

AEBNTESRTIABERTE
FoBBRENEELSRE Hit
TREEURRERRITERR &
EEMIANTEERNR/ELEH
MEKERES FAEEEERE
HteMEERAE  fIMEER
BEBLENEZRWTIARER
REURESENARE -

REAEESRMIANTERRAS
SRR FERRBRABDESR
e EREEHRHEEESER
BREVERE  ZERRMBEMT -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all sales and purchase transactions were
denominated in RMB and US dollars. Management has
assessed the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
by using a sensitivity analysis on the change in foreign
exchange rate of the US dollars, to which the Group is mainly
exposed to during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against US dollars with all other variables
held constant, the profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB9,556,000 (2015: RMB4,926,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
arising from translations of US dollar-denominated accounts
receivable.

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollars with all other
variables held constant, the profit for the year would have
been approximately RMB1,034,000 (2015: Nil) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
arising from HK dollars-denominated interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with related parties and recognised
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and deposits and other
receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with related parties and
recognised creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BERBERBREERIR (1)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk REBESER
The management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient rEEEEEERHABTRENRS
cash and cash equivalents and the Group has available FEEZEEY BAEBEBRXT R
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit NERECEMEEENHANE
facilities to meet its commitments. & LURBHAE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEEEHEERSHBERBERN
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ZIEAE R (RIBEFTHNE R
undiscounted payments, is as follows: STE)WMT :
As at 31 December 2016
RZB-AEtZA=1-A
Less than 6to12
On demand 6 months months ~ 1to2years  Over2years Total
~MERZ
REX  DRAMEA t=fR  -EERE MENL gt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AREFR  ARETR

Interest-bearing bank stERATRR
borrowings® - 164,433 96,591 91,367 165,224 517,615
Trade payables EARMNTE 9,616 244,381 1,746 780 - 256,523
Other payables and accruals ~ EbENFEREER - 169,113 - - - 169,113
9,616 517,927 98,337 92,147 165,224 943,251

As at 31 December 2015
RZE-RE+ZA=1-H
Less than
On demand 6months 6o 12 months Tto2years  Over2years Total
~ERE

BREX  HRAER +ZfR —-EEME MENL Eh
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Interest-bearing bank HESi
borrowings® - 35,819 292,198 - - 328017
Trade payables BARAZE 160,816 89,631 - - - 250,447
Other payables and accruals ~ EtENFEREER 270,001 - - - - 270,001
430817 125,450 292,198 - - 848,465

* Interest-bearing bank borrowings include the principal and the * FTERITEREBELAESRFE -
interest.

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 9923
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the year.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing ratio at a
healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and the
ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they fall
due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans,
if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level
of capital to support its business. The gearing ratios were as
follows:

37. MBEEREERBRRBE ()

s

A EE

\

REBEAEENTEBREARE
AEERAFELYE  UHSSE
MERERUAXFEHEBERBEER
FHIRREERES

7 &R B AR 5 AR AR O B9 2 B % AR
EENERMEEEEEARBER
EHAR  DEFRARBRELRR
B AEETHEINTRROR
B BRRE B E A B ATH AR o
7N 5% 18 36 4 32 {0 S AR 3R A0 B9 & AR
BEXRFR - RFER > EBEXWE

AEENRBEABEERGEL R
FERBEARKF  UXEHHEX
B AEBRERONEIERBEBEE
TRANEBARKRREREBBZRER
1575 2 5 B 42 B R 3R B R AV e
R ARITHETSEAKFLU
RARREFERMETE(NE
) UEKRASEEASEKFH
BAXKHER BERBLERH
FIENT

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-F1F
+t=A=+—-8 +=A=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
(Restated)

(FBE5)

421,622

960,985

43.87%

Total debt* ERHEERE
Total equity e A%E
Gearing ratio BEEEEBL=R
* Total debt comprises interest-bearing bank borrowings. *
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38. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. WREMEKEIR
On 10 February 2017, the Company entered into memorandum R-ZZE—tF=-A+H KATFHEE
of understanding (the “MOU”) with legally binding with Mr. Liu EEREREAI AT IEERZOR
Zhixun (2/22) and Ynnovate Sanzheng, pursuant to which InEsE((RRESE] B
the Company (or through its designated subsidiary) intends I R BIRIEERAE SR N 15
to acquire, and Mr. Liu Zhixun intends to sell or procure to ENGERREGR(SEBHIEEN
sell, 75% equity interest in Ynnovate Sanzheng pursuant to BARBE mARSLELERLEE
the terms and conditions agreed by the parties to the MOU. REFELEHEL R = 75% BRHE - 5
Subject to adjustment as stated in the announcement of ARFAPA=ZE—tF-AtHZ
the Company dated 10 February 2017 and the terms of the NERMAREER S EXHRERAT
formal agreement, the consideration shall be RMB567.0 R REKBARKESC7TOEET
million, which comprises (a) RMB280.0 million in cash; BiE () ARE280.0BELRE &
and (b) RMB287.0 million to be settled by the issue of (D) AR¥287.0 BB BREITR
consideration shares. BROEE -
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. XAFMBERAE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RAB PSRBT BAMR KA
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BAERFHIWMT :
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-HEF
t=A=t—-R t=HA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary RE—EWEAAE 80,234
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Due from a subsidiary PR — IR B A Bl R IE 394,832 249,410
Interest receivable FERFE = 2,303
Restricted cash ZREE 71,383 300,000
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBESEEY 169,413 25,786
Total current assets REEERE 635,628 577,499
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE R
Other payables and accruals Hin B R ESTE R -
Interest-bearing bank and FRIBRITREESREN

employee borrowings -
Total current liabilities RBEERE -
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 608,415 577,499
Net assets BEFE 688,649 657,733
EQUITY s
Share capital e 30,649
Reserves (Note) e (MisE) 627,084
Total equity R 688,649 657,733

Ge Yi Bai Kun £ HE
Director Director EE3 EE3

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED 995
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. FAFMBRARE (#])
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: it :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARFEERLOT
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAREE AN
Share Share Translation Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BAE B A7 M8 E R REEF st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARE®TRT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-B-R%E-F—A 6 214,911 (85) 214,832

Profit for the year REEEF - - - (711) (711)
Other comprehensive income ZAFEEMZEUA :
for the year:

Exchange differences BEINEEREH
on translation of foreign ERERE
operations - - 34,156 - 34,156

Total comprehensive income X2 HE WAL

for the year - - 34,156 (711) 33,445
Issue of shares (Note 28) AT (5T 28) 30,643 378,813 - - 409,456
At 31 December2015and ~ RZZE—HF

1 January 2016 +ZA=+—-HEK

—E-XE—-/A-H 30,649 593,724 34,071 (711) 657,733
Profit for the year NEEREF - . - 22,761 22,761

Other comprehensive income ZAFEFEEMZEUA :
for the year:

Exchange differences BEINEEREH
on translation of foreign EXESE
operations - - 39,225 - 39,225

Total comprehensive income  FR2HE WAL

for the year - - 39,225 22,761 61,986
Dividend distributed tothe ~ ERRFREMRE
shareholders (Note 13) (KizE13) - - - (31,070) (31,070)
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RE
+=ZA=+—-H 30,649 593,724 73,296 (9,020) 688,649

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. #HEMBEE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for "EHBBRREN = —+tF=A
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017. “HABREESERELRETE -
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[BENEE
[ Additional Assets ]

[BRRBEXE ]
[AGM ]

[HEEZEFRMA ]
[Articles of Association |

[EEHEE R

[ Assets Leasing Agreement ]

[BERZEE
[ Audit Committee |

[EEE ]
[Board |

rEa T ERE
[CAGRI

[Cavallil
[Cavalli]

EE
Definitions

RECIKERREERERESIEZUEHBENEERSE
AR ERERE  KMEEEEERERE

the equipment and facilities of Dongao Chemicals for its
production capacity expansion to be installed or constructed
at the Dongao Production Plant, which we have an option to
lease

ARARAERZB—tFARA T RABETHRRBFRSE
annual general meeting of our Company to be held on 16
June 2017

RATEBERAA (BTEHER])  RZB-—RHFAATZ
AERREMRBRIMELE EH ABEEN

the articles of association of our Company (as amended
from time to time), approved by the written resolutions of
the Shareholders on 12 June 2015 and effective from the
Listing Date

FERERRBECIMIVNBEBRA=-Z-—HF—A+EHA
MEEHEHBERAEPA-S—HEFONANABNERHE
Bt RERCIRSHRREERELETEERE

the assets leasing agreement dated 15 January 2015 and
a supplemental agreement dated 8 April 2015 entered
into between Tsaker Dongying and Dongao Chemicals,
pursuant to which Dongao Chemicals agreed to lease to
Tsaker Dongying the Dongao Production Plant

EXTEENEZER
audit committee of the Board

KRABESE

the board of Directors

WAFHER

compound annual growth rate

Cavalli Enterprises Inc.» A=ZE——F=A+—AEXEE
LEEEMEYNERIT  HRMOBTES - TE 17
BEBRERRR 2 - RNELE2EHEF

Cavalli Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 11 March
2011, wholly-owned by Mr.Ge Yi, our executive Director,
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and one of our
Controlling Shareholders

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA
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Definitions

[ARAT I EM] K
[EEE]

[ Company |, [our],
[our Company |, [we ],
[us] or [ Tsaker Chemical |

NG SN
[ Companies Ordinance |

[HERR AR R |
[ Controlling Shareholder(s) |

[EREBEEREH]
[CPI]

[DATA
[DATA

[R5 F 245 |

[ Deed of Non-competition |

===4
[Director(s)J

[DIPS]
[DIPS]

[DMAS |
[DMAS |

[DMSS ]
[DMSS |

v EHRBE

*  For identification purpose only
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EEAEEBERAR —FRZZF-OF+A=Z+ABR
HERBEEMAZNERATR
Tsaker Chemical Group Limited (EE{tEEBER LT *),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 29 October 2014

BB ILI5E 622 Z A aMEH
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

EA D BRI R (BN XX 5e 4 K Cavalli)
the controlling shareholders of our Company, namely Mr.Ge
Yi and Cavalli

EREEBERER

consumer price index

25-ZFRE-14-KRK - AEEN RN ER
2,5-Dianilinoterephthalic acid, which is used as an
intermediate of quinacridone pigments

ARAREEZERBRRITZAPR - -—AF B T+T=BHTRR
FHE

the deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2015
entered into between our Company and our Controlling
Shareholders

KAREE
the director(s) of our Company

T-B=-ERNE  AREEDPPERREH
Diisopropyl succinate, which is used for the production of
DPP pigments and plastic

Bl
b

CHET-_M_FE ARTERRECHER  BE . Hit
REA N

Dimethyl acetylsuccinate, is used for the production of
food yellow pigments, agricultural chemicals, other food

additives

1,4- RS ZH1-2,5- — B =Pl - AREEENEEEERR
RABEY

Dimethyl 1,4-Cylohexanedione-2,5-dicarboxylate, is
used for the production of quinacridone pigments and
photosensitive polymer



[RE{T] B

[Dongao Chemicals ]

[REEERE] |
Dongao Production Plant ]

[RAEEMSE ] B
[ Dongguang Production Plants ]

[RELERE ] B
[ Dongying Production Plant]

EE
Definitions

IWREERRCBERSEELA (AIBBEINHERRLEIER
BEERR)  REZEZEWNF=ZATHEARBPBEUEERILNL
AYARERLATNEEZEZERBAR - R=ZE—X<"F=A++t
BZAl > REACIAEXRERNEEZ2ENELR

Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd. (IUER¥&E R
BR{BEHREMEAT) (formerly known as Shengli Oil Field
Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd., (BAMARRIL T HREELD
7)), a company established under the laws of the PRC on
15 March 2004, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company. Before 17 March 2016, Dongao Chemicals
was a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of Huage Holdings

REEEHEWERNEEHAEHFHERRICIAHAES
REKEMNEERE (LRFEILRERED) - BIFE (HF
BFE)PNT » ONT * MNT » OT R NMP (—HE R RKHRFHF
HBERSB0,000M) EEMBNEERE - Lib - RIBKRRIHE
EmEREBEE

the production plant (including all the existing assets
including factory premises, land, equipment and facilities
in relation to the production of, among others, PNT, ONT,
MNT, OT and NMP with an aggregate annual designed
production capacity of 80,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene)
which is leased from Dongao Chemicals under the
Assets Leasing Agreement and the New Assets Leasing
Agreement, and operated by Tsaker Dongying and located
in Dongying, Shandong Province, the PRC

ERAEEBERERALEERE (EERBRER) NRE
collectively, the North Dongguang Production Plant and
the South Dongguang Production Plant (as defined in the
Prospectus)

EHEHEERELENLEERE  BATEEPRBILRER
EERER BETERBEEDSDEMREMAR RERFHE
%%

the production plant which is expected to be operated by
Tsaker Dongying and currently under preparation for the
construction in Dongying, Shandong Province, the PRC,
and will primarily engage in the production of DSD Acid and
other dye and pigment intermediates

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA
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[DSD# J
[DSD Acid ]

[ Frost & Sullivan
[ Frost & Sullivan |

[A&HE ]
[ Group ]

[l [ &
[HK$ | or [Hong Kong dollars | or
[HK dollars |

[&i&]
[Hong Kong |

[BREE
[herbicides |

FZEFHRM]
Huage Cangzhou |

ES220
[Huage Dye |

[EFERER ]
Huage Holdings ]
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4.4 —FEZRZHE-2,2" - “HEHE - BERK - BXEAER
FamnhEg

4.4’ -Diaminostilbene-2,2’ -disulfonic acid, which is used as
an intermediate of dyes, fluorescent whitening agents and
pesticides

Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co., ¥ 24z
BTERENITEER

Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co.,
industry consultant engaged by us to prepare the industry
report

KRB RAEHHE QR

our Company and our subsidiaries from time to time

EREEEHBT
Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

ERRHITHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

RRBBSIN 2 B E RV B EER
a chemical agent used to kill or inhibit the growth of
unwanted plants

EZPHLECEMBRAT  RZE—=F=A=-1+tHRE
FEEER Y HERZERE2ERSR

Huage Chemical (Cangzhou) Co., Ltd. (ZEF{LZ CEM) B
PR/A#]), a company established under the laws of the PRC
on 27 March 2013 and wholly-owned by Huage Holdings

A ELREBCEROGERLAT R—AALtEtE+=A
“THEHARBHEERERYINAR ER=ZF—HF=A
—t+ M EFEH

Hebei Huage Dye Chemical Co., Ltd. (Gi[dtZE R R 2%
2B 2AF]), a company established under the laws of the
PRC on 25 December 1997 and was deregistered on 24
March 2015

EXEZEREBERQARA R—AARFE+=ZBASBREFEH
EERYMNAR  ARVEERXBEXREDRFE

Huage Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (ZEXREREEERAT),
a company established under the laws of the PRC on 6
December 1999 and was held by Mr. Ge Yi and Mr. Ge
Jianhua
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[intermediates |
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[Listing Date |
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[MNTJ
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EE
Definitions

BUIRARARAREEAMBARES - TETHAEREE
RERBESENHEATBEMMTEESE (ERRLETR
ANW—FBHZEAL s —BRZELF

a person, persons, company or companies which is or are
independent of, and not connected with (within the meaning
under the Listing Rules), any directors, chief executive
or substantial Shareholders of our Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associate(s)

EREEHMEERNEMRULEY
chemicals that are used as raw materials to produce other
chemical products

RIZENFHERRZZZRAFR-Z——FEETHNE
BEEHBREEERARE

International Organization for Standardization standard for
environmental management systems as enacted in 2004
and amended in 2009 and 2011

B EEABHRT  HE - £F  TERBREFENES
REMBEMNEEERB AR

quality management systems model published by International
Organization for Standardization for quality assurance in
design, development, production, installation and servicing

RADPABERZ PR EMR £
listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange

—Z-A%tA=R
3 July 2015

R PR 2 £ AR A
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

-HERKENBHERE > AEREDLHR - BEPHREK
FRR BB

3-nitrotoluene or meta-nitrotoluene, which is used as
agricultural chemical intermediates, pharmaceutical
intermediates, and dye and pigment intermediates

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA
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[P | 15
Model Code |

[RREEIRTXREE] 15
[Mr. Ge Yi] or[ Mr. Ge ]

[ REBELAE g
[Mr. Ge Jianhua |

[REBEB % &
[Mr. Ge Jianyong |

[—HHERK 18
[ mononitrotoluene ]

[ R R = 8% 15
rMouJ

[HEEHRERHR 15

[ New Assets Leasing Agreement |

[NMP ] 15
[NMP ]
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ERBRAIME TS LB TAESETRESRENRES
I

the [ Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

Sfigf

of Listed Issuers] as sct out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules

XX BMNEZERERZ— - HITES - TERTHER

Ge Yi (X<X), one of our Controlling Shareholders, an
executive Director, our Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

XREE FEEARARRXCEENRH
Ge Jianhua (X#2#), the founder of our Group and the
father of Mr. Ge Yi

REE > BREELEMNRZZRXCEENINR
Ge Jianyong (X E), brother of Mr. Ge Jianhua and uncle
of Mr. Ge Yi

PNT » ONT &2 MNT
PNT, ONT and MNT

HRARXFAEHAZZT—tFZATHEHNAE  REFBA
NE B ESAEREACZARERRBILBERA=-ZE
—tEFZA+HZRBESE

the memorandum of understanding dated 10 February 2017
entered into amongst the Company, Mr. Liu Zhixun (2|2
£) and Ynnovate Sanzheng in relation to the Proposed
acquisition as set out in the announcement of our Company
dated 10 February 2017

FEREARBCITUNBEHR-B-—R"F=ZA+LtHZ
HEEHEWR Bt RECLIBSKRREERFELE
TRERE

the new assets leasing agreement dated 17 March 2016
entered into between Tsaker Dongying and Dongao
Chemicals, pursuant to which Dongao Chemicals agreed to
lease to Tsaker Dongying the Dorgao Production Plant

N-FRE-2-M R - AREREERITH  BRFESMEE -
B FREMM R RERETE

N-methyl-2-pyrrolidone, which is used in the clean energy
industry, including lithium battery manufacturing, high
polymer material industry and pharmaceutical industry, etc.
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[ OBA Assets
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[ONTJ
[ONT

[OT]
[oTl

[REECT—H]

[Phase | Dongao Chemicals |

[RE{AT=H ]

[Phase Il Dongao Chemicals |

EE
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EESREEES

nomination committee of the Board

BZRANGR  BRBERGEREENESEEAE
optical brightening agents that are widely adopted in the
production of paper, detergent and textile

KEERHEEZRIRELENEERATNBHA-Z—RE
T A+ —HITLMKERERZ

the operating lease agreement dated 21 December 2016
entered into between Tsakes Xiajin and 2 £ B iRE (L 2R
A R A 8)(Xiajin Zhenhua Chemical & Technology Company
Limited*)

-THERERMHEERE > AEREDBHRNEME - LH
ERER - BEDERE RERENTEES

2-nitrotoluene or ortho-nitrotoluene, which is used as the
raw materials for intermediates for agricultural chemicals,
in particular herbicides, pharmaceutical intermediates, dye
and pigment intermediates, etc.

WMEERE ONTHTKER TERFRE(LEZKREHR)
HY R B

ortho-toluidine, a downstream product of ONT, primarily
applied as intermediate for agricultural chemicals,
especially herbicides

FEREN-ZE-—HF-AERRR{AIEEFERE(a)
40,000 M — W E R (BFEPNT » ONTKRMNT) #(b) 6,000
WA N- B EL -2 I IR G B (NMP) Y £ EE 5R 18

Tsaker Dongying leased the production facilities with
annual production capacity of (a) 40,000 tonnes of
mononitrotoluene (consisting of PNT, ONT and MNT) and
of (b) 6,000 tonnes of N-methyl-2-pyrrolidone (NMP) from
Dongao Chemicals from January 2015

FEREN-ZB—AFZARRE(L THER RSN 40,000 M -
HEFR (BFEPNT » ONT K MNT)

Tsaker Dongying leased the production facilities with an
additional 40,000 tonnes of mononitrotoluene (consisting of
PNT, ONT and MNT) from Dongao Chemicals from March
2016

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA
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[PNTJ
[PNT

[ s [ A B AR
[PRC Jor [ Chinalor
[Mainland Chinal

[BRFHAE ]

[ Prospectus |

[FHEES |

[ Remuneration Committee |

[ R
[Reporting Period

[ =R |

[Review Year]

[ARE ]
[RMB

[FEe ]
[SFCJ

[ 245
[Share(s) ]

MR
[ Shareholder(s) |

[ B8 3 P
[ Stock Exchange |

[Tccaml
[Tcceml

[ g |
[tonnes |

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
2016 FEFEERE

A-THEREFHEHERE > BERBPREERESTEEN
REAR > BIEDSD#

4-nitrotoluene or para-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw
materials for dye intermediates and pigment intermediates,
including DSD Acid

PEARAANE  BRIENEZEME RATEEEE - $
BERPIHSRIITHE R ZE
the People’s Republic of China, it excludes Hong Kong, the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan,
unless otherwise indicated

RABBBA—ZE-HFEFAAZT=BWNIERFIRE
the prospectus of the Company dated 23 June 2015
ExeymMEsS

remuneration committee of the Board
BE-E—AR"F—A-HBERE_E—ARE+-A=+—BHH
The period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
B=ZE—AR"F—A—-HE=Z—-XRE+=-A=+—H
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
HEEEEW AR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ERRSRPEEREREZES

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

VNN P i)
the share(s) of the Company

PAYNGT )€
the shareholder(s) of the Company

BERBEXGAERAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

2,345-N&E-6-REXFRFE - ARNEEBENE110
Methyl Benzoic acid,2,3,4,5-tetrachloro-6-cyano, which is
used for the production of pigment yellow 110

YN

metric tonnes



&1t ]

[ Transfar |

&R
[ Tsaker Beijing |

[EERM]
[ Tsaker Cangzhou ]

[EHERK]
[ Tsaker Dongguang |

[RERE
[ Tsaker DongyingJ

[RREE]
[ Tsaker Hong Kong |

EE
Definitions

BEBREZERERAR R=E——F—-—B+tBEEBHE
M AR > RERLAHBENREEZ—

Transfar International Holding Co., Ltd. ({8t BB IE R AR
‘AF]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 17 January 2011, one of our pre-IPO investors

FEEMR (AR ERAF  RZE-=ZF+ A+ LARES
BUEREBYNAREARRAEEL2ENB LA

Tsaker Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (RERH (dtR) AR
/A 7]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on
17 October 2013, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company

EEALZOEMN) BRAF R-ZEZHEFAA-+T=ARE
FESEER LN AR RAAGBELZENB AT

Tsaker Chemical (Cangzhou) Co., Ltd. (EE{tZ ({LtE2)F
BR/A#]), a company established under the laws of the PRC
on 23 September 2005, and an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

KRB (RRX)BRAR RZE-—=FHLAtHREFH
EERIMARRANTEEZEWE AR

Tsaker Chemical (Dongguang) Co., Ltd. (2 &{t&2(EKK)AE
PR |]), a company established under the laws of the PRC
on 7 May 2013, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company

KRB (RE)BRAA R=E-—NFHEA=-THIREF
BIEAERYMNARRAAREEZENE AR

Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Ltd. (R R{LE (RE)ER
A|]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on
20 May 2014, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

FELEB(EB)ERQAT RZE-SFNA-HEEBHE
MY ARABAAREEE2ERE LA

Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (¥&{L2(F8)A
FRZ28]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 2 September 2010, and an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED
HECBEKERRAA
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[ZEEZ]
[ Tsaker Xiajin |

E
[US$ ] or [US Dollar] or [USD |

[ ERRE ]

[ Xiajin Zhenhua |

[MEEEH

['Yijia Iron Powder |

[ &R =1E
['Ynnovate Sanzheng |
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EREEB(ER)ERAA  RZE-AF+ZFZHARES
BUEAERYMNAR > ARARNEEZEWE AR

Tsaker Chemical (Xiajin) Co., Ltd.* (EF{LE (EZE)ERAQ
Fl), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 2
December 2016, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company

XBEEEEWET

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United
States of America

ERBRELCENRBRLT  REBEFBUEERINDF
BMUE=

Xiajin Zhenhua Chemical & Technology Company Limited*
(B 2BIRELERNFZBRAT ), a company established
under the laws of the PRC and an Independent Third Party

RABEZHEHERAF > R-ZEENFRASAREPE
EERYNAR RAXRBELEEEZERS

Dongguang Yijia Iron Powder Co., Ltd (RXBEZEHNE
FR/A 7)), a company established under the laws of the PRC
on 6 May 2009 and was directly wholly-owned by Mr. Ge
Jianyong

ERIZE(ZN)BALCIARLT  RPREEZEELEOMMK
VHWHHNEELR ZMELARBARBI168EET  RAR
AHPAZZE-tF-A+TENAEEH HEAEZSELER
E&A Investment Limited 2 Bl E 75% & 25%

Ynnovate Sanzheng (Yingkou) Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd.”
(BRIZME(E D) BALITHRAT), a sino-foreign joint
venture company established in Yingkou City, Liaoning
Province of the PRC and its registered capital was RMB168
million, 75% of which was held by Mr. Liu Zhixun (Z2|Z &)
and 25% was held by E&A Investment Limited as at the date
of the announcement of the Company dated 10 February
2017
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